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Inspired by the finest cultural, corporate
and creative values to present content
‘which entertains and enriches audiences.
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MESSAGE

The outbireak of COVID-19 has brought unprecedented challenges for meankind, Major disruptions in economic activity worldwide
have also affected the socio-economic environment of our country, Despite such tough times, Hum Network Limited (HNL) did
not compromise on providing quality & fresh content to the masses

It = &n incredible achievement that our financial results have significantly improved from lBst year because the company has
taken certain measures o face the problems head-on, We have taken certain comective measures In accordance with the
situation without compromising on quality, the effect of which is reflected in our accounts. Being the market leader in the world
of entertainment our viewers only expect top quality content from HML

Our venture, Hum News has also made headway by leaps and bounds. Due to its imely & balanced coverage of issues, along
with the fact that the narmative of the commaon man 8 voiced on Hum Mews in an objactive manner, our channal has bean able to
penetrate through the masses, The viewers of our news channel see it as a channel of the people, by the people, for the people

Our film distribution unit has had to bear the brunt of the lockdowns. As reflected In our financials our film distribution revente
has decreased significantty due to the ongoing pandemic. However, your mansgement being proactive and diligent &8s ever has
already entered the digital industry and has been able to gain a strong foothold in the sector. Pakistan is a huge untapped market
tor dicital content, and HNL has projects in the pipeling to tap that potential

Our shareholders and stakeholders are also aware of the ongoing matter between major shaeholders & managament. Even
though the details of the matter alang with HNL responses are public information | would like to personally reassure you that HNL
will stick to the letter of the law and come out of this subjudice matier stronger and united

This pandermic has changed the norms of the world. New ideas, new methods, new systems for doing business e being
designed & implemented. HNL, being the leader in innovation and creativity, will not only adopt such norms but will set the
benchmeark in their design and implemerntation.

As always | would like to thank all our stakeholders for their continued support. Without your trust & balief, HNL success

would not have been possible. | would like to especially thank all the employees for their dedication and hard work that
enables us to take the Company ahead.
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Company Profile

HLIM Metwork Limited was incorporated in 2004 in Pakistan as a public Limited company having its shares listed on the Pakistan
Slock Exchange. The company's principal business is Lo launch transnational salellile channels and aims al presenting a wide
varlety of cultural heritage. We cover a wide variety of programmes with respect to information, entertainment, news, education,
heallh, food, music and sociely through our vast array of channels.

HUM undoubledly remains lo be one of the inest entertainment providers in Pakistan. We have grown (rom owning the most
popular drama channels to launching Pakistan's first 24-hour live cooking channel, printing aur widely popular publications,
becoming the mosl sought-after flm distribulors in the country and also launching our latest venture in the daunting news genre.,

In its debul year, we are proud Lo slale thal HUM Mews has slarled lo make ils mark wilh the viewers and is continuously gaining
popularity amongst the masses, The upward frending revenues are evidence {o the fact that HUM News will continue to prosper
in the fulure.

Mol only that, bul HUM Marl, our diversified business of e-commerce operalions is in ils initial phases and despile the volatile
ecanomic situation Is striving to gain success,

HLUIM Netwaork Limited takes immense pride In the fact that we are the only public listed broadcast media house in Pakistan, We
have maintained our repulation of baing one of Lhe lop media houses in Pakislan, Al HUM, we have crealed a strong cullune
based on values and our fearless attitude o take on new challenges has been our secret of Innovation. Qur vision gives us
direclion and deslination. Il caplures our aspiralions of being Lhe besl in everything we do.

We strive lo shape Pakislan's enterlainment induslry by nol only providing good enteriainment bul also educaling the masses on
social issues through constructive content which is getting global recognition.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Notice Of The 16" Annual General Meeting

Motice s hereby given that the 16th Annual General Mesting of HUM Network Limited will e held on Friday, July 16, 2021 at
04:00 p.m. at Ground Floor, BRR Tower, Hassan All Street, Off. 11. Chundrigar Road, Karachi to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1- Tao confirm the minutes of the 9th Extraordinary General Meeting held on August 22, 2020.

2- To recelve, consider and adopt Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company together with the Direclors” and
Auditors’ reports thereon for the year ended June 30, 2020 together with the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Company and the Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended June 30, 2020,

3- Toappoint Auditors’ of the Company for the financial year ending June 30, 2021 and to fix their remuneration. The Board of

Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committes of the Company, has proposed the name of refiring auditors M/s. EY
Fard Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, for thelr appointment as external auditors for the year ending June 30, 2021,

Any Other Business

4- Totransact any other business with the permission of the chair,

By Order of the Board

Sd/-
Dated: June 17, 2021 Maohsin Naeem
Place: Karachi Company Secretary

Notes:
1. Notice of Book Closure:

The Share Transter Books of the Company will remain closed from July 09, 2027 to July 16, 2021 (both days inclusive), Transter
received in order by our Share Registrar, M/s. FD. Registrar Services (Pvi) Ltd. 17th Floor, Salma Trade Tower-A, L1. Chundrigar
Road Karachi-74000 at the close of business on July 08, 2027 will be considersd in time for any entitlement, 85 recommended
by the Board of Directors and for the purpose of attending the AGM.

2. Coronavirus Contingency - Participation in AGM through electronic
means

i) Inview of the Coronavirus situation, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has, vide Circular No. (4

dated February 15, 2021 directed listed companies to provide facility for attending general mestings through electronic
IMEATNS #5 & requlEar testure.

i) Considering fhe above the Gompany has made amangement to provide video-link facility to members who wish to
participation in the AGM through electronic means.

i} To attend the AGM through video-link, Members are requested to register their following particulars by sending an email at
mehsin.nassm@hum. v with sulyject "Video-Link Registration for HUM AGM

Folic / CDC Number of CNIC/ Cell/Maobils Email ID
Name of
Member (g) Acecount Shares Held Passport Number
Mumber/ Mumber
cDC
Participant 1D
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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iv)

v)

i)

v)

wi)

Thie Vicdeo link and login credentials will be shared with the Members whose emails, containing &l the required pariculars 2s
mentioned, are received al the given email address before the close of business hours 2. 06:00 p.m. on July 14, 20217,

In case any Members who wanl Lo altend Lhe AGM personally are advised Lo [ollow SOPs for COVID-19 as prescribed by he
Government.

For any queries, the Members may please contact at the atoresaid email.

Appointment of Proxies and Attending AGM:

A member eligible to attend and vote at the Mesting may appoint another member a8 hisfer proxy to attend, and vote
instead of him/her.

A blank instrument of proxy applicable for the meeling Is being provided with the nolice senl o members. Furlher copies of
the instrument of proxy may be obtained from the registersd office of the Company during normal office hours or can be
downloaded from the Company's websile.

A duly compleled instrument of proxy and the power of allorney or olher authorily (if any), under which il is signed or a
notarized cerified copy ot such power or authority must, to be valid, be deposited at the registered office not less than 48

working hours before the lme of the meeling. Allesled copies of valid CNIC or the passport of the member and the Proxy
shall be furnished with the Proxy Form,

In case of corporate antity, the Board of Directors” Besolution / Power of Attormey with specimen signature shall be
submitled with proxy form.

The owners of the physical shares and Lhe shares registered in the name of Genlral Deposilory Company of Pakistan Lid.
(CDG) and / or their proxies are required to produce their onginal Computerized National ldentity Card (CNIC) or Passport (in
case of loreign nalionals) for identification purpose al the time of allending the meetling.

CDC account holders will further have Lo foliow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1, dated January
26, 2000 Issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

A. For Attending the Meeting: B. For Appointing Proxies:

) In case of individuals, the account holder or {h In case of individuals, the account holder or
subt-pecount holder and/ or the person whose sutraceount holder and / or the person whoss
securities are In group account and thelr securities are In group account, and their
ragistration detsils are uploaded as per the rejistration detsils are uploaded sas per the
Regulations, shall authenticate his Identity by Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as
showing his orginal Computerized Nationa) per the above requirements.

Identity Card (CNIC), or original passport at
the time of attending the meaeting. (i} The proxy form shall be witnessed by two
persons whose names, addresses and CNIC

(i) In case of corporate entity, the Board of numbxers shall be mentionesd an the form.
Directors’ resolution/ power of attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee shall be (i) Attested coples of CNIC or the passport of the
produced (unless it has been provided earlier) beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
thi time of the meeting, turnishied with the proxy torm.

(iw) The proxy shall produce his orginal CNIC or
original passport at the time of meeting.

{v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of
Directors’ resolution/ power of attorney with
specimen signature shall be submitted (uniess
it has been provided esdrdier) atong with proxy
form ta the Comparny.

vii) For attending meeting through video-link, cell number and email id of proxy, shall be provided on the duly signed proxy form,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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4. Video-Conferencing Facility for attending AGM

It membars holding ten percent of the total paid up capital, are resident insny other city, the company shall provide the tfacility of

video-conferencing lo such members for allending annual general meeling of the company, if so requined by such members in
writinigg ks the company At least seven days (7) before the date of the mesting.

The: Company will intimate members reganding venue of conference facility at least 5 days before the date of general meeting
along wilh complele information necessary 1o enable them o access such facility.

Consent for Video-Conferencing Facility

I"'We, of , being a member of Hum Network
Limited, holder of ordinary share (s} as per Begister Folio/CDC Account
Mo hereby opt for video conference facility at , for

participation at the Annual General Mesting to be held on July 16, 2021 or any adjournment
thereof

Date:

Signature of member(s)

5. Change in Members Addresses:

Members are requested ta notify any changes in thelr addresses immediately to the Share Reglistrar M/s. ED. Registrar Services
(Pwt.) Lich. 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A, LI Chundrigar Boad Karachi-74000,

6. Submission of Copies of Valid CNICs/NTN:

Members are requested to submit & copy of their valid CNICs/NTN Certificates along with the folio numbers to the Company's
Share Reqgistrar,  nol already provided, otherwise payment of dividend would be withheld in lerms of section 243 of the
Companies Act, 2017 (the Act’) and clause 6 of the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2007 (the RegulationsT).

7. Availability of Financial Statements and Reports on the Website:

The: Annual Beport of the Company for the year ended June 30, 20020 has been placed on the Company's website at the below
link: httpedfwww. humnetwork tv/Annual_Financial Reports.htmi

8. Circulation of Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June
30, 2020 through CD:

The Securities and Exchangs Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO No. A70(1/2016 dated May 31, 2016, has allowed listed
companies to circulate their Annual Audited Accounts (iLe. the annual balance sheet and profil and loss account, auditor's report
and director's report) to its members through GO at their registersd addresses instesd of sending them in hard copies, subject o
approval obtained from shareholders In General Meeting. Accordingly, the company has obtained approval from members In the
12th Annual General Meeting held on October 20, 20016, Pursuant to the approval of sharaholders, as aforesaid, the Annual
Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020, are being circulated to the members through
ch.

9. Transmission of Annual Financial Statements and Reports and
notice of meeting through Email:

In terms of SRO No 787{|)/2014 dated September 8, 2014, shareholders can opt to obtain annual balance sheet and profit and
loss account, Auditor's report and directors” report efe, along with the nofice of Annual Genaral Meeting through email. The
Companies Act, 2017 also allow electronic circulation of annual financial statements and reports therean, Accordingly, we are
pleased to offer this facility to our members who desire to receive Annual Financial Statements and Notices of the Compeany
through e-mail in future,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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For the convenience of shareholders, 8 Standard Request Form has been made availabie st our website -weow humnetwork.ty,

{o opl receiving of future annual reports through email or in hard copies or otherwise reques! for any hard copy of any accounlts.
The scammed copy of the duly filled & signed form may be emailed to the Company Secretary at mohsinonasem@hum.tv or the

same can be submilled through posl/couricr lo Company's Share Registrar - Mfs. RD. Registrar Services (Pyl.) Lid. 17Lh Floor,
Saima Trade Tower-A, 11 Chundrigar Road Karachi-74000,

Meamibxers who do not provide thedr email s or request for @ hard copy shall continue to receive their future Annusl Financial
Statements and reports through CDY DVDYUSE at Lhe registered address.

10. Deduction of Income Tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001

H)  The rate of deduction of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ondinance, 2001, trom paymeant of dividend to &
NMON-FILER of income tax relumn is prescribed as 30% and for FILER of Tax Relurmns as 15%. Lisl of Filers is available at
Federal Board of Revenue's (FBR) website: httpedwww. itrgov.pk. Members are therefore advised to update their tax FILER
slalus latesl by July 08, 2021,

b} Further, acconding to clarfication received from Federal Beoard of Revenue (FBR), wilh-holding tax will be determined
separataly on Filer/Non-Filer' status of Principal shareholder a5 well as joint-holder(s) Based on their shareholding

proporions, in case of joinl accounts.

In this regard all sharcholders who hold shares jointly are requesled lo provide sharcholding proportions of Prncipal
shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to our Share Begistrar, in writing as follows:

Principal Shareholders _ Joint Holder (s)
Folio/CDC o | - {
Alc No. number Name and Shareholding Mame and Shareholding
ot sharen CNIC No. Proportion CNIC No. Proportion
(Mo. of Shares) (No. of Shares)

The required informeation most reach our Share Registrar by the close of business on July 08, 2021; otherwise it will ba
assumed Lhal the shares are equally held by Principal sharcholder and Joinl Holder(s).

¢} The corporate sharcholders having CDC accounts are required to lave Ltheir National Tax Number (NTN) updated wilh Lheir
respective participants, wheress corporate physical shareholders should send & copy of their NTN certificate to the

company or Share Registrar. The sharcholders while sending NTN or NTN cerdificales, as lhe case may be, musl guole
compaEny name and their respective folio mombers.

d)  The information received within the above specified time would enable the Company to deduct income tax at the applicatile
rales from the paymenl of dividend if announced by the Company on July 16, 2021.

¢ Members secking exemplion from deduction of income lax or deduction at a reduced rale under the relevanl provisions of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2007, Are reguested to submit &8 valid tax cerificate or necessary documentary evidence, as the

case may be, lalest by July 08, 2021,

11. E-DIVIDEND MANDATE (MANDATORY)

Under seclion 242 of Companics Acl, 2017(Acl), every listed company is required o pay dividend il any o their members
compulsarily through electronic mode by directly crediting the same in their bank account provided by them. Interms ot SRO Mo,
114502017 dated 06 Movember 2017, il is mandalory for sharcholders to provide their bank account delails Lo receive Lheir cash
tfivicend directly into their bank accounts, f&iling which the company shall be bound o withhold dividend of those membars who
do nol provide their bank details.

All members are required lo provide Lo the Company's Share Regislrar, parliculars relating lo name, folio number, bank accounl
number, fitle of account, complate mailing Address of the Bank. CDG sccount holders shoukd submit their regquest directly to theic

broker (parlicipanly/CDC. A Form is available al the Regislered Office of (he Company and the same are also placed on Lthe
Company's weabsite.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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12. Unclaimed Dividend / Shares

Pursuant to Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, any shares issued or dividend declared by the company, which remain

unctaimed or unpaid lor a period of three years from the date il became due and payabie shall vest wilh the Federal Governmenl
atter compliance of procedures prescribed under the Companies Act, 2017.

All valued mambers of the Company, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend/shares, it any, are requested to contact

Company's Share Registrar, Lo file their claims wilh Company's Share Registrar for any unclaimed dividend or shares oulslanding
in thelr name.

In compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated procedure, all such dividend

oulslanding for a period of 3 years or mare from the dale due and payable shall be deposited o the Federal Government in case
of unclaimed dividend and in case of shares, shall be deliverad to the SECP

13. Conversion of physical shares into book-entry form

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 20017 every existing company shall be required to replace its physical shares with

book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the dale nolified by the Gommission, wilthin a peried nol exceeding
four years from the commencaement of the Companies Act, 2017,

The shareholders having physical shares are encouragaed o convert their physical shares into book-entry form by depositing

shares inlo Cenlral Deposilory Company Pakislan Limiled by opening CDC sub-accounl wilh any broker or inveslor accounis
directly with CDC.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Pattern Of Shareholdig

As on June 30, 2020

Number Of Shareholders

From

Shareholding Slab

Total Shares Held

a74 1 To 100 8,175
394 101 To 500 180,133
399 Hin To 10400 483,521
836 1001 To 2000 2,466,003
331 500 To 10000 2,728,577
97 10001 To 15000 1,259,407
HH 1500 To 20000 1,659,910
o3 20001 To 23000 1,243,936
33 2500 To 30000 929,700
22 30001 To 35000 741,500
14 dh0Mm Ta AO0000 Hdh, 100
9 40007 To 45000 391,500
24 4300 To 20000 1,188,250
8 50001 To 55000 420,000
14 ah0om Ta GO000 BG, 560
4 BO0M To Ga000 257,500
9 63007 To 70000 £18,800
G 7000 To 75000 443,003
3 Taim To BO000 235,000
3 HO0m To Ha000 247,000
2 8200 To 90000 180,000
90001 To 95000 376,000
10 95001 To 100000 999,700
3 100007 Ta TO5000 305,500
1 10300 To 110000 106,000
3 11000 To 115000 341,000
| 115001 To 120000 118,500
1 1 :l!]i'_][:l'l Ta 135000 133,500
1 140001 To 145000 142,000
3 143007 To 150000 450,000
1 150001 To 155000 155,000
i 155007 To THEO000 158,950
1 1700m To 175000 174,000
4 18200 To 190000 756,000
. 195001 To 200000 400,000
1 205007 To 210000 207 500
2 2100Mm Ta 2715000 A25H,500)
1 21500 To 220000 219,850
2 245001 To 250000 500,000
| 25000 To 255000 251,000
1 2700Mm Ta 275000 273,000
\ 1 280001 To 285000 283,500 /

o
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Number Of Shareholders Erom Sharshoiding Siab 5 Total Shares Held
2 295001 To 300000 600,000
| 300001 To 305000 f 305,000
1 1500 To 20000 419,500
1 325001 To 330000 326,000
1 355001 To 360000 357,750
| 395001 To 400000 | 400,000
1 5100017 To 215000 | 515,000
i 520001 To 525000 : 524,900
i 525001 To 530000 _ 526,500
| 545001 To 550000 " 550,000
1 S5000017 To Bh5n000 | Hh2 000
i 630001 To 635000 ' 633,150
i 735001 To 740000 739,000
| 745001 To 750000 ' 750,000
1 910007 To 9715000 974,500
1 Sa00017 To Sa5000 860,200
1 995001 To 1000000 1,000,000
| 1015001 To 1020000 | 1,017,060
i 1570007 To 1HTH000 1,573,000
1 1555007 To TEO0000 1,600,000
i 1650001 To 1655000 ' 1,653,750
| 1895001 To 1900000 : 1,900,000
t 2660001 To 2665000 2,660,500
1 4375001 To SAE0000 3,375,187
i 11595001 To 11600000 11,600,000
1 15095001 To 15100000 | 15,100,000
| 18995001 To 19000000 ’ 19,000,000
1 23715007 To 2AT20000 | 23,718,500
i 25995001 To 26000000 26,000,000
1 26585001 To 26590000 26,587,500
1 31995001 To 32000000 [ 32,000,000
1 S08ES0MN To SOHTO000 all,BBS,620)
1 B&540007 To BH945000 Ha,942 500
i 79030001 To 79035000 79,030,303
1 125025001 To 125030000 T 125,027,200
1 195705001 To 1957710000 [ 195,709,500
1 22E49600017 To A2EYE5000 226,961,490
2806 -' 945,000,000 )
HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Additional Information

As of June 30, 2020

Shareholders' Category Shareholders  Shares Held | Pem-entage!

Directors and their Spouse(s) and Minor Children |

Duraid Qureshi 3 229,622,000 24.30 |

Sultana Siddiqui 2 219,860 0.02

Mazhar Ul Haq Siddiqui ;| 10 0.00

Mehtab Akbar Rashdi 1 10 0.00

Asif Yasin Malik 1 10 0.00

Sohail Ansar 1 1,000 0.00

Shunaid Qureshi 1 50,865,620 5.38

Hasan Rezaur Rahim i 500 0.00

MNabigha Nasser Masood 1 10 0.00

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties - - -

Executives 3 566,750 0.06

Public Sector Companies and Corporations - - -

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking

Finance Companies, Insurance,

Takaful, Modaraba and Pension Funds 4 117,467,803 12.43
_Mutual Funds -
| Trustee NBP Stock Fund 1 1,573,000 0.17 |
_General Public .
| a. Local 2740 58,733,696 B.22

b. Foreign 2 21,500 0.00

Foreign Companies T 414,736,700 43.89

Others a7 71,191,531 7.53

Totals 2806 945,000,000  100.00

Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest Share Held Percentage

Mr. Duraid Qureshi 229,622,000 24.30

Kingsway Fund-frontier Consumer Franchises 195,709,500 20.71

Stichting General Holdings 125,027,200 13.23

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Corporate Calendar

MEETINGS DATE

Audit Committes Meeting to considar and approve the annual audited Accounts of the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2019 Cct 01, 2019

Board of Direclors Mecling Lo consider the annual audited accounts of the Company
for the year ended June 30, 20713 Oct 01, 2019

| 15th Annual General Meeting ta consider accounts of the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2019 Oct 25, 2019

Audit Committes Meeting to consider accounts of the Company tor the Quarter ended
| September 30, 2019 Dct 25, 2019

Board of Direclors Mecling Lo consider accounts of the Company for the Quarer
ended Saeptember 30, 2019 Oct 26, 2019
| |
Human Resource and Remuneration Committee Meeting to consider and discuss the
cosl-culling measures including the right sizing of the employees in different departmenls February 28, 2020

Audit Committes Meeting to consider accounts of the Company tor the Quarter
ended December 31, 2019 February 28, 2020

Board of Direclors Meeling lo consider accounis of the Company {or the Quarier
ended December 37, 2019 _ February 28, 2020

Audit Committee Meating to consider accaunts of the Company for the Quarter ended
March 31, 2020 April 30, 2020

Board of Directors Meating to consider accounts of the Company tor the Quarter ended
March 31, 2020 April 30, 2020
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Six Years At A Glance

Key Financial Data

OPERATING DATA

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Revenuo-Nel 3,721.047006 3,042 824 450 4 643848317 4600478886 3970099138 3679468088
Cost of production (1, 791.616,731) (2.313.660,029) (2,669,283.288) (2853.147.800) (3.495.240,846) (2,756,142,547)
Iraresimission Cost (E4,207 837) (86,465, 857) (86,925,178} (177,878,025  (193,223,194)  (139,069.102)
Grogs profit 1845228528  1,542.698,564 1.B87,.439,851 1,578.453,061 290,635,008 784,256,439
PROFIT/[LOSS) AFTER TAXATION
ProfitfLoss) before taxation 1.032,669,083 T73,237,29 1,085,402,036 812,155,067 (454,725,557)  (136,120,065)
Taxation (*B5.418,132) {#36,301,365) B0,018,858) (B2 661,578) (81,157 536) 22 BA1,574
Profit/{l oss) atter taxation 747,250,851 536,875,926 1,015,3082,978 778,483 488 (535,883,000  (113,23R,481)
Financial Ratios

2015 2018 2017 2018 2019 2020
Current Hatio 1.73 1.80 507 4.68 225 2.85
Quick ratin 1.73 1.80 5.06 465 2.24 2R3
Diabt! Fouity Ratio 1 4] 0.26 .01 031 .53 .44
Cash flow par shara- Rs. (Re-stated)” 0.0 0.01 .40 018 016 0,15
Reaturn on aquity - % 44.72 76.28 a3.20 18.75 (16.87) (A.71})
Share Prica par ghara - Rs. [(Re-gtated)* 16.08 10.28 11.74 /.08 317 12.55
Braak-up valus par share - R=. (Ra-stated)* 1,77 206 3.24 381 3.34 A.23
Gross Profit to Sales - % 40.50 3913 4065 3424 730 21.3
Cost of Production To Sales- % 4814 5868 by 48 61,90 Ar.84 4.9
Administralive Exponses (0 Salos - %% 11.10 11.04 12.02 11.50 12,54 12.91
Ml profit / (Loss) 1o Sales - % 20,08 13.62 21.87 15.83 (13.47) (3.08)
Intercst Cover - numbor of bmes 48.86 21.25 5830 2838 (227 043
Dabtors Tumover (number of days) B 117 127 138 161 173
Price earning ratio (He-stated)” 20,35 18.09 10.93 10.48 (5.59) (104.73)
Turn Over to Total Asset Ratio 1.36 1.24 1.33 086 71 077
Earning/iLoss) per share Ha, (He-stated)” 0.79 0.57 1.07 077 (0.57) (0.12)

*Calculated using 945,000,000 Shares
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Graphical Presentation

Analysis of Statement of Financial Position and Profit & Loss Account
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Break-up of Revenue Streams
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Building a better
working world

Independent Auditors’ Review Report
To the members of HUM Network Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (lhe Regulations), prepared by lhe Board of Direclors of HUM Network Limiled (the Company) for the year
ended 30 June 2020 in accordance with the requirements of requiation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our respansibility is to
review whether the Stalement of Compliance rellects the slalus of the Company's compliance wilh the provisions of Lthe
Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review s
limited primarily (o inguiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company Lo comply
with the Regulations.,

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal contral
syslems sulficient Lo plan the audil and develop an effective audil approach. We are nol required 1o consider whether the Board
of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
conlrols, the Company’s corporale governance procedures and risks,

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Commities,
place betore the Boarnd of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions, We are only required and have
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not
appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as
Applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2020.

Sdf-
Ey Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi
Date: June 16, 2021

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Statement Of Compliance With The Listed
Companies (Code Of Corporate Governence)
Regulations, 2019 (“The Regulations”)

HUM Metwork Limited (“the Company”)
for the year ended June 30, 2020

The ﬁ{}l'l'lr_:-al'l"_.." has complied with the requireaments of the Rn-}l_'_;l_llﬁr-r'l."l-_"- in the following mannear

1. The total of number of directors are 09 as per the tollowing (As 8t June 30,2020)

Male Six (6)

Female Three (3)

2. The compaosition of the board s as follows (As at June 30, 2020):;

Independent director Mr. Sohail Ansar
Ms. Mabigha Nasser Masood

Mon-executive directors Mr. Mazhar ul Hag Siddigui
Mr. Shunaid Qureshi
Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi
Lt. Gen.(R) Asif Yasin Malik
Mr. Hassan Reza-ur-Hahim

Executive directors Ms. Sultana Siddigui
Mr. Duraid Qureshi

Female directors Ms. Sultana Siddigui
Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi

\ Ms. Nabigha Nasser Masood I,-'I

3 The directors have confirmed that none of them Is serving as a Director on more than seven listed companies, Including

this Company;

4. The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken {o disseminate i

throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures:
5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporale stralegy and significan! policies of the Company.
The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their dates of approval or

upsdating ks maintained by the Company;

6. All lhe powers of lhe Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matlers have been taken by Board /

Shareholders as empowerad by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and these Regulations;

The meelings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman. The Board has complied wilth the requirements of the Act

and the RGI’}'.:I-HH'JIL‘S with respect to frequency, recarding and circulating minutes of mesating of Board;

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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H.  The Board has @ formal policy and transparent procedures for remuoneration of directors in accordance with the Act and the

Regulations;
9. The Company Is compliant with the requirements of Directors' Tralning Program provided in these Requlations. All the
Directors except one have either attended the required training in prior years or stand exempted, as per criteria mentioned

in the Code;

10. The Board has approved appaintment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including

their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with requirements of the Regulations;
1. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board,

12. The Board has lormed commillees comprising of members given below:

a.  Audit Committea b. Human Resource and Remuneration Committea
Mr. Sohail Ansar = Chairman (Independent) Mr. Sohail Ansar = Chairrman (Independent)
Mr. Shunaid Qureshi (Non-Executive) Ms. Sullana Siddiqui (Executive)
Mrs. Mahlab Akbar Rashdi (Mon-Execulive) Mrs, Mahtab Akbar Rashdi (Mon-Excculive)

Lt. Gen. (R) Asif Yasin Mallk {Non-Executive)

14, The terms of reference of the sforessid committess have besn formed, documented and advised to the committes for
compliance,;

14. The frequency of the mestings of the commitiees were a8 follows:

a. Audit Committee — Four {(4) quarterly meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 2020,
b. Human Resource and Remuneration Committee — One (1) meeting during the financial year ended June 30, 2020,

15. The Board has sel up an elfeclive internal audit funclion and has also oulsourced the internal audil funclion lo M/s. KPMG
Tasesr Hadi & Co, Chartered Avcountants who are considered suitably qualified amnd experenced for the purpose and ae
conversant wilh Ihe policies and procedures of the Company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality
Control Review program of the Institute of Chartersd Accountants of Pakistan and registerad with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, thal they and all Iheir pariners are in compliance with Intermational Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on
code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm
irvalved in the Aaudit are not 8 close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chiet executive

officer, chief financial officer, head of inlernal audil, company secrelary or direclor of the company,

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in
accondance with the Act, these Regulations ar any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they
have observed IFAC guidelines in Lhis regard,;

18, We confirrm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with.

For & on behall of Board of Direclors

S -

" ( .
A
DURAID QURESHI Date: June 14, 2021 MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIGQUI
Chiaf Executive Place: Karachi Chairman & Director

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Chairman’s Report on
Board’s Overall

| {} Performance
Mazhar-ul-Haq Siddiqui (Under Section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2017)

A Board ot Directors (BOD) forms the highest level of autharity in the governance of 4 company and includes elected individuals
who represent the interest of the sharcholders. They ensure thal the stralegic decisions of the Chiel Excoultive Officer (CEQ) besl
protect and benetit every stakeholder of the Company. Under the guldance and scruting of a BOD, the CEQ strategically aligns
resources (o achiove the company objectives in the most efficienl way.

Accountability

The BOD becomes fiscally accountable. Il sets the dividends paid o the sharcholders and how much fund is reinvested inlo the
company from the undistributed reserves of the Company. Furthermore, BOD members ensure that the financial disclosures &
accurate and truly represent the affairs of the company. This accountability Is enforced by the International Financial Reporting
Slandard (IFRS), Companics Acl, 2017, Listling Regulations and olhers relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities

Thix BOD reviews the programs sclecled by the CEO Lhat are most likely Lo achieve the financial objectives set for the company.
This scrutiny includes the invesiment decisions made by the company's executive team, and the expendilures required to
supporl Lhe efforls. This power extends 1o choosing the Chiel Executive Olficer who can besl perform Lhe dulies and sel the
compensation level for this position.

Legal Duties
A board member is trusted with fiduciary responsibiliies which encompass three legal duties: care, loyalty and obedience. A
board member must acl in good failh and for the inlerest of the sharcholders and 1he organization. A board member must also

keap the good of the arganization in mind and not base the decision on personal interests, and finally, a board member must obey
Ihe policies slaled in the aricles of association of the Company and Lhe regulation of the induslry.

Risk Management

In light of the accountabilily Lo the sharcholders, the BOD frequently weighs company's risks of missing lhe corporate objectives
and the consequences that this would have on dividend distribution, or financial return to the company. Mitigation measures
developed by the CED enler the portiolio of strategic decisions that the company pursues and are reviewed by the BOD.

Qualifications

In the election of Direclors, members who have been elecled are well known business professionals who add real value 1o the
Board through their expertise, experlence and strong value systems.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Further, an annual evaluation of the Board of Director's averall performance |s conducted to in compliance with the requirement
of the Code of Corporate Governance and the Companies Act, 2017,

The immediale objeclive of evaluation s conlinuous governance improvemenl — idenlilying board performance improvement
opportunities and governance framework gaps.

Specific and/or long-term objectives may include developing team work, better decision making, Improving the effectiveness of
meelings, gaining grealer clarily of roles. The overall asscssmenl was based on an evaluation of the following integral
componants:

. How well has the Board done its jJob?

. How well has the Board conducted itself?

. Board's refationship with Executive Director?
. Performance of Individual Board members,
. Feedback to the Chair of the Board.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2020, the Board's overall performance and effectiveness has been assessed as
‘Salisfactory’ in achieving Company's objeclives. I1's also important o highlight the key role played by the Commillees (Audil
Committee, Human Resource and Remuneration Committes) In underscoring and directing towards areas of Improvements and
recommending practical solulions

On an overall basis, | believe Lhat the strategic direction of the organization for the long term is clear and appropriate. Furlher, the
processes adopted in developing and reviewing the overall corporate strategy and achievement of organization's objectives are
commendable which are truly reflecied by the current financial resulls and performance of Lhe organization.

/..

(.~ §

Mr. Mazhar-ul-Haq Siddiqui
Chairman of the Board
Date: June 14, 2021

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Hum Network Limited (HNL) present the Annual Report together with the Gompany’s audited financial statement
for the yvear ended 30 June 2020,

Financial Performance

During the cumrent year nel revenue of the Company has been decreased by Bs. 300 million mainly due Lo economic instabilily
And political uncertainty. Some signs of economic recovery emergead towards the end of the calendar year, but was cut short with

the appearance of the COVID-19 pandemic.

However, gross profil of the Company has been increased by Rs., 494 million compared Lo lasl inancial year resulling in gross
profit mangin of 21.3% (FY2019: 7.49%). The reason of significant increase was mainly due to efficient cost managament

slrategies and effeclive ocost cultings which resulled in maintaining the cost within the required paramelers.

The overall loss per share of the Company has been reduced from 0.57 Lo 0.12 compared Lo lasl financial year.

Principal Activities

HHML is undeubledly one of the leading media nelworks of Pakislan and has predominantly been an enlertainmenl provider (or
more than & decade now, HUM is already Pakistan's most admired media brand, and our content reaches millions of peaple
through our domestic and inlemational bouguel of channets and multiple distrbution platiorms worldwide, hlms, digital, prinl
media & live events. Broadeasting portiolio consists of satelliite channats namely HUM TV, HUM News, HUM Sitaray, HUM
Masala and HUM World (including separate beams lor North America, UK & Middles Easl).

The External Environment

The oulbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in Pakislan caused signihcanl dislurbance and slowdown of
econornic activity. In many countries, businesses were being forced to cease or limit their operations for long or indefinite periods
of time. Measures laken Lo conlain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and closures of
nev-essentiAl services have triggered significant disrmuptions to businesses worldwide, resulting in an economic slowdown, The
Company demonsiraled its abilily & polenlial o stay ahead of the industry, wilh a sharp locus on keeping its viewers enlerained
and well imormed during these times of crisis.

HML implemented stnct measures al its offices to combal and reduce the spread of virus as Lhe health and well-being of the stafl
is of paramount importance to HNL. In line with the guidelines issued by the Government, the Company implemented key
measures across every louch point to safeguard its Human Gapital. HNL has always been agile in adapting lo change, which
made the transition to ‘Work from Home' operations swift and smooth, ensuring minimal disruption to the viewers and
maintaining business continuily. All meelings across business verlicals and funclions were conducled scamlessly, wilh oplimal
utilization of digital solutions. We ensured that the employees had access to all critical business appilcations with undisrupted
support while working from home, wilh zero compromise on dala and conlentl securily. Strong proaclive sleps were laken in
transforming the workspace, keeping social distancing norms at the fore. All the necessary safety and hyglene protocols were
followed for the onlical verticals funclioning from office, including allernale sealing arrangements, implementing a clean desk
policy and temperature screening at all entry points. Frequent sanitization of all surfaces was maintained, and hand sanitizers
were placed al all stralegic localions within the office premises.

Achievements & Recognition

Conlinuing ils position since 2017, in 2019 as well HUM TV won Lhe award for the Besl Urdu Channel of the Year in “Asian Viewers
Television Awards-2019" held In Landon-LIK,

Operational Performance

Despite pricing challenges and overall downward trend in the Industry, the network maintained and grew its dominance.

Hum Tv

HUM TV has always been unique in presenting topics that highlight social issues to bring awareness amongst people. Its
approach in presenling such lopics while mainlaining the entertainment factor makes il popular nol only in Pakistan bul
throughout the world. This year we continued to offer viewers with the best of Pakistani dramas like "Khaas”, Ishq Zahe Naseeb”,
“¥eh Dil Mera®, “Pyar K¢ Sadgay”, “Sabaal” elc. which were highly apprecialed by the audiences.
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During the panod, & mega project “Ehd-e-Wata™ in collaboration with Iiter Services Public Relations was 8 mesmerizing blend of

friendship, love, sacriices, palriotism and fun allogelher. This mulli-stamer projecl was a massive hil and received overwheliming
response from the audience.

Hum News
HUM News is continuously making its mark among the news genre of Pakistan. HUM News has engaged the audience with its

informalive talk shows, delailed news bulletins and news alerls presenled by renowned anchorpersons. Allthough in its nascent
stage, HUM News has created huge impact by its reporting, programming and investigative pieces.

Hum Sitaray
The first 24 hours cooking channel HUM Masala, being an integral part of every household, has added {o its content a series of

new cooking #nd informative shows indroducing many different ecipes, cooking expers, professionsl chets and heslth
consultants which have been overwhelmed by food mavens.

The first 24 hours cooking channel HUM Masala, being an integral part of every household, has added o its conlenl a senes of
new cooking and informative shows introducing many different recipes, cooking expers, professional chets and heslth

consultants which have been overwhelmed by food mavens.

Hum Films

Under the banner of HUM Films, blockbusler movies like “Bin Roye™ and "Parwaaz Hai Junoon” have conlribuled Lo the revival
of cinema in Pakistan.

During the period, another blockbuster movie “Superstar” was launched which turned out to be a massive hit and people
conlinued o flock lo cinemas throughoul Eid.

Digital Media Division

Digital Media has continued its consistent growth in the year 2019-20. One of the major breakthroughs includes significant
growth on social media platforms (Facebook, Instagram, Twitter and YouTube) following the implementation of revamped Social
Media Stralegy. Another milestone is the major digital sponsorship by huge brands like Kashmir, Singer Pakistan, Master Painls
and OPPO for Hum Awards and Dramas.,

Direct sales (local web advertisers) have been another business avenue that has grown significantly this year as we have open
opporiunilies for digital sponsorship.

Events & Brand Activation

Ower the last decade HML has played a key role in supporting and developing the drama, fashion, food and music industry in
Pakistan.

Hum Awards
Arguably Pakistan's most glamorous awards ceremony, the *Hum Awards 2019', was held in Houston, United Stales in October
2019, Boasting a night of glitz and glamaour, extravagant performances and 7 star-studded list of sttendees; Hum Awards 2019

was indead a dazzling affair. In future as well, HUM Network aims to hold the awards and other events internationally to portray
the soft image of Pakistan to Audience oversess.

Bridal Couture Week (BCW)

The 17th edition of the Pakistan's biggest and most sought-after bridal fRshion show, the Bridal Couture Week, 2009 was hald in

Lahore in December 2019.The bridal exlravaganza presenled the lalest bridal Irends by established and emerging fashion
designers. The event has continued o excead expectations with each passing show.

Hum Style Awards

The 4th edition of the Hurn Style Awards was held in January 2020 with a focus on style and entertainment that aimed to not only
showoase the industry in the best light possible but also o reward excellence.
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Masala Family Festival
Pakistan's biggest and much-anticipated festival, Masala Family Festival was organized al Lahore in November 2019 and at

Karachi in February 2020 which included musical performances, magic and comedy segmenls, live cooking demonstralions,
dance and singing competitions and a chance to meet their favourite celebrity chefs.

Hum Women Leaders Awards

In anather landmark step, HML aimed to honour and celebrate iconic women from acrass the country and abroad In a ceremaony

that has no equal at the moment, The naugural edition of "HUM Women Leaders Award™ patronized by the President of Pakistan
in February 2020 was an 2vent that would be remembered for a long time because of its grandeur, its elegance and bringing
people from different fields and appreciating their contritution in their respective fieglids.

Hum Social Media Awards

COVID=-19 has also changed the way the awands are held. The first-ever digital award was held in October 2020, it was 8 show
different from the many award shows held all the year round is Lhe facl lhal HUM Social Media Awards 2020 was the lamgest
internationally recognized social media platform, Not only it was the first digitally based award show that has Facebook onboarnd,
il is also [he firsl one lo recognize deserving individuals working in different ficlds on the basis of their social media presence,

Human Resource Management

The Nelwork views ils human resource as lhe mosl valuable assel and pays special allention towards developing an almosphene
which fosters growth, high performance, adherence to organizational values and business ethics.

Core Values

HUM Metwork Limited s continoooasly striving to provide an enabling corporate and social work environmsent to its employees
as this helps them to work In complete harmany in a healthy and professional way.
For this very purposs the HUM Network Family has developad the following core valuas.

Integrity & Honesty

Respect for All
Commitment/Dedication’ Ownership
Accountability & Objectivity

Teeam Work

Disclipline

Safety/Health & Hygiene

o Ll ho

We adhers to the above core values in &l the initiatives that we undertake as this helps in promoting & culbure of faimess,
objectivity and teamwork.

Risk Management

The Company has a robust Risk Management framework Lo identify, measure and miligale business risks and opporiunitics. This

tramework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on fhe business objective and enhance the Company’s
compelitive advanlage. This risk framework Lhus helps in managing markel, credil and operalions risks and quantifies exposune
And potential impact at a Company level,

Corporate Social Responsibility

During this COVID-19 crisis, HNL being a socially responsible organization launched the *"HUMDARD" initiative for the segment
of the socicly thal were mosl effecled by lockdown and needed immediate support comprising of daily wage workers, strect
vendars or peaple who have lost jobs due to business closuras, As a part of the HUMDARD Initiative, the HUM Family contributed
one day's salary o a special fund and the Company also confribuled an equal amounl to the alerementioned fund. Many
comorate organisations also joined HML in this noble cause,

HUM News also organized a telethon to raise awareness for the cause and collection of funds which was a huge success.

Employee Training & Development

As part of our annual appraisal exercise, each employes is assessed and counseled on individual basis. Tralning sessions are
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aArranged on the basis of needs identified which creates growth opportunities tor employees and provide os with bighly motivateod
and lrained resource,

Global Reach

The fifth edition of the Pakislan's biggest cricketing evenl, the “Pakistan Super League” was broadcasted exclusively in UK on
HUM Masala Europe which broke the rating records. In order to increase |ts footprint globally, HNL cantinued to expand its
conlenl syndication.

Magazines And Publications

During the year the Company discontinued publication of Newsling Magazine and Glam 360 Magazine, however, the Company
continues to publish Masala Tv Food Mag.

The decision to discontinue the publication was based on the shift In the consumer trend from print medium to digital medium
ardd the Company has projected that these contents are more profitabile on digital plattorm as compared to printed pulsication.

Election Of Directors

The: term of Board expired on August 22, 2020 and fresh election was scheduled for August 2020, Since the number of eligitle
candidales were equal (o the number of direclors fixed for election, the Company made the announcement on Augusl 13, 2020
under section 159(4) ot the Companies Act, 2017, The aforesaid election of directors was questioned by the ineligible candidates,

Consequently, the elecled direclors also filed Suil. The Honourable Sindh High Courl through Order dated; 21.08.2020 has
directed the Company that the elections scheduled to be held on August 22, 2020 would be postponed and reschedoled subject

Lo Lhe final decision by Lhe learned single Judge of CMA No. 6787 of 2020 in Suil No. 968/2020.

Reasons For Delay Of Accounts

As delailed above, the eleclion of directors was subjudiced and the aforesaid orders were slill in-force, the management of the
Company was nat In a position to prejudge the outcome of the cases and call a board meeting for approval of the financial
slatements.

In this regard, the Company soughl clarification rom Securilics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan as well as filed an
application before the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh as to whether the Company can hold a board meeting for the approval of the
financial statemenl and convening the annual general meeting

On thal the Commission has provided clarification that the previous board can conlinue 1o acl in the performance of ils funclions.
The aforesaid letter of the Commission has been placed on the record of the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh during the hearing on
May 24, 20271 and was laken on record by the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh in the presence of the counsels of the parlies,

In view of Lhe aforesaid, lhe Company proceeded wilh the relaled formalities to convene a meeling of the exisling board in order
for approval of the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020 and convening the annual general meeting for laying
lhese linancial stalemenls before the shancholders.,

Future Prospects & Challenges

As the second wave aof COVID-19 continues to spread rapidly sround the world, the global economy is under pressure, This has
also impacted the fragile economy of Pakistan. Howeaver, the government of Pakistan s taking various economics measures o
stabilise the economy and it is expected that Pakistan will overcome this economic pain in the coming peariods.

HML s clossly monitoring the situation and like other sectors of the economy, we are expecting the advartising market sl=o bo be
under pressure, However, our business and financial strategies, and the operational decisions are designed to move HNL from
strength to strength, and to ensure that ifs independaence is preserved in 8 sustainable way during these economic crisis,

Our business and financial strtegies, and the operstional decision that stem from susteinability of business leadership in the
competitive environment, concentration on additional revenues from digitisation, rationalisation on costs across different heads,
strerugthening our expansion in the international markets, minimising risks and genersting evenues from different avenues. These
strateqgies are designed to mave HNL trom strength to strength, and to ensure that its independence [s preserved in a sustainable way.

Credit Rating

The Pakistan Credil Raling Agenoy Limited (PACRA) maintained the long-term and shorl-lerm entily ralings of Hum Nelwork
Limited at "A+" and "A17, espectively. These mtings denote & low expectation of credit sk and the network’s established market
position,
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Board Composition & Remuneration

Compaosition of the Board and the names of members of Bosard Committess may be eferred to Statement of Compliance with
CCG al Page No 26

Furlhermore, the Board of Direclors has a formal policy and lransparcnl procedures for remuneralion of ils direclors in
accondance with Companies Act 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Gorporste Governance) Regulations 20019,

Pattern Of Shareholding

Pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2020 is annexed with the annual report.

Meeting Of The Directors

During the: yesr, tour (4) Board of Directors, four (4) Audit Committes meetings and one (1) Human Besource & Remuneration (HA
& R) Commillee meelings were held. Allendance by each Dircclor was as lollows:

Name of Director | Board of Directors | Audit Committee | HR&R
Attendance Attendance Committee

Mr. Mazhar-ul-Hagqg Siddigui 4 = E
Ms. Sultana Siddiqui 3 = 1

Mr. Schail Ansar 4 4 1
Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi 4 4 1

Mr. Shunaid Qurashi 3 3 s
Mz, Nabigha Nassar Masood 4 = -

Lt. Gen. (R) Asif Yasin Malik 3 4 -

Mr. Duraid Qureshi 4 = -
Mr. Hasan Reza-ur-Rahim 3 - o

Auditors

The present auditors Messer EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants shall refire and may be considered for re-appointment for
the year 2020-21.

Corporate Governance And Financial Reporting Framework

s+  The financial statements, prepared by the management of the company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operalions, cash flows and changes in equily,
Proper books of accounts have besn maintained by the Company.
Appropriate accounting policics have been consistently applied in preparation of inancial slalements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent Judgment
. Inlernalional Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial
statements.
The syslem of intemal conlrol is sound i design and has been effeclively implemented and monilored.
There are no significant doubts upan the Company's abllity to continue as a going concern.
There has been no malerial departure from the besl praclices of corporale governance, as delailed in the listing requiations.
There has been no departure from the best practices of transfer pricing.
Outstanding laxes and levies are given in the Moles Lo the Financial Statemenl.
Trading of Shares by the Chief Executive Officer, Directors, Chief Financial Otficer and Company Secretary, their spouse and
minor children:
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Acquisition Transfer
CEO - =
Director - 582,000
CFO & Company Secretary . &
Spouses & Minor Children " "

Dividend And Appropriations

Based on these results, the Board announced a final cash dividend of Re. NIL per share (Le. MIL %:).

June 14, 2027
Karachi
3
IIF -
> [ =
e ————
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI
Chief Executive Chairman & Director
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Report Of The Directors On Consolidated
Financial Statements

On behall of the Board of Direclors, we are pleased (o submil the Annual Consolidated Financial Stalements along wilh the
Auditors Report thereon tor the year ended June 30, 2020

The Gmoup consists of another wholly owned local subsidiary Skyline Publications (Private) Limited and three wholly owned
[oreign subsidiaries i US, UK and UAE namely HUM TV Inc., Hum Nelwork UK Limited and HUM Network FZ-LLGC respectively.
Another subsidiary by the name of HUM Mart (Private) Limited is an entirely different field Le an e-commeree operationsg by the

brand name of Hum Mart.

The group recorded revenue of Bs. 4,645 million and loss afler lax of Rs. 247 million for the linancial year ended 2020. The results
transiate into Inss per share of Re, 0,20,

The Directors’ Report on HUM Network Limited for the year ended June 30, 2020 has been separately presented in the annual
repord

June 14, 2021
Karachi
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DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI
Chisef Executive Chairman & Director
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Code of Conduct

1. Introduction

The provisions of this code as set forth in sections 1 to 15 are mandatory, and tull compliance s expected under all
circumslances.

Every direclor and every employee is responsible for complying wilh this code. Direclors/Employees unceriain aboul the
application or interpretation of any legal requirements should refer the matter to their supervisor or to the Board, who, i

necessary, should seck appropriale legal advice.

Failure to comply wilh the code could resull in severe conseguences for both the individual and the company. The company will
impose appropriate discipling which may include dischame for violation of the code. Furthermore, conduct that violates the code

may also violale federal or provincial law and could subject both the company and Lhe individual o prosccutions and legal
sanctions.

2. Conflicts Of Interest:

The Company expects that directors/employess will perform their duties conscientiously, honeastly, and in accordance with the

besl interests of the Company. Direclors/Employvees must nol use their posilions or the knowledge gained as a resull of Lheir
positions tor private or personal advantage. Regandiess ot the ciroumstances, it dirrctorsfemployess sense that 8 course of

aclion they have pursucd, or are presently pursuing, or are conlemplating pursuing may involve them in a conflict of interest with
their amployer, they should immediately communicate all the facts to their supervisor or to e Board.

3. Gifts And Entertainment

Employees shall not an behalt of the company, turmish directly or indirectly, expensive gifts or provide excessive enferfainment or
benclils lo olher persons,

Employees whose dulies permil them (o do so, may furnish modesl gifts, lavors and enlerainment Lo persons olher than public
officials, provided all of the following critera are met:

i.  The gitts are not in form of cash, Bonds or other negotiable securifies and are of limited value so a8 not to be capable of
Baing interpreted as a bribe, payoff or other improper payment;

il. they are made as a matter of general and accepted business practice;
fil. they do not contravene any [aws and are made in accordance with generally accepted ethical practices; and
iv. if subsequently disclosed to the public, their provision would not in any way embarrass the company or the reciplents.

For example, reasonable expenses of the entertainment of current or prospective business associates or customers are
permissible by employees whose dulics embrace the providing of such enlertainment, provided prior approval from the
supervisor [s obtained and proper accounting s made.

4. Relationships With Clients And Suppliers

Employeas should avoid investing in or acquiring a financial interast for thelr own accounts in any business organization that has
a contractual refationship with the Company, or thal provides goods or services, or both, (o the Company if such investmenl ar
interest could influence ar create the impression of influencing their decisions in the performance of their duties on behalf of the
Company.

5. Public Officials

All dealings between employees or dirgclors of the company and public officials should be ransparcnl,

Even the appearance of impropriety in dealing with public officials is improper and unacceptable. Any participation directly ar
indirectly, in any bribes, kickbacks, illegal graluilies indirecl conlributions or similar payments is expressly forbidden, whelher or
not they might further the business Interest of the company. Maintenance of a high standard of integrity Is of the utmost
importance lo the company.

Since the furnishing, on behall of the company, of even an inexpensive gift or a modest enlertainment or benehl Lo a public official

may be apen to the interpretation that it was furnished lllegally to secure the use of his/her influence as public official, no such
qift, entertainment or benelil may be furnished by an employee or direclor,
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6. Political Contributions

The use of the company’s funds, goods or services as contribotions to political parties, candidates or campaigns is specifically
torbidden.

Contributions include money or anything having value, such as loans, services, entertainment, trips and the use of the company’s
faciities or assets,

7. Personal Gain

Employess and Directors shall not use their status to oblain personal gain from those doing or seeking to do business with the
company.

Except as hereinafter provided, employees and directors should neither seek nor accept gifts, payments, services, fees, special
valuatie privileges, pleasure or vacation trips or accommodations or loans frim any persons (except, inthe case of loans, from
persons in the business of lending and then only on conventional terms) or from any Company or group that does or s seeking
to do business with the company or any of s athiliates, or from &8 competitor of the company or any of its affiliates. However,
employeas and directors may accept modest gifts, favors or entertainment upto the maximum limits prescribed by the Board of
Directors of the Company from time to time provided that doing so is consistent with the tests relating to the furnishing of gifts
set forth In Section 3.

8. Inside Information

Employees and Directors shall not use for their own financial gain or disclose for the use of others, inside information obtained
s A result of their position within the company.

Employees and Directors may find themselves in violation of the applicable securities laws if they misuse information not
generally known to the public and either trade or induce others to trade in the stock of the company or In the stock of another
company. Specific confidential information would  include financial information,  information concerning  acquisitions or
dispositions of properties and proposed acquisition or mergers with ather companies.

In furtherance of this palicy, the company has adopted a statement of policy regarding insider trading, which each director, officer
and employes who has access to matenis=l non=public intformeation will be requested to sign.

9. Disclosure Of Confidential Information

Cerlain records, reporls, papers, processes, plans and methods of the company or Lo which the company has been permitled
Access dre considered to be secret and confidential by the company or the pary who has permitied access thereto, and

employees and Direclors are prohibited from revealing information concerning such mallers wilhoul proper authorization.

Dircctors, individuals, clients, agencies, investors and the public should have informalion aboul the company as is necessary for
them adequately to judge the company ard its activities. The company believes that full and complete reporting to govermmental

agencies and the provision of information o the public as required conslitutes a responsible and workable approach (o
discliosure. However, the company except as required by law, will not disclose information important to 8 competitive

elfectiveness or which might violate the privale righls of individuals, enterprises or inslitlulions. Employee and Direclors arc
theretore prohibited from discoassing or disclosing any secret or confidential intormation aboot the company or in the possession
of the company unless such disclosure has been aulhorized by the Board of Dircclors.

Employees shall comply wilh departmental policies and procedures relaling 1o the retention and orderly destruction of the
COmpany s documents.

10. Authorization And Recording Of Transactions And
Safekeeping Of Assets

The company’s books and records must reflect, in an acourate, fair and timely manner, the transactions and disposition ot assets
of the company. Employees responsible for the company’s books and records musl ensure Lhal Lhis ocours.

All lransactions musl be aulhorized and execuled in accordance with the instructions of management and Lhe Board of Direclors.
They must be recorded =0 a5 to permit the fccurate preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles and other generally accepled laws applicable to such stalements and to maintain accountabilily for assels.
Access to assets is permitted only in accordance with the authorization of managament.

The use of company funds or assets for any unlawiul or improper purpose is strictly prohibited and those responsible for the

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

48




Annual Report 2020

accounting and record keeping functions are expected to be vigilant in ensuring enforcement of this prohibition. The recorded
secountability for assets will be compared with the exsting assets 8t reasonable intervals and appropriate sction will be teken
with respect to any differences.

11. Discrimination-free Work Environment

The policy of the company is to provide a working enviranment free of discrimination and harassment in which individuals are
accorded equality of employment opportunity based upon merit and atility.

Discriminatory practices Dased on race, sex, color, national or ethnic arigin, religion, marital status, family status, age or disatility
will not be tolerated. Employees are entitied to freedom from sexual and all other forms of personal harassment in the work place.

It is not a discriminatory practice to make a distinction between persons based on bona fide occupational requirements. Since
bona fide occupationgl requiremants are namowly defined, such distinctions should not be undertaken withoot first obtaining
express authorization,

12. Protection Of The Environment

The company and its directors and employees shall treat the protection of the  environment as an Integral factor In all decision
miskirg.

The company is committed to the protection of the environment. To comply with this commitment, the company's policy is to
mest or excesd all applicable governmental requirements. Employees must report to their superior all circumstances in which
toxic substances are spilled or released into the environment, Vicolations of environmeantal laws, gven i unintentional, can camy
savere penalties, and could result in the prosecution of the company or the employees involved or bath,

Fallure to comply with the company’s instructions for the protection of the environment may result In disciplinary actions.

13. Competition And Trade Practice Standards

The company shall compete vigorously and creatively in its business activities, but its efforts in the marketplace shall be
conducted in & tair and ethical manner in strict compliance with applicable competition and trade practice laws and regulations,

Linder no cirmumstances shall any employes or Director of the company be a partly to any collusion or concerted effort ot any
type involving any competitor vendor, supplier, customer o other party, which is in mstraint of trade or violation of Bws and

regulations designed (o losler competilion. Because laws relaling lo compelilion are complex, employees and Direclors should
rafer matters about what they are in doubt to their superior or should sesk the advice of the company’s counssi.

14. Standards Of Conduct

Although the various matters dealt with in this code do not cover the full spectrum of employees or Director activities, they ame

indicative of the company’s commitment to the maintepance of high standards of conduct and are (o be considered descriplive
of the type of behavior expected from employess and Directors in all circumstances.

15. Distribution

Each director and each employes of the company who has executive, managerial or supervisory responsibilities, or deals with

governmenltal officials or political parties or candidales on behall of the company, or who has access (o confidential informaltion,
will be provided with 8 copy of this code. To ensure proper understanding of the code, any questions as to its application to the

arca of responsibilily and jurisdiction of the Direclor or employvee will be explained fully by his / her superior or by the audil
committes.

Al commencemant of employment and at least once a yaar thereatter each such employes shall sign the prescribed from of
acknowledgement which will be retained by the Chiel Financial Officer or the Chairman of the audil commitiee thal each such
indivichual urider his / her jurisdiction has completed the reqguired form acknowledging that he £ she has read or reread, as the case
may be, he cument version of the code of elhics & business policies and has complied with ils lerms.

Each director shall sign such an acknowledgmentl Lo the audil commillee al the commencement of his or her lenm.
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Whistle-Blowing Policy

1. Purpose

To encourage employees to disclose any malpractice or misconduct of which they become aware and to provide protection for
employees who report allegations of such malpraclice or misconducl. The main purpose of this whistle blowing policy is lo give
#ll employess an opportunity to disclose matters they feel need to be reported in the interest of fair-play and lamer benefit of the
organizalion; high standard of corporale governance, compliance wilh legal requirements and prolection of the Company’s
inferest.

2. Policy

The whistle blowing palicy is designed to encoursge amployess to report alleged malpractice or misconduct, to ensure that all
allegations are thoroughly investigaled and suilable action taken where necessary. Any whistle-blowing employee is protecicd
Against adverse employment actions (discharge, demotion, suspension, harassment, or ather forms of diserimination) for raising
allegalions of business misconducl. An employee is proleclted even il the allegations prove (o be incormecl or unsubstanhiated as
leng as thers is no evidence of williul misreporting. Employees who participate or assist in an investigation will also be protectsd.

3. Requirement Of Policy

This document thus sefs out 8 tormal whistle-blowing policy, consisting of sate and eftective procedures for misconduct
disclosurz or reporling so thal appropriate remedial aclion can be taken. A wrillen, formal policy is also a means of prevenling
and deterring misconduct that might be contemplated bot has not yet taken place. It is also &8 transparent methiod ot addressing
issucs relaling o whistie blowing, such as answering standard questions, giving assurances, providing information and offcring
explanations,

4. On What Should One Blow The Whistle

What is reportable misconduct?

Any Serious Concems you may have about any aspect of the operations of the Hum Network Limited (the Company) and those
who work in the Company can be reported under this policy. This may be a conducl thal:

s+ |5 against the governing rules, procedures, and policies, or established standards of practice of the Company. amounis to
improper, unethical, or unlawiul conduct;

=  Amounts to waste of company’s resources; makes you feel uncomfortable in terms of your experience with the standards
you belicve, or

+  Amounts to an attempt to cover up any of these types of actions. Conduct becomes reportable when it happens or when it
is reasonably likely to cccur. Harm to the Company or o ils inlegrily may ocour when any of this conducl is unchecked or
unaddressed. Impartantly, in determining whether to report conduct, harm s not only measured In terms of monitory loss o
the organization, or damage o a particular program or initiative, bul the harm may also be done 1o the integrity and
reputation of the Company itself, or tts survival and/or growth.

Reportable conduct falls into the following categories:

4.1 lllegal or unlawful conduct

Conducl may be llegal or unlawiul in lerms of the Bules and Regulations of the Company and olher applicable laws. We all have
legal responsiblilities, obligations or duties. Criminal offences - such as theft, fraud, corruption (for example, bribery}, or money
launderning - are in breach of legal duties and therefore constitute reportable misconduct.

4.2 Un-procedural conduct

Conduct may be un-procedural since it violates cleary communicated procedures (in the form of policies, regulations, or rules)
governing the operalions of lhe Specific rules and processes, logether wilh olher besl praclice procedures, guide accounting
practices and controls, financial reporting, auditing matters, the transfer of funds to recipients, approved recipient accounts, and
Lhe fike, Such procedures are important for good governance and bréaching lhem may expose Lhe application of funds Lo risk of
loss or real loss.
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4.3 Unethical conduct

Conduct may be unethical since it undermines universal, core ethical values, such as integrity, respect, honesty, responsibility,
Accountability, faimess, For example one could exert undue pressure on 8 person in position of power in order to gain &n
advantage. That would be unfair to others and as such unethical, although nefther unlawful nor un-procedural. But not all
unethical conduct s reportable. For example, some kinds of conduct may be disrespectul and therefors undesiralile, without
harming any serious interests other than personal feefings. This would not be reportable misconduct.

4.4 Wasteful conduct

Conduct constituling a gross waste of resources s a reportable category In its own right since responsible stewardship of
resuures s A8 crucial to the success of the Company as all employees have an obligation to ensure that sl resources ame used
prudently and efficiently. If resources are spent in a wasteful manner, and in breach of the public trust under which they are
prowvided, and an employes knows about this then this would be reportable under the whistle-blowing mechanism,

5. Whistle-blower Protection

HHML shall take all necessany actions to safequeand the inferests of the whistle-Dlower. Whers an individual makes s report under
this policy in good faith, reasonably belisved to be true, there will b2 no retaliation (please read detail below) against the reporter
should the disclosure turm out to be misguided. Retalistion means Aany direct or indirect detrimental action recommended,
threatened or taken becausa an individual reported conduct described In Section 4 of this policy, When established, retaliation is
try itsalf misconduct which may be pursued under the appropriate mechaniams - for example, through disciplinary action initiated
through mechanisms of HR Paolicy or more broadly and as appropriate, through other mechanisms of the company’s rules.
Reporting under this policy, however, in no way immunizes or shields & whistle-blower agrinst action following trom his or her
own misconduct, which includes willfully making allegations through the whistle-blowing mechanism that the individual knows {o
be false or makes with an intent o misirdorm.

6. Whistle-blowing Procedures

HHL encourages &l its employess to act responsibly at &l times and protect themselves and the company against any illegal or
immaoral acts (see section 4) by Immediately reporting any such actions to the Designated Person.

Designated Persons (DPs)

The
. Company secretary, and
L] Head of Internal Audit

Shall be the “Designated Persons® (DPs), and all information shall be directly conveyed to the DPs by the whistle-blower.

Access to the Designated Person

The whistle-blower shall have direct access to the Designated Persons at all times, This right of the whistle-blower shall e
upheld under all circumslances and respecled by the managemenl of the Company.

Medium of Reporting

Reporis to the Designated Persons can be made by: Official email address of the Designated Persons.

Follow up Procedure

The DPs will iniiale an investigation and lake any conseguent aclion as decmed appropriale and will record the same for
information of the Board of Directors, keeping at all imes, the confidantiality of the Whistle Blower's identity.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Hum Network Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Hum Network Limited (the Company),
which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020 and the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated
statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's
affairs as at 30 June 2020 and of the loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Unconsclidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the Key Audit Matters:

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Net realizable value of television program costs

As of the year end, the balance of television
program costs amounted to Rs. 466,123,750 which
represents unamortized cost of completed
television programs and television programs in
production.

As per the accounting policy of the Company,
television program costs and acquired television
program licenses and rights are charged to
expense based on the ratio of the revenues earned
till date to total revenues to be earned from the
program including future estimated revenues, less
cost expensed in prior years on an individual
program basis.

Allocation of television program costs over several
accounting periods based on estimates of revenue
involve significant judgement of the management
which may have a significant impact on the
unconsolidated financial statements. For this
reason, we have identified this area as key audit
matter.

Refer notes 3.5, 8 and 24 to the unconsolidated
financial statements.

Our audit procedures amongst others, comprised
reviewing the appropriateness of the accounting
policy of the Company in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting standards. Further,
we obtained understanding of the revenue
estimation and amortization process of the
Company,
In this regard, we selected a sample of television
programs and considered the factors used by the
management for revenue estimation and
amortization of television program cost including;
« historic experience of revenue earned by

similar programs;

ratings of the program from available

evidences,
+ rates used by the Company and its

fluctuation

based on the trend analysis; and

we also considered subsequent events which

may have an impact on unamortized cost.
We also evaluated whether adequate disclosures
have been made in the accompanying
unconsolidated financial statements in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting standards.

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Impairment assessment of investment in subsidiary companies

As disclosed in note 6, the Company carries an
investment in subsidiary companies amounting
to Rs 328.898 million.

In respect of the above investment in subsidiary
companies, the impairment triggers were identified
by the management and accordingly, impairment
tests were carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the applicable accounting
standards. Such impairment tests involve
estimation of future cash flows from the operations
of the above entities to determine the recoverable
amount in respect of the above referred
investments.

Due to the management judgments and estimates
and other uncertain factors involved in these
impairment tests carried out by the management,
we have considered the determination of the
recoverable amount of investments as a Key Audit
Matter.

Our key procedures in relation to the impairment

tests carried out by the management for

investment in subsidiary companies were as
follows:

+ we considered the triggers and indicators
requiring impairment assessment in respect
of the above assets;

+  we assessed the appropriateness of the
methodology used by the management for
carrying out the impairment test in accordance
with the requirements of the applicable
accounting standards;
we reviewed the key inputs and assumptions
used to prepare the future cash flow projection
of the respective entities including the
commercial assumptions used for this
purpose. We involved our internal specialists
to perform such review. In this regard, we also
considered the business plan of the subject
entities and the actual results achieved in
relation to the previous plan;

+ we also applied sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions and evaluated the results; and

We also assessed the adequacy of the related

disclosures in the unconsolidated financial

statements in accordance with the financial
reporting standards.
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Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our auditors'
report thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsclidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misslgtement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard,

Responsibility of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibility for the audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the unconsolidated financial statements
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud ma

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company's internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimate
and related disclosure made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosure in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit finding, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity
and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

c¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the Company's business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Omer Chughtai.

Sd/-
EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountant
Place: Karachi
Date: June 16, 2021
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2020 2020 sote

Note Rupees -—---e-e-
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,365,363,429 1,484 444 226
Intangible assels 5 32,107,487 45,543,151
Long term investments 6 328,898,481 368,896,451
Long term deposits T 24,781,979 24,479 812
Television program costs B 360,737,951 227228617
Deferred tax asset 9 144,885,503 57,032,586
2,256,774,830 2,217 626,843
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 16,984,145 19,532,155
Current portion of television program costs 8 105,385,799 213,385,799
Trade debts 10 1,716,753,677 1,776,702 967
Short term investments 1 241,505,092 838,041,674
Advances 12 90,637,954 116,418,606
Trade deposits and shori-term prepayments 13 22,254,922 16,632,975
Other receivables 14 129,893,353 166,584,761
Taxation — net 182,756,633 175,896,680
Cash and bank balances 15 141,629,483 152,042 869
2,647,801,058 3,475,248,386
MNon-current asset held for sale 16 16,507,087 -
TOTAL ASSETS 4,921,082,975 5,692 875,229
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised capital
1,500,000,000 (2019: 1,500,000,000) Ordinary shares of Re.1/- each 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 17 945,000,000 945,000,000
Unappropriated profit 2,104,074,108  2,212,120,835
3,049,074,108 3,157,120,835
NOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term lease liabilities 18 103,701,273 11,263,903
Long term financing 19 837,839,369 978 644,795
941,540,642 989,908,658
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 20 492,872,413 839,873,143
Advance from customers 13,629,128 7,132,512
Accrued mark-up 2,860,434 5,490,004
Short term borrowings 21 189,067,264 299 853 260
Unclaimed dividend 5,948,490 5,848 490
Unpaid dividend 205,159 205,159
Current portion of long term lease liabilities 18 29,573,737 15432771
Current portion of long term financing 19 196,311,600 371,910,267
930,468,225 1,545,845 696
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 22

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4,921,082,975 5,692 875,229

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statemeants.
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DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SiDDIQWI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note Rupees -
Revenue 23 3,679,468,088 3,979,099,138
Cost of production 24 | (2,756,142,547) (3,495,240,846)
Transmission cost (139,069,102) (193,223,194)
(2,895,211,643) (3,688 464,040)
Gross profit 784,256,439 290,635,098
Distribution costs 25 {279,841,775) (314,061,819)
Administrative expenses 26 {475,129,826) {498,793,978)
Other income 27 173,651,157 210,738,932
Other expenses 28 (97,605,189) -
Operating profit / (loss) 105,330,806 (311.481,767)
Finance costs 29 (241,450,871) (143,243,790)
Loss before taxation {136,120,065) {454.725,557)
Taxation 30 22,881,574 (81,157,536)
Loss after taxation (113,238,491) (535,883,093)
Loss per share — basic and diluted (Rupee) 3 (0.12) (0.57)

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

|
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DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQWI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
sremeeeeeeee RUp@ES
Loss after taxation (113,238,491) (535,883,083)
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of
profit or loss
Re-measurement gains on defined benefits plan - net of tax 5,191,764
Total comprehensive loss for the year (108,046,727) (535,883,093)
The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.,
A V...
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DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Revenue Reserve

Issued,
subscribed
and paid-up Unappropriated
capital profit Total
Rupees
Balance as at June 30, 2018 945,000,000 2,748,003,928 3,693,003,928
Loss for the year - (535,883,093) (535,883,093)
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (535,883,093) (535,883,003)
Balance as at June 30, 2019 945,000,000 2,212,120,835 3,157,120,835
Loss for the year - (113,238,491) (113,238,491)
Other comprehensive income - 5,191,764 5,191,764
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (108,046,727) (108,046,727
Balance as at June 30, 2020 945,000,000 2.104,074,108 3,049,074,108

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note Rupees
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 33 280,429,530 184,858,153
Taxes paid (71,831,296) (116,268 ,662)
Finance costs paid (244,080,531) (140,185,225)
Profit received on deposit accounts 13,005,882 21,567,375
Long term deposits (302,167) 673,794
Television program costs (133,509,334) 28,941 545
Net cash used in operating activities (156,287,916) (20,412,020}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure (40,798,620) (189,708,738)
Additions lo inlangible assets (1,008,000) {17,800,092)
Short term investments - net 593,856,977 (239,016,684)
Long term investments - (80,000,020)
Dividend received 150,000 6,191,500
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assels 45,841,494 5,251,124
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 598,041,851 (515,080,908)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease rentals paid (24,977,232) (4,943,496)
Long term financing - net (316,404,093) 244 686,062
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (341,381,325) 239,742 566
MNet increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 100,372,610 (295,750,362)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period (147,810,391) 147,939,971

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

(47, 437,781)

(147.810,391)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 141,629,483 152,042 869
Short-term running finance (189,067,264) (299,853,260)
(47,437,781) (147,810,391}

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

HUM Network Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance). The shares of the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Company's principal business is to launch transnational satelliite channels and aims at presenting a wide variaty of
cultural heritage. Its core areas of operation are production, advertisement, entertainment and media marketing. It covers a
wide variety of programmes with respect to information, entertainment, news, education, health, food, music and society.

Impact of COVID-19 on the unconsolidated financial statements

The COVID-19 pandemic caused significant and unprecedented curtailment in economic and social activities during the
period from March 2020 in line with the directives of the Government. This situation posed a range of business and financial
challenges to the businesses globally and across various sectors of the economy in Pakistan.

Despite the challenging operating environment, the Company has been able to continue its operations by implementing strict
measures at its offices to combat and reduce the spread of virus as the health and well-being of the staff is of paramount
importance to Company.

The Company expects that like other sectors of the economy, the media and enterlainment industry also to be under
pressure, However, the business and financial strategies, and the operational decision are designed lo move the Company
from strength to strength, and to ensure operations in a sustainable way during these economic crisis. The management has
assessed the accounting implications of these developments on these unconsolidated financial statements, including but not
limited to expected credit losses and modification of financial liability under IFRS 2, 'Financial Instruments’, the impairment of
tangible assets under IAS 36, 'Impairment of non-financial assets’, the net realisable value of television program costs,
provisions and contingent liabilities under IAS 37,

The Company carried out an assessment including financial and non-financial consideration such as debt covenant
compliance, liquidity and funding concerns, disruption of supply chain, logistics, fluctuating demand, workforce management
and employee health issues.

According to management's assessment, there are no material implications of COVID-19 that require specific disclosure in
the unconsolidated financial statements.

Geographical location and address of business units

Registered office Plot No. 10/11, Hassan All Street, Off. |I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi,
Pakistan.

Head office - Karachi B.R.R Tower, Hassan Ali Street, Off. |.|. Chundrigar Road

City offices — Karachi Alfalah Court, .| Chundrigar Road

City office — |slamabad 2A, |1&T center, sector G-6/1

City office — Lahore House # 58, R-24, Masson Road

City office — Peshawar Plot No. 7-A, 28 The Mall, Peshawar Cantonment

City office — Quetta House # 3, Phase |l, Shahbaz town

City office — Multan Ghous-e-Azam Road, Bismillah Colony

These are separate financial statements of the Company in which investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment, if any.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of Compliance

These unconsolidaled financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (|ASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chatered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are
notified under the Act; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Act
have been followed.

2.2 Accounting Convention

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost convention, except otherwise
specifically stated.

2.3 New and amended standards
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are consistent with those of

the previous financial year except that the Company has adopted the following amendments of IFRS which became effective
for the current year:

IFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments)
IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 16 - Leases

IFRS 16 - COVID 19 Related Rent Concessions (Amendments)

IAS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Setilement (Amendmenis)

IAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joinl Ventures (Amendments)
IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over income tax treatments

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the |ASB (2015-2017 cycle)

IFRS 3 - Business Combinations - Previously held Interests in a joint operation

IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements - Previously held Interests in a joint operation

IAS 12 - Income Taxes - Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments classified as equity
IAS 23 - Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and improvements to accounting standards did not have any material effect
on the Company's unconsolidated financial statements except for IFRS 16. The impact of adoption of IFRS 16 are described
below:

IFRS 16 - Leases

IFRS 16 'Leases' supersedes |AS 17 'Leases’, 'IFRIC 4' Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, 'SIC-15'
Operating Leases Incentives and 'SIC-27' Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS
16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. Under IFRS 16, distinction
between operating and finance leases has been removed and all lease contracts, with limited exceptions, will be recognised in
statement of financial position by way of right-of-use assets along with their corresponding lease liabilities.

Lease obligations of the Company comprises of lease arrangements giving it the right-of-use over properties utilized as
properties utilized as office premises.
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The Company adopted IFRS 16 with effect from July 01, 2019 using the modified retrospective method. Under this method, the
standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognised at the date of initial
application with no restalement of comparative information. The Company elected to use the transition practical expedient
allowing the Company to use a single discount rale to a portfolio of leases with similar characleristics. The Company also
elecled to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts thal, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months
or less and do not contain a purchase option (short-term leases).

IFRS 16 allows two options for transition under the modified refrospective method as follows:

- recognize the lease liability at the date of initial application for operating leases al the present value of remaining lease
payments and a right-of-use assel equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to those leases, or;

- recognize the lease liability at the date of initial application for operating leases al the presenl value of remaining lease
payments and a right-of-use asset at its carrying value as if the new standard had always been applied.

In applying the standard, the Company has recognised lease liability at the date of initial application as present valug of
remaining lease payments and a right-of-use assel equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of prepaid or accrued
lease payments previously recognised. The present value has been determined using a single discount rate for portfolio of
leases exhibiting similar characteristics based on practical expedient provided in the standard.

Lease term is the non-cancelable period for which the Company has right to use the underlying asset in line with the lease
contract together with the periods covered by an option to extend which the Company is reasonably certain to exercise and
option to terminate which the Company is not reasonably certain to exercise.

The lease liabilities as at July 01, 2019 can be reconciled to the operaling lease commilments as at June 30, 2019 as follows:

The impact of adoption of IFRS 16 as at July 01, 2019 is as follows:

Rupees
Operating lease commitments as at June 30, 2019 266,259,176
Impact of discounting (107,479,909)
Total lease liability as at July 01, 2019 158,779,267
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at July 01, 2019 14.11%

The impact of the amendment of IFRS 16 "COVID 19 Related Rent Concessions”™ did not have any material impact on the
Company.

Rupees

Assets

Property, plant & equipment - right-of-use assel 159,642 BE6
Prepayments (863,599)
Total Assels 158,779,267
Liabilities

Lease liabilities 158,779,267
Deferred taxation 250,444

There is no material impact on other comprehensive income or the basic and diluled earnings per share.
Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation:
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Effective date
(annual periods
beginning
Standards and amendments on or after)
IFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Amendments) 01 January 2020
IFRS 3 Reference to conceptual framework (Amendments) 01 January 2022
IFRS 7,
IFRS 9 &
IAS 39 Interest rate benchmark reforms (Amendments) 01 January 2020
IFRS 10 & Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
1AS 28 Venture (Amendment) Not yet finalized
IAS 1/1AS B Definition of Material {Amendments) 01 January 2020
1AS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments) 01 January 2022°
IAS 16 Proceeds before intended use (Amendments) 01 January 2022
IAS 37 Onerous contracts - cost of fulfilling a contract (Amendments) 01 January 2022

*The IASB has issued an exposure draft proposing to defer the effective date of the Amendments to |1AS 1 to 01 January 2023.

The above standards and interpretations are not expected to have any material impact on the Company's financial statements
in the period of initial application.

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB (2015-2017 cycle)

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning
Standard or Interpretation on or after)
IFRS 2 Financial Instruments — Fees in the "10 percent’ test for derecognition of 01 January 2022
financial liabilities
IAS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements 01 January 2022

The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual Framework) in March
2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020 for preparers of financial statements who
develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework. The revised Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and
none of the concepts override those in any standard or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceplual
Framework is to assist IASB in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no
applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards.

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASE which are yet to be notified by the Securities Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan,

IASB effective date
(annual periods beginning on
Standard or Interpretation or after)
IFRS 1 First time adoption of IFRSs 01 January 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 01 January 2023

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Annual Report 2020

2.5 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the unconsolidated financial stalements in confarmity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, requires the management to make judgment, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these
assumplions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the camying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed o be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about the carrying values of
assels and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources,

Estimates, assumptions and judgments are reviewad on an ongaoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that peried, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and judgments which are
significant to the unconsolidated financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (note 4 & 5)

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation / amortisation, useful life and residual value used in the

calculation of depreciation / amortisation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of assets is made
for possible impairment on an annual basis. In making these estimates, the Company uses the technical resources available
with the Company. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property,

plant and equipment and intangible assets, with corresponding effects on the depreciation / amortisation charge and impairment.

Investment in subsidiaries (note 6)

The Company value its investment in subsidiaries at cost less impairment, if any, The Company determines whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for individual investments. The determination of fair value of unquoted subsidiaries invaolves
inherent subjectivity, key assumplions (such as fulure cash flow forecasts, discount and growth rates and volatility), and
estimation relation to valuation inputs and techniques. Any change in these assumptions and estimates may have significant
impact on the fair value of investments with corresponding impact in statement of profit or loss.

Television program costs (note 8)

Television program costs represent unamortized cost of completed television programs and television programs in production.
In order o determine the amount to be charged to statement of profit or loss, the management estimates future revenues from
each program. Estimates of future revenues can change significantly due lo a variety of factors, including advertising rates and
the level of markel acceplance of the production in different geographical locations. Accordingly, revenue estimates are
reviewed periodically and amortisation is adjusted, if necessary. Such adjustments could have a material effect on resulls of
operations in future periods.

Income taxes (note 9)
In making the estimate for income tax payable by the Company, the Company takes into account the applicable tax laws and
the decision by appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses and credils o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which such losses and credils can be utilized. Significant management judgmenl is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets thal can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of fulure taxable profils together
with future tax planning strategies.

Impairment of financial assets (note 3.7)
The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade debts and other receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for Company's various customer that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company's historical observed default rales. The Company will calibrate the matrix
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-locking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaulls in the manufacturing sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the hislorical cbserved defaull rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking eslimates are analysed.,

The assessment of the comelation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The
Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer's
actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Company's financial assets exposed to credit risk is
disclosed in note 37.5.
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Contingencies (note 22)

The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the future
evenlts cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value
of contingent assels and liabilities which may differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain fulure events.

Leases- Estimating the incremental borrowing rate (note 18)

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
('IBR’) to measure lease liabilities. The |BR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment.

Leases- Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options (note 18)

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease,
if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination option. The Company applies judgement in evaluating
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all
relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement
date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant evenl or change in circumstances that is within its control
that affects its ability 1o exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Property, plant and equipment
3.1.1 Operating fixed assets
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss using straight line method so as to write off the historical cost of the assets
over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available to use and
no depreciation is charged for the month in which asset was disposed of.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements, if any, are capitalized when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Company.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in slatement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognized.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are revised, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement
of financial position date.

3.1.2 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises a right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assels are measured al cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assels are depreciated on a siraight-line basis over the shorter of lease term or useful life,
except for the leases in which ownership of the underlying assets transfer to the lessee by the end of the lease term or cost of
right of use assels reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchase option, the Company depreciate those right of use asset
over the useful life of the underlying asset.

3.1.3 Capital work-in-progress

These are stated at cost less accumulated impairment and consist of expenditures incurred and advances made in respect of
specific assets during the construction period. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assels are available for
use,
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3.6
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Non current assets held for sale

Mon current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than conlinuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are stated al the lower of camying
amount and fair value less cost to sell,

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and the asset or disposal
group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is
unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be
committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale expecled to be completed within one year from the date of the classification.

Property, plant and equipment are not depreciated once classified as held for sale.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presenied separately as current items in the unconsolidated statement of
financial position.

Intangible assets

Intangible assels acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following Initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life is reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in statement of profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiary is a entity over which the Company has control. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to
variable retumns from its involvement with the investee and has ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. Generally, there is presumplion that a majority of voting rights result in control. In assessing control, potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable are taken into account.

Investment in subsidiary is initially recognised at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, the Company reviews the carmying
amount of the investment to assess whether there is any indication that such investments have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
Such impairment losses or reversal of impairment losses are recognised in the stalement of profit or loss. These are classified
as "long term investment’ in the unconsalidated financial statements.

Television program costs

Television program cosis represent unamortized cost of completed television programs and television programs in production.
These costs include direct production costs, cost of inventory consumed, and production overheads and are stated al the lower
of cost, less accumulated amortisation and net realizable value (NRV). NRV is estimated by the management on the basis of
future revenue generalion capacity of the program. Acquired television program licenses and rights are recorded when the
license period begins and the program is available for use.

Television program costs and acquired television program licenses and righis are charged to expense based on the ratio of the
revenues eamed till date to total revenues to be earned from the program including future estimated revenues less cost
expensed in prior years on an individual program basis.

Inventories
These are valued on weighted average cost basis and are stated at the lower of cost and NRV.
Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.
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i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Under IFRS 9 Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at following:

{a) at amortised cost
{b) at fair value through profit or loss(FVTPL); and
(c) at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics
and the business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables, the Company initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise io
cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is
referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. The Company's business model for managing financial
assets refers o how it manages its financial assets in order lo generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Company commits to purchase
or sell the asset.

(a) At amortised cost
A financial assel is measured at amortised Cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assels in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

{b) At fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irespective of the business model. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assels held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amorlised cost or al FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that is initially measured at the
transaction price) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly atiributable
to its acquisition,

() At fair value through other comprehensive income
A debt instruments s measured al fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irmevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated
at FVOCI when they meeat the definition of equity under |1AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Subsequent measureament
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into following categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments).

- Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition
(equity instruments)

- Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss
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Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR) method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at FVPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of seling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, imespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated al FVPL on inilial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.

Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the unconsolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

This category also includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not imevocably elected
to classify at FVOCI. Dividends on listed equily invesiments are also recognised as other income in profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cu

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measurad
at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCl. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value
change recognised in OCI is recycled to profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses (equity instruments)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit
or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to
impairment assessment.

As al the date of statement of financial position, Company is nol having any equity instrument designated at fair value through
Qcl.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's unconsolidated statlement of financial posilion) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assel.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assel, nor transferred control of the
asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the
Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred assel is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Company expecls lo receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.
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ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from defaull events that are possible within the next 12-months
(a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default {a lifetime ECL).

For trade debts, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in cerain
cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the
Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.

i) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable ransaction costs.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, borrowings and payables are subsequenlly measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Exchange gain or losses arising in respect of borrowings in foreign
currency are added to the carrying amount of the borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new lability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

3.8 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsel and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise
the assets and seltle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.9 Advance from customers (Contract Liability)

A contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)} from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liahility are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the
contract.
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3.10
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3.2
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each reparting date to ascertain whether there is any indication
of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment
loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to disposal and value in use. Value in use is ascertained
through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risk specific to the assets for which the estimate of future cash flow have not been adjusted. For
the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped al the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generaling units).

Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables excluding financial assets

These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. Subsequent to initial recognition
assessment is made at each statement of financial position date to determine whether there is an indication that assets may be
impaired. If such indication exists, the estimated recoverable amount of that asset is determined and any impairment loss is
recognisad for the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying value.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the unconsolidaled statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period

Or

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setlle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

* |t is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

* |t is due o be settled within twalve months after the reporting period
Or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity inslruments
do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assels and liabilities.
Taxation

Current
Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income in accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Deferred
Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on all major temporary differences arising al the statement
of financial position date between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against which the assets
may be ulilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed atl each statement of financial position date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recognized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date.
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3.14 Cash and cash equivalents

These are carried al cost. For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand,
bank balances and short term running finance,

3.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized al their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

3.16 Leases

The Company assessas al conltract inception whether a contract s, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to contral the use of an idenlified assel for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

3.16. Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assels.

i} Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lermination option is
reasonably certain o be exercised. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the evenl or condition thal triggers the
payment occurs. In calculating the present value of lease payments at the lease commencement dale, the Company uses the
interest rate implicit in the lease. In case where the interest rate implicit in the lease s not readily determinable, the Company
uses its incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accrefion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabiliies is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying assel.

ii) Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease,
if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in
evaluating whether it Is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the oplion to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control that affects its ability to exercise or nol to exercise the option to renew or to lerminale (e.g., construction of
significant leasehold improvements or significant customisalion of the leased asset).

iii) Estimating the incremental barrowing rate

The Company cannol readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay lo borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic envirenment.

iv) Short-term leases

The Company applies the short-larm lease recognition exemplion to its short-term leases of office premises (i.e., those leases
thal have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease
payments on shorl-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-ling basis over the lease lerm,

3.17 Borrowings

Bormowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional / contractual right to defer settlement of
the: liability for al least twelve months after the statement of financial position date.
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3.18

3.19

3.20

32

3.22

3.23

Unclaimed and unpaid dividend

Dividend declared by the Company, in the preceding three years, which remains unclaimed or unpaid as on the statement of
financial position date is recognized as unpaid dividend. Dividend declared and payable prior to the preceding three years from
the staterment of financial position date are recognized as unclaimed dividend.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or conslructive) as a resull of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Revenue recognition

Advertising revenues are recognized at a point in time when the related advertisement or commercial appears before public i.e
aired.

Production revenue: Production revenue is recognised at a point in time when production work appears before public.

Digital revenue: Advertising revenues from digital properties are recognized on the basis of number of impressions on the
advertisement aired on website.

Subscription income arises from the monthly billing to subscribers for services provided by the Company. Revenue is
recognised in the month the service is rendered.

Film Distribution Revenues: Revenue from film distribution is recognized at a point in time upon receipt of related sales reports
from cinemas.

Credit limits in contract with customers ranges from 2 to 90 days.

Other income

Sale of magazine and DVD's is recognized on receipt basis.

Profit on bank deposits is accounted for on effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognized when il is declared and right to receive is established.
Interest / markup income is recognized on accrual basis.

Other revenues are accounted for on an accrual basis.

Expenses

Expenses are recorded when incurred based on the accrual basis of accounting. Distribution costs and administrative
expenses include direct and indirect costs not specifically part of cost of production. Allocations between cost of production,
distribution and administrative expenses, when required, are made on a consistent basis.

Staff retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a funded and approved provident fund scheme for all its permanent employees. Equal menthly
contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund al the rate of 8.33% of the basic salary.

Defined benefit plan

The Company operated an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees up till June 30, 2012. Effective July 1,
2012 the Company discontinued the gratuity scheme for all the permanent employees except for the Chiefl Executive Officer (
CEQ). However, during the year 30 June 2013 the Company had transferred the entire liability to a recognized gratuity fund
scheme. The Company’s obligation under the scheme is determined through actuarial valuations carried out under the
"Projected Unit Credit Method™. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out at 30 June 2020 and based on the actuarial
valuation, the Company had recognised the liability for retirement benefits and the corresponding expenses. Actuarial gains and
losses that arise are recognised in unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year in which they arise. Past
service costs are recognised immediately in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss irrespective of the fact that the benefits
are vested or non-vested. Current service cosls and any past service costs together with the effect of the unwinding of the
discount on plan liabilities are charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.
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3.24 Foreign currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistani Rupees using the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assels and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees using the exchange rate
at the statement of financial position date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rate that existed
when the values were determined. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translations at the year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
taken to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss currently.

3.25 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of assets and incurred during the period in

connection with the actlivities necessary o prepare the asset for its intended use are capitalized as a part of the cost of related
assel,

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are Incurred.
3.26 Dividend and appropriation to reserves
Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which these are approved.
3.27 Contingencies
Contingencies are disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation that arises from pasl events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events but is nol recognised because it is nol probable that an outflow

of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

3.28 Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing

the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the pericd.

3.29 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company’s funclional and presentation currency.
3.30 Segment Reporting
Segement reporting is based on the reporting operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a
component of the Company that engages in bussiness activities from which it may earn revenue and incur expenses. An

operating segment's operating results are reviewed regularly by the senior management of the Company to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is

available.
Note June 30, June 30,
4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2020 2019
Rupees
Operating fixed assets 4.1 1,219,674,736 1435412292
Right of use assets 4.5 129,754,816 -
Capital work-in-progress 4.6 15,933,877 59,031,934

1365363429 1494444226
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4.1 Operating fixed assets

Cast Accurmulated depreciation Book valise Daprociation
As ot Additions™ | As al As wt Chargs | transfers As al oot Rato
transters from fram ROLA™ |
ROUA™ [ {reclassification)***
July @1, [reciassification)™ June 10, July 01, | [disposals) for June 30, June 30, L
2014 1 [dispoasis) 2020 2018 tha your 1020 1020 PEr BOLM
Rupees
Orwnad
Loasahald land * 756,571,184 50434003 To4, 147378 35, 225,961 15,774,428 45,640,573 TABADTBO3  2.04-213
{21.857.801) = {5350, 814}
Buikding on laasahold lond * 108,035,404 1,888,107 * 100,850,511 43,505 B54 772,184 51,508,038 50,372,473 10
Leasshald improvemanis 188,134 858 1EZ 8 142,342 TE4 129,454 450 IBTTIA 185, 705, 802 20,632 252 a3
(8,614,820 {B518,TT1)
Fumiture snd litlings 40,058,637 - 40,055,637 16,316,634 3,523,603 16840, 327 2019310 10
Vithichis 118,771,901 50,667 B1,213.819 63,310,048 17,154,385 56,651,401 24562328 kX
431480205 = BETREIZ
{82,067, 244) 52,351 B54)
Audio visunl squipmant 50,2349 A1 10,885 802 50,035 805 25 BRD BAS BO_724 488 318,969 423 241 008 482 25
{6.868,688) {3837, 750}
Upiinking equipmen| 75,484 263 - 75,484 263 42,547 418 3745 261 4B 662 B0 28,701,583 10
Dilice aouipmant 120,742,608 1m8Te = 115,006 658 2, 7156064 134155803 67,635,184 AT AB4 ATZ 5
(15,658 728) (B ADS 473}
Computers 160,571,387 6188514 = 175462211 124,731,384 A1 404 151,345,178 24,117,033 N
(267, 700 (257,700}
June 30,2028 2,143.609,950 B30T 2,133,738.132 753,770,504 211,305,338 914,081,306 1,210.674,738
41488298 W ETRHIZ
[21,857,001) {6,350, 814)
{114,538, 290) [74.341,548)
Casl Accumisiated depreciation Book valun Deprociation
As at Asat As at Chargs | transfers As at am ol Rato
Adiditions" | from ROUA™ |
July 01, (disposals) Juna 30, July 01, (disposats) for the Juna 30, June 30, %
2018 2018 2018 o 20189 2019 jpar annam
Rupass
Owned
Leasabakt land * 756,571,184 L 756,671,184 19,754 650 15.471,311 35.225 961 TIN5  204-213
Building on leasshold land * 108,114,604 1916800 * 108,035 £04 35,910,120 T.7HS 734 43,605 854 64,339,550 10
Lassahald improvernarts 182,636,901 5407 65T 185,134 558 B2 297 1T 37157288 120454 450 58,680,090 33
Fumiture snd fitings 37848, 652 412085 40,050,637 12,850,362 3457272 16,316,634 23.743,003 10
Vahicies 103 534 560 24.7BS 442 " 118,771,101 43,499 443 26660,162 61310048 56 481 053 a3
{8,550,401) {5848 55T}
Autia visunl squipmant 418,734 04 138,539 807 '_'_ 584,230,801 134 47,003 101,387 718 ** I35 AAD GRR 320,387 118 25
{37, 000) (22,835}
Uplinking ecquipmant 65278 527 10,204, 336 '_'_ 75,484 263 38 168 B35 BTETESL T 42047418 32,528 Bed 10
Odfice squipmant 126,524,780 3T eSS - 125, 742 605 48,804 272 15.910,792 2715084 67,027 541 15
Compulens 157,805,581 13134338 * 168,671.397 06,045,325 28624418 124,231,384 45.340,013 1
(1,368,520 (1,338,356}
1,855 856 583 197,700,788 ** 2,143 508 950 518,784 080 242 206,279 753,779 508 1,350 830 442
{0.055,621) . . (7.210,851)
Leased
Vahickes 74 998 451 10,262,083 78,911 624 24,158 284 18,770,254 31.329,774 4B 581 B0 a3
(14,388, 800) {0,508, 764}
Auier visunl squipmesnt 19,440,000 - - 12,737.250 - 25
{18,440,000] {12,737, 2500,
Uplinking equipment 9,660,000 - - 2,650,650 - b
{0.860,000) (2,680,650
104,058 451 18,262 0631 18,911 624 18 576, 184 16,770,254 31.379,TT4 48 581 850
. {43,408 890) - . [25,018,584) : 3
June 30,2018 2,0660,953,034 213,901,351 2.220,521.574 458 TR0, 264 258,976,533 THS, 109 202 1,438,412, 292
[53,422,811) . . (32227 518)
el Includes assel under common ownership under Diminishing Musharaka arangement.

i Additions of Rs. 83,033,078 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 197,709,288), as shown above, include an amount of Rs. 59,434,003 (June 30,
2019: Rs. 78,286,438) transferred from capital work in progress during the period.

“**  Includes transfers from leased to owned assets. (Refer note 4.5)
=**  Reclassified to non-current assets held for sale. (Refer note 16)
***** Transferred to right of use assets on adoption of IFRS-16 "Leases' as fully explained in note 2.3 o these unconsolidated

financial statements.
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4.2 Particular of Immovable Asset in the name of the Company are as follows:

Location Addresses Total Area
(sq.yards)
Karachi Plot Mo. 10/11 hassan ali street, off I.I. Chundrigar road. 2,070
Karachi Piot no. 125, national highway, phase 1
Pakistan Defence Officers Housing Authority. 1,451
Islamabad Plot No.2A, 1&T centre sector G-G1. 30,610
Islamabad 6-7 km, kashmir highway, adjacent to Sector H-17 303
2020 2019
Note Rupees ---——--
4.3 Depreciation for the period on operating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:
Cost of production 24 168,740,193 183,619,450
Distribution costs 25 1,141,360 2812761
Administrative expenses 26 41,513,785 47 527,658
211!395!33& 233,959,869
4.4 The details of operating fixed assets disposed [ written off, during the period are as follows:
Accumulated Net book Sale Loss | Maodes of Particulars of
Cost depreciation value proceeds (Gain) Diposals Buyer
Akbar
Audio visual 2,660,880 1,931,910 728,970 490,459 238,511 Negotiation Engineering
equipment . Adamjee
925000 366,146 558,854 794000  (235,146)  |Mouranceclim o rance
7 Akbar
Office equipment 14565955 8011275 6554680 2,684,826 3,860,854 Negaliation &\ inearing
c‘;fn PE  Duraid Qureshi
: PAMY(Chief Executive)
Vehicles 23,861,755 11,598,304 12263451 16884843 (4,621.392) Palicy
As per Sultana
Company Siddiqui, a
20,667,940 14,467,558 6,200,382 6,200,382 - Palicy related party
8,300,000 5810000 2490000 1,800,000 690,000 Negotiaion  Mr. '“l;‘:‘:;’["'“d
As per Mr. Ather Vigar
7,777,500 5444 250 2333250 4,198,192 (1,864,942) Company Azim, an
Palicy employee
As per Ms. Maimona
6,260,250 4382175 1,878.075  2,4B88.880 (610,805) Company Siddigui, an
Palicy employes
As per Mr. Hassan
5,810,600 4.067.013 1,743.587  2.050.832 (307,245) Company Jawad, an
Palicy employee
As per Mr. Nomaan un
2,608,210 1,825,747 782,483 1,131,961 (349,498) Company Mabi, an
Palicy employee
As per
1918900 1343230 575670 763100  (187.430) Company M- Omer Nasir,
P an amployee
alicy
As per Mr. Manan
1,693,000 1,185,100 507.900 507.900 - Company Zafar, an
Palicy employes
[tems having book value 17,488,300 13908840 3579460 5846119 (2,266,659) Megotiation Various
of less than Rs. 500,000
June 30, 2020 114,538,290 74,341,548 40,196,742 45B841,494 (5,644,752)
June 30, 2019 9,955,921 7,210,851 2745070 57251124  (2,506,054)

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2020 2019
Note Rupees
4.5 Right of use assets
As at July 01, 2019
Cost (Impact of initial application of IFRS 16) 2.3 159,642, 866 -
Transfer from operating fixed assets - book value 4.1 45,581,850 -
Net book value 205,224,716 -
Year ended June 30, 2020
Opening net book value 205,224,716 -
Additions 4,701,600 -
Change due to modification during the year (31,925,299) -
Transfer to operating fixed assets- book value 4.1 (14,910,383) -
Less: Depreciation charge for the period ~ (33,335,818) -
Closing nel book value 129,754,816 -
As at June 30, 2020
Cost 165,841,496 -
Accumulated depreciation (36,086,680) -
Net book value 129,754,816 -
Land and building 108,023,399 -
Vehicles 21,731,417 -
129,754,816 -
4.5.1 The right-of-use assets are depreciated on straight line basis over the remaining lease term.
4.5.2 Depreciation for the period on right of use assets has been allocated as follows:
2020 2019
Note Rupees -
Cost of production 24 20,321,304 -
Distribution costs 25 2,120,139 -
Administralive expenses 26 10,894,375 -
33,335,818 -
Breakup of depreciation of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:
2020 2019
Rupees
Land and building 19,037,661 -
Vehicles 14,298,157 -
_ 33335818 -

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




4.6 Capital work-in-progress

Leasehold Land

4.6.1 Movement in capital work-in-progress during the period:

Balance at beginning of the year
Additions during the peiod
Transfers during the period
Balance at end of the period

5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Annual Report 2020

2020 2019
Rupees
—15933.877 _ 59.031.934
59,031,934 39,849,659
16,336,036 97,468,713
(59,434,093)  (78.286,438)

15,933,877 59,031,934

Cost Accumulated amortization Book valus Amortisation
As at Additions As at As at For the As al as at rate
July 01, June 30, July 01, pariod June 30, June 30, %o
2019 2020 2019 2020 2020 per annum
Computer saftwares 58,335,718 - 58335718 20,077,132 B.414,953 37,492,085 20,843,633 20 - 33
License fee 10,500,000 - 10,500,000 8,909,880 475544 9385424 1,114,576 6.67
Trade mark 32,713,500 1,008,000 33,721,500 18,019,055 5553167 23572,222  10,149.278 20
June 30, 2020 101,549,218 1,008,000 102,557,218 56,006,067 14,443,664 70,449,731 32,107,487
Cost Accumulated amortization Book value Amortisation
As at Additions As at As at For the As at as at rate
July 01, June 30, July 01, year June 30, June 30, b
2018 2019 2018 2019 2019 per annum
Computer saftwares 45,652,626 12,683,092 58335718 21811725 7.265407 20077132 29,258,586 20-23
License fee 10,500,000 : 10,500,000 8209530 700350 8,909,880 1,580,120 6.67
Trade mark 27,506,500 5,117,000 32,713,500 12,656,330 5,362,725 18,019,055 14,694,445 20
June 30, 2019 83,749,126 17,800,092 101,549,218 42,677,585 13,328,482 56,006,067 45,543,151
2020 2019
5.1 Amortisation for the period has been allocated as follows: Note Rupees
Cost of production 24 10,649,802 9,722 368
Administrative expenses 26 3,793,862 3,606,114

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

14,443,664

13,328 482




Annual Report 2020

6 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS — unquoted subsidiaries

Country of Holding /

incorporation Note AN N9
Rupees
United States
HUM TV, Inc of America 100%
10,000 Common stock at § 0.01 ($ 100) 8,603 8,603
Advance for future issue of shares (5 200,000) 18,716,750 18,716,750
18,725,353 18,725,353
HUM Network UK Ltd United Kingdom 100%
553,677 Ordinary Share of 1 GBP (GBP 553,677) 95,823,751 95,923,751
Sky Line Publication (Private) Limited Pakistan 100%
3,999,997 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each 39,999,970 39,999,970
Provision for impairment 6.1 (39,999,870) -
- 39,989,970
United Arab
HUM Network FZ LLC Emirates 100%
2,400 Ordinary Shares of AED 1000 each (AED
2,400,000) 69,802,371 69,802,371
Advance for future issue of shares (AED 175,431) 4,446,966 4,446,966
74,249,337 74,249 337
HUMM Co. [Private) Limited Pakistan 100%
4 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 40 40
HUM Mart (Private) Limited Pakistan T0%
14,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 140,000,000 140,000,000
328,898,481 368,898,451

6.1 The Company owns 100% shareholding of Sky Line Publication (Private) Limited (Skyline) as at 30 June 2020 (2019: 100%).
The principle business of the subsidiary is publishing a monthly English magazine and production and sales of documentary
films. The subsidiary company has incurred a loss after tax amounling to Rs. 12.085 million and accmulated loss amounting to
Rs. 88.526 million. As al year end the Company Is carrying its investment in Skyline as a subsidiary company at cosl less
impairment losses, if any.

Skyline is not generating sufficient cashflows and profits and there is no recoverability of investment foreseen in future period
by the Company therefore, the management has decided to impair the full cost of investment.

6.2 The Company carried out a review of the recoverable amount of the investment in subsidiaries. The Company estimated the
recoverable amount by using value-in-use method and market approach and based on that amount concluded that the
recoverable amount is higher than the carrying amount. The key assumptions in the value-in-use calculations are the terminal
growth rate and the risk-adjusted pre-tax discount rate.

2020 2019
Rupeas e
T LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Security deposits
- Lease 1,322,057 665,550
- Rent 6,921,458 7.041.458
- Trade 13,402,934 13,402,934
- Others 3,135,530 3,369,870
24,781,979 24479812
8 TELEVISION PROGRAM COSTS
Unreleased / released less amortisation 427,380,500 386,400,500
In production 38,743,250 54,213,916
466,123,750 440,614, 416
Less: Current portion (105,385,799) (213,385,799)
360,737,951 227.228.617

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2020 2019
Note Rupees -----e-ee-
a DEFERRED TAX ASSET
Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:
Unused tax credits on subscription income 89,558,636 56,028,518
Provisions 46,431,207 -
Unrealised loss on shor term investments - net 1,388,007 1,004,068
Long term lease liabilities - nal 830,469 -
Accelarated tax depreciation and amortisation 6,677,184 -
144,885,503 57.032 586
10 TRADE DEBTS — unsecurad
Considered good 104 & 105 1,716,753,677 1,776,702 967
Considered doubtful 47,026,912 47,026,912
1,763,780,589 1,823,729.879
Less: Provision for doubtful debls 10,3 (47.026,912) (47.026,912)

1,776,702,967

1.716,753,677

10.1 Particulars of receivable from foreign jurisdictions:

United Arab Emirates 94,599,792 80,144,846
United Kingdom 100,932,674 109,041,527
United States of America 97,452,537 255,563,623

292,985,003 444 749 996

These receivables are on contract basis and there are no defaulting parties as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019,

2020 2019
Rupees
10.2  Include amount receivable from the following related parties:
HUM TV Inc. 73,370,300 231,026,837
HUM MNetwork UK Limited 100,932,674 109,041,527
74,302.97 340,068 364
10.3  Provision for doubtful debis
Opening balance 47,026,912 47,026,912
Charge for the year - -
Closing balance 47,026,912 47,026,912
10.4  The aging of trade debts from other than related parties is as follows:
Meither past due nor impaired 900,247 483 964,683,549
Past due but not impaired
- 01to 30 days 351,056,402 296,343,770
- 31 o 60 days 232,427 652 106,919,361
- Over 60 days 58,719,166 68,677,923
1.542.450,703 1,436,634 603
10.5 The aging of trade debts from related parties is as follows:
Meither past due nor impaired - -
Past due but not impaired
- 01 1o 30 days - E
- 31 to 60 days - =
- Over 60 days 174,302,974 340,068,364
174,302,974 340,068,364

10.6  The maximum amount cutstanding from related parties at any time during the pericd calculated by reference to month end
balances are as follows;

2020 2019
Rupees
HUM TV Inc. 243,651,336 231,026,837
HUM Metwork UK Limited 100,932,674 109,041,527
344 584,010 340,068,364

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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11

12

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss

United Bank Limited
16,000 TFCs having face value of Rs. 5,000 each

Meezan Bank Lid. Tier Il Modaraba Sukuks

Bank of Punjab
2.033 TFCs having face value of Rs.99,860 each 111

U Microfinance Bank Limited
8,400 TFCs having face value of Rs.4,994 each 111

Quoted Shares

Habib Bank Limited
60,000 shares having market value of
Rs. 113.26 each

Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited
60,000 shares having market value of
Rs. 69.49 each

International Steels Limited
50,000 shares having market value of
Rs. 39.71 each

Mutual Fund

Askari High Yield Scheme
2,958,712 units having net asset value (NAV) of Rs.102.3976

BMA Empress Cash Fund
8,045,078 shares having market value of Rs.10.158 each

At amortised cost

Term Deposit Receipts 111
Accrued Profit Thereon

These carry interest ranging from 8.68% to 16.98% (2019: 9.25% to 12.2%).
ADVANCES - unsecured, considered good

Interest free advances to:
- Producers
- Suppliers
- Employees
- Executives

2020 2019
Rupees
- 80,000,000
- 98,997 624
198,901,230 -
42 603,862 -
- 6,795,600
- 4,169,400
- 1,985,500
- 302,965,055
- 81,721,902
- 250,000,000
- 11,406,493
% 261,406,493
241,505,092 838,041,574
52,272,091 85,583,578
27,970,135 25,145,355
9,738,189 5,032,134
657,539 657,539
90,637,954 116,418,606

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



13

14

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

15

15.1

Annual Report 2020

2020 2019
Note Rupees
TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS
Deposits
- Rent 664,500 664,500
- Trade 1,997,207 1,997,207
- Others 1,137,974 933,974
3,799,681 3,585,681
Prepayments
- Insurance 15,972,890 10,152,815
- Rent 268,498 1,050,135
- Other 2,213,853 1,834,344
18,455,241 13,037,294
22,254,922 16,632,975
OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good
Sales tax receivable 141 101,406,385 89,985,440
Due from related parties 14.2 85,471,159 71,486,212
Income/mark-up accrued 69,589 5,123,109
Other 551,439 -
187,498,572 166,594,761
Provision for impairment 14.5 (57,605,219) .
129,893,353 166,594 761

As per rule 3(5) of Sindh Sales Tax Special Procedure (withholding) Rule, 2014, registered persons as recipient of
advertiserment services shall withheld whole of sales tax applicable on the person providing adverlisement services.
Accordingly, the company is unable 1o adjust its inpul tax deducted on purchases of taxable goods and services as 100% of
the output tax on the Company's taxable services are being withheld by the recipient of these services. However, Company

is in correspondence with the relevant authorities through its legal advisor to resolve the matter,

Due from related parties

HUM TV, Inc. 26,951,421 20,785,391
HUM Mart (Private) Limited 914,519 223116
Sky Line Publications {Private) Limited 57,605,219 50,477,705

The aging of receivables from related parties is as follows:

85,471,159 71486212

Meither past due nor impaired 1,433,365 22,386,092

Past due but not impaired

- 60 to 90 days 574,813 888,701

- over 90 days 83,462,981 48,211,419
85471,159 71,486,212

The maximurm amount outstanding from related parties at any time during the period calculated by reference to month end

balances are as follows:

Note 2020 2019
Rupees
HUM TV, Inc. 26,951,421 20,785,391
HUM Mart (Private) Limited 914,519 2231186
Skyline Publications (Private) Limited 57,605,219 50,477,705
B5.471,159 71,486,212
Provision for impairment
Balance at the beginning of the year - .
Provision made during the year 57,605,219 -
Balance at the end of the year -
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 476,780 906,823
Cash at banks
- in current accounts 19,998,153 47 439276
- in deposit accounts 15.1 121,154,550 103,696,770
141,152,703 151,136,046
141,629,483 152,042 BE9

These carry profit at the rates ranging from 6.5% to 11.25% (30 June 2019: 8% to 10.25%) per annum.
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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16 NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE
During the year, the management of the Company intended to sell land owned by the Company located in Karachi having fair
value of Rs. 472,958,100 based on the independent valuation.
17 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL
2020 2019 2020 2019
{Number of shares) Rupees
Ordinary shares of Re. 1/- each
500,000,000 500,000,000 Fully paid in cash 500,000,000 500,000,000
445,000,000 445,000,000 Issued as fully paid bonus shares 445,000,000 445,000,000
945,000.000 945,000,000 945,000,000 945,000,000
171 As al June 30, 2020, institutions and others held 604,969,034 and 340,030,966 shares, respectively (June 30, 2019:
527,163,899 and 417,836,101). Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voling are in proportion o the
shareholding,
2020 2019
Mote Rupees
18 LONG TERM LEASE LIABILITIES
Opening balance 26,696,674 31,640,170
Impact of initial application of IFRS 16 23 158,779,267 -
Balance as at 1 July 185,475,941 31,640,170
Additions during the period 45 4,701,600 15,665,850
Change due to modification during the year {31,925,299) -
Mark up on lease liabilities 29 22,515,208 2,834,642
Less: Lease rentals paid (47,492,441) (23,443,988)
Closing balance 181 133,275,010 26,696,674
Current porfion of long-term lease liabilities 29,573,737 15,432,771
Long-term lease liabilities 103,701,273 11,263,903
181  Includes lease finance facility entered into by the Company with commercial banks for vehicles amounting to Rs 115,000,000
{June 2019: Rs. 115,000,000) out of which Rs. 101,173,870 (June 2019: Rs. 88,303,326) remains unutilized at period end.
Lease rentals are payable in monthly installments latest by September 2022.
2020 2019
19 LONG TERM FINANCING - secured MNote Rupees
Islamic banks
Diminshing Musharaka - | 18.1 409,771,846 550,555,062
Diminshing Musharaka - Il 18.2 312,195,127 400,000,000
721,966,973 850,555,062
Less: current maturity (169,835,542) (257 .640,427)
552,131,431 692,914,635
Convetional bank
Term Finance Loan 19.2 312,183,996 400,000,000
Less: current malturity (26,476,058) {114,269,840)
285,707,938 285,730,160

837,839,369 978,644 795

18.1 Represent Diminishing Musharaka facility carrying profit at the rate of 8 months KIBOR plus 1% (June 2019 6 months
KIBOR plus 1%) per annum, The financing is repayable by 24 June 2023 in 48 equal monthly instalments commencing after
a grace period of 12 months from the date of first disbursement i.e. from June 2018. The loan is secured by way of registered
morigage over the building on leasehald land.

19.2 Represent Diminishing Musharaka and Term Finance Loan carmying profit at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 1% (June
2019: 6 months KIBOR plus 1%) per annum, The financing is repayable in 48 equal monthly instaiments commencing after a
grace period of 18 months from the date of first disbursement i.e. December 2017. During the year, the Company has availed
the principal deferment facility for LTFF offered by the SBP through BPRD circular no. 13 of 2020 to ease adverse effects of
the COVID-19 and to provide relief to the businesses. Hence, the financing is repayable by December 2023. Financing is
secured by way of Equitable Mortgage over registered office, first pari passu constructive mortgage charge over land and first
hypothecation charge over plant, machinery & equipment.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2020 2019
Note Rupees

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 20.1 309,271,132 611,909,478
Accrued liabilities 77,654,739 142,684 435
Due to related party - HUM Network FZ LLC 46,791,822 43,783,425
Withholding tax payable 42,230,593 20,494,352
Payable lo provident fund 202 1,273,701 987 442
Others 15,650,426 20,014,011

492 872,413 839,873,143
Include amount payable to the following related parties:
M.D Production (Private) Limited 95,940,684 312,232,779
Digital Entertainment World (Private) Limited 45,002,945 24,842,408

140,943,629 337,175,188

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Act and the rules
formulated for this purpose.

2020 2019
MNote Rupees --c-e-eee-
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - secured
Short-term running finance— conventional banks 211 189,067,264 299,853,260

Represent facilities obtained from various conventional banks amounting to Rs. 425,000,000 (June 2019: Rs. 475,000,000)
out of which Rs. 235,932,736 (June 2019: Rs. 175,146,740) remains unutilized at period end. These facilities carrying
markup ranging from 1 month to 3 month KIBOR + 0.75% to 1%. (June 2019: 3 month KIBOR + 0.75% to 1%). These
facilities are secured by way of pari passu charge and first hypothecation charge on all current assetls of the Company.

The Company has local bill discounting facilities amounting to Rs. 175,000,000 (June 2019: Rs. 125,000,000) which remain
unutilized at the period end. These facilities carrying mark-up rates ranging from 3 months KIBOR + 0.9% to 1% (June
2019: 3 months KIBOR + 0.9% to 1%). These facilities secured by way of pari passu charge and first hypothecation charge
on all current assets of the Company.

The Company has facility against letters of credit aggregating to Rs. 50,000,000 (June 2019: Rs. 50,000,000) which remain
unutilized at the period end. These facilities secured by way of lien over import documents,

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

For the tax year 2013, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) passed an order under section 122(1) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 wherein certain disallowances / addbacks were made to the taxable income of the Company.
The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) against the aforesaid order who decided
the case against the Company. The Company has challenged the aforesaid order of the CIR (A) before the Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue, which is pending adjudication. Further, the ACIR passed an appeal effect order crealing a tax
demand of Rs.162,961,339/-. Howeaver, the Company has obtained a stay from recovery of the above tax demand from the
Sindh High Court (the Court). The management, based on the legal and tax advice, is confident that the ultimate outcome
will be in favor of the Company and accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect in these financial statements.

The tax authorities passed an order under seclion 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2014
whereby a tax demand of Rs. 168,166,692 was created. The Company has filled appeal before the Commissioner Inland
Revenue (Appeals) (CIR (A)) in respect of the aforesaid order, which is pending adjudication.

Furthermare, the Company has obtained stay from recovery of tax in respect of the above tax demand from the Sindh High
Court (the Court), till the decision of appeal. The management, based on the legal and tax advice, is confident that the
ultimate outcome will be in favor of the Company and accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect in these
financial staterments.

For lax related matiers, refer note 30 to these unconsolidated financial statements.
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222

22.21

23

23.2

24

241

Commitments

Purchase of television programs commitments with M.D Production (Private) Limited - a related party as at June 30, 2020
amounted to Rs. 155,579,500 (June 30 2019: Rs. 393,586 400). Commitment for purchase of television programs with

other than related parties as at June 30, 2020 amounted to Rs. 84,222 500 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 68,207,000).

REVENUE - net

Advertisement revenue
Production revenue
Digital revenue
Subscription income
Film distribution revenue

Revenue is net off the following items:

Sales tax
Discount to customers

Represents revenue from the following geographical regions:

Asia
America

COST OF PRODUCTION

Cost of outsourced programs
Cost of in-house programs
Cost of inventory consumed
Salaries and benefils
Depreciation

Traveling and conveyance
Utilities

Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance

Repair and maintenance
Fee and subscription
Communication

Security charges
Amaortisation

Consultancy

Printing and stationery

In production television programs — opening
In production television programs - closing

Released / unreleased programs - opening
Released / unreleased programs - closing

2020 2019
Note Rupees

3,086,247,606 3,362,428,689
51,495,210 87,815,118

42 880,157 21,039,618

483,802,784 370,467 542

15,042,331 137,344 171

231/23.2  3,679,468,088 3,979,099,138
440,971,672 478,955,790

248,715,703 266,972,231

689,687,375 745,928,021
3,402,041,047 3.651,114,354
277,427,041 327,984,784
3,679,468,088 3,979,099,138
1,480,732,577 1,789,111,264
238,684,117 419,551,943

343,582 -

24.1 676,880,163 839,859,606
438452 189,061,497 183,619,450
39,778,606 52,225 442

16,375,383 20,007,980

1,839,183 27,288,202

22,813,782 25,322,528

20,734,444 20,949,609

59,054,645 48 087,109

17,554,272 17,048,129

612,213 1,959,292

8.1 10,649,802 9,722 368
4,956,391 4,726,256

1,581,224 843,212

2,781,651,881 3.460,320,390
54,213,916 891.472.116
(38,743,250) (54,213,916)

2,797,122, 547 3,497 ,578,590
386,400,500 384,062,756
(427,380,500) (-386,400,500)

2,756,142 547 3,495,240,846

Include Rs. 26,580,044 (2019: Rs. 34,828,310/-) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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25 DISTRIBUTION COSTS 2020 2019
Note Rupees
Advertisement and promotion 135,202,148 137,878,951
Salaries and benafits 25.1 122,174,629 150,432,615
Traveling and conveyance 9,815,760 12,911,306
Rent, rates and taxes B,808 548,062
Utilities B67.803 1,047,213
Depreciation 438452 3,261,499 2,812,761
Communication 1,391,337 1.444 235
Insurance 2,716,465 3,069,355
Repair and maintenance 2,186,613 2032173
Fees and subscription 1,984,746 1,577,788
Printing and stationery 231,967 307,360
279,841,775 314,061,818
251 Include Rs. 4,987,023 (2019: Rs. 6,656,202/-) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
26 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 26.1 214,452,376 244,493,042
Technical advisory fee 26.2 41,400,000 41,400,000
Depreciation 438452 52,408,160 47 527 658
Amortisation 5.1 3,793,862 3,606,114
Repair and maintenance 27,738,789 32,341,618
Communication 4,371,987 4 870,597
Traveling and conveyance 52,926,755 33,698,232
Fee and subscription 7,880,334 9,345,583
Utilities 24,561,629 20,219,093
Legal and professional charges 10,413,032 9,594 217
Printing, stationery and pericdicals 4 564,302 4,281,745
Rent, rates and taxes 9,366,763 25,860,435
Insurance 4,628,769 5,163,924
Auditors’ remunaration 26.3 4,870,158 5,555,682
Security charges 10,272,261 10,836,038
Donation 26.4 1,480,649 -
475,129,826 498,793,978
26.1 Include Rs. 4,956,932 (2019: Rs.4,109,628/-) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
26.2 Represents fee paid / payable to a Director for technical advisory services rendered in terms of the technical advisory agreement
duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.
26,3  Auditors' remuneration 2020 2019
Rupegs -
Audit fee 935,000 935,000
Fee for consolidated financial statements 550,000 550,000
Fee for half yearly review 325,000 325,000
Tax and other assurance sarvices 2,276,560 3,319,402
Out of pocket expenses 783,598 426,280
4,870,158 5,555,682
26.4 Interest of the Directors or their spouses in the donations made during the year is as follows:
Mames of interested directors
Name of donee and address and nature of interest 2020 2019
Rupees e
Momina and Duraid Foundation (Plot No. 10/11 Mr. Duraid Qureshi - Trustee
hassan ali street, off 1.1, Chundrigar road, Karachi). Ms. Sultana Siddiqui - Trustee 1,480,649 -
27 OTHER INCOME
Income f (loss) from financial assets
Profit on bank accounts 13,005,882 21,567,375
Exchange gain 15,243,773 84,419,150
Dividend income 150,000 6,191,500
Interest { markup income 63,157,955 27,295 102
Unrealised loss on revaluation of investments (4,188,063) (6,693,787)
Gain on redemption / sale of investments 1,508,558 5470121
B8,878,105 148,249 461
Income from non financial assets
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 5,644,752 2,506,054
Sale of content, DVDs and festival revenue 79,128,300 59,983.417
B4,773,052 62489471
173,651,157 210,738,932
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2020 2019
MNote Rupaes -—---e—e—
OTHER EXPENSES
Provision for impairmen! on other receivables 14 57,605,219 -
Provision for impairment of investment in subsidiary & 39,999,970 -
97,605,189
FINANCE COSTS
Mark-up on long term financing 164,409,120 131,814,772
Mark-up on short term borrowings 53,548,307 4,397 691
Interest on lease Habilities 22,515,209 2,834 642
Bank charges 978,235 4,196,685
241,450,871 143,243 790
TAXATION
Current 60,681,537 35,955,856
Deferred (89,97 3,496) 45,155,111
Prior 6,410,385 46,569
301 22 881,574 81,157 536

The Company has filed its return of income up to tax year 2019. The return so filed is deemed to be an assessment order
issued by the Taxation Authorities on the date the complete return is filed, The Company Is mainly subject to Minimum Tax
Regime under Section 153((1) (b)) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, therefore, relationship between income tax expense
and accounting profit has not been presented,

The Company filed a Constitulional Petition (CP) before the Court on September 27, 2018 challenging the tax under section
5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The Court accepted the CP and granted a stay against the above section. In case the
Court's decision is not in favor of the Company, the Company will either be required to declara the dividend to the extent of
40% of after tax profits or it will be liable o pay additional tax at the rate of 7.5% of the accounting profit before lax of the
Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2018, The management, based on the tax advice, s confident that the ultimate
outcome will be in favor of the Company and accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect in these financial
statements.

Subsequent to the year end, the Sindh High Court (the Court), through ils order dated 30 April 2021, declared the insartion
of section 5A of the Ordinance as ultra vires to the Constitution of Islamic Republic of Pakistan, 1973 and therefore struck
down the provisions of the aforesaid section. Accordingly, in light of the above judgement of the Court, the provisions of
seclion 5A of the Ordinance are no longer applicable on the company, until such matter is decided otherwise by the Honorable
Supreme Court,

2020 2019
Rupees

LOSS PER SHARE - basic and diluted
Loss after taxation (113,238,491) (535.,883,093)
Waighted average number of ordinary shares

outslanding during the year m,unu,gu 945=DDU=DGU
Loss per share (Rupee) (0.1 %L {0.57)
EMPLOYEE BEMNEFITS

As mentioned in note 3.23 to the financial statements, the Company operates recognized gratuity fund scheme for Chief
Executive. Contributions are made lo the scheme on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The latest actuarial valuation
was carried out as at June 30, 2020.

2020 2019
Rupees

(Assat) / liability in respect of gratuity scheme (551,439) 821,153
Reconciliation of amount (receivable from)

I payable to defined benefit plan
Present value of defined benefit cbligation 63,526,561 58,455,579
Fair value of plan assets (64,078,000 (57.534,426)

{551,439) 521,153

Movement in the present value of defined

benefit obligation:
Opaning balance 58,455,579 59,407,286
Currenl service cost 4,316,455 4,534 263
Interest cost 8,066,870 5,940,729
Actuarial gain (7,312,243) {11,426,689)
Closing balance 63,526,561 58,455,578
Movement in the fair value of plan assets:
Opening balance 57,534,426 53,836,332
Return on plan assels 6,543,574 3,698,094
Closing balance 64,078,000 57,534 426

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



Annual Report 2020

2020 2019
Rupees
Movement in net liability
Opening balance 921,153 5,570,954
Charge for the year 5,839,751 6,776,808
Actuarial income (7,312,343) {11,426,699)
Closing balance (551,439) 921,153
Charge for the year
Current service cost 4,316,455 4 534 263
Interest cost - net 8,066,870 5,940,729
Return on plan assets (6.543,574) (3,698,094)
5,839,751 6,776,898
Actuarial remeasurements
Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligations (7,312,343) (11,426,699)
Actuarial assumptions:
Valuation discount rate per annum 8.35% 13.80%
Salary increase rate per annum 8.35% 13.80%
Normal retirement age of employees 60 years 60 years
As of 30 June 2020, only one employee have been covered under the above scheme,
Charge for the next financial year as per the actuarial valuation report amounts to Rs. 4.226 million.
The weighted average duration of the obligation is 8.96 years.
Comparisons for past years:
As at June 30 2020 2019 2018
Rupges —--ee-ees
Present value of defined
benefit obligation 63,526,561 58,455,579 59,407 286
Fair value of plan assets (64,078,000) (57,534 ,426) (53,836,332)
Deficit (551,439) 921,153 5,570,954
Experience adjustment on
plan liabilities (7,312,343) (11,426,689) -
Experience adjustment on plan assels B - -
(7,312,343) {11,426,699) -
2020 2019
JR— i.'ﬂupeus:u —
Composition of plan assets
Mutual Fund - 73,407,829
Cash at bank 81,433,446 2,371,852
Unconsolidaled statement of financial position date sensitivity analysis (+ 100 bps) on present value of defined benefil
obligation:
2020
Discount rate Salary increase
+ 100 bps -100 bps + 100 bps -100 bps
e (111, LLC Y B
Present value of defined benefit abligation (5,399,376) 5,989,622 6,129,842 15,613,826)
2019
Discount rate Salary increase
+100bps - 100 bps +100 bps -100 bps
muw.{ﬂupgasl
Present value of defined benefit obligation (5.125,532) 5,704,642 5,844,881 (5,329,878)
Significant risks

Final salary risk
The: risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than whal the Company has assumed. Since the
benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would also increase proportionately.
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Asset volatility
The fund assets are almost entirely invested in banks saving accounts which is subject to the risk of change in interest rate by
the bank. This give rise to significant reinvestment risk.

Discount rate fluctuation

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields. A decrease in corporate
bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the current plans’
bond holdings.

Life expectancy / Withdrawal rate

The Graltuity is paid off at the maximum of age 60. The life expectancy is in almost minimal range and Is quite predictable in
the ages when the employee is in the accrediled employment of the Company for the purpose of the Gratuity. Thus, the risk of
life expectancy is almost negligible. However, had a post retirement benefit been given by the Company like monthly pension,
post retirement medical ete,, this would have been a significant risk which would have been quite difficull to value even by
using advance martality improvement models.

The withdrawal risk is dependent upon the: benefit structure; age and retention profile of the staff, the valuation methodology;
and long-term valuation assumptions. In this case, it is not a significant risk.

Inflation risk

The salary inflation is the major risk that the gratuity fund liability carries. In a general economic sense and in a longer view,
there is a case that if bond yields increase, the change in salary inflation generally offsets the gains from the decrease in
discounted gratuity liability. But viewed with the fact thal asset values will also decrease, the salary inflation does, as an overall
affect, increases the net liability of the Company.

Model risk
The defined benefit gratuity liability is usually actuarially valued each year. Further, the assets in the gratuity fund are also
marked to market. This two-tier valuation gives rise to the model risk.

Investment risk
The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to meet the liabilities. This risk is mitigated by closely
monitoring the performance of investment.

Risk of insufficiency of assets
This is managed by making regular contribution to the Fund as advised by the actuary.

2020 2019
- |Rupees ) —
33 CASH GEMERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Loss before taxation {136,120,065) (454,725,557
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 244,731,156 233,958,869
Amaortisation 14,443,664 13,328,482
Finance costs 241,450,871 143,243,789
Provision for employee retirement benefit 5,839,751 -
Unrealized exchange gain (15,243,773) (90,279,117)
Profit on deposit accounts (13,005,882) (21,567,375)
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets (5,644,752) (2,506,054)
Profit on redemption / sale of investments (1,508,558) (5,470,121)
Dividend income (150,000) (6,191,500)
Provision for impairment 97,605,189 -
Unrealised loss on revaluation of investments 4,188,063 6,693,787

572,705,729 271,211,760
(Increase) | decrease in current assets
Inventories 2,548,010 (1,335471)
Current portion of television program costs 108,000,000 5,978,911
Trade debls 75,193,063 51,682,039
Advances 25,780,652 87,030,962
Trade deposits and short term prepayments (5,621,947) 6,699,043
Other receivables (21,551,798) 6,628,080

184,347,980 156,683,564
Increase | (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables (347,000,730) 215,503,137
Advance from customers 6,496,616 {3.813,751)

280,429,530 184 850,153
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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M REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2020 2018
Chiaf Exgcutive Non-Exocutive Chiaf Expcutive Non-Exocutive
Exscutive Direchor Dirsctor Exdcutives Executive Diractor Directar Exgcutives

Managenal remunerslion 34,161,290 - 2,000,000 174,042, 409 50,784,713 2,000,000 29,130,890
Borm A 1 5 - . .
Retireman benelits - - - 12,642,819 - - 17690444
Houss rent 14,022 581 - - B8535, 943 14,022 581 - 91,590,274
Litilzins 3,416,138 - - 15,229,765 EREL R ] - - 20,353,365
Technical advisory lea - 41,400,000 = - - 41,400,000 - *

Fual and comayance 1,363,515 B34 389 439,832 9,921,361 1490835 BAS X35 532 507 11,967,126
Numbes ! i i

a9 Tha Chied Execuiive, Executve Director and corain Executtves am also prossded with free use of Company maintained cams in sccordance with the Company's polcy and
rmbursament of exponses related o busness aved

32 The aggregais amount chamed in the financial statemenis for meeling fee 1o 4 non-siecitive dinectors amounted to Rs 675,000 [2019: Rs, §25,000)
T ] Managsisl mmunemtion of chiel axecutie indudes Re. Nil (2018 Ra. 15.860,000) in respect of relocation allwencs.
15 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Relaled partén of tha Company comprse subsidiafies, associated companies, refrement funds, drecions and key managemen| persannel  Delals of ransactions. with relaled
parties during the perod, other than those which have been declosed elsewhens in these financial stalements ane as folows:

020 2019
Relathonship Nature of transactions e RUPBRE aesees
Subsidiaries Expensas pakd on bahalf of the Company 26,402,224 83,228,141
Expensas paid on behalf of the subsidiery TAIT 54 14,201, 378
Payment made on behalf of company 33,520,000 h
Paymant recahved on bohall of subsidiary 27,923,250 1B 46T 620
Paymant recatvod on behal of the Company 2,245,612 -
Maragamen foe 4,810,500 4,787,000
Paymant recehnd during the year 314,707 666 67,580,235
Paymant made during the year 148,709,348 -
Prolessionsd services atquinnd 54, 527,847 A7 442 410
Subscripton incoma 46,985,174 43,036,481
Imvestment made during the year - B0,000,020
Purchnses of goods 6,709,348 -
Associates
Purchnses of ievision programs nghts 1,142,964,102 1,247 48277
Expensos paid on bahalf of the associate 18,238,705 .
Comenission income 8,607,145 -
Paymant mada dusing the poriod 1397379266  1.280,601 363
Payment mecetved on bahall of associale 12,073,209 .
Othors Canlribution io the provident fund 36,523,909 45592 140

Al fransactions. with rmlabed parties an eroned nto ai agroed iormas duly approved by the Boaed of Descioms of tha Company, The cutstonding recewabie and payable balances of
the related parties ame disclosad in their respoctive noles to thess unconsolidated financiad stalements.

581 Following are the related paries with whom the Company had antered into ransactions or have amangement | agreament in place:

Aggregate %
S.Mo. Company Name Basls of association of
shareholding
1 Skylina Publicalions {Prvata) Limited Subsidiary 100%
2 HUM TV Inc. Subsidiary 100%
3 HUM Matwork FZ LLC Subshdiary 100%
4 HUM Metwork LIK Limited Subsidiary 100%
5 HUM Mat (Private) Limiled Subaidisry T0%
L] M.D Produciions (Private) Limited Common directorship (35.1.1) -
7 Mamina & Duraid Films (Private) Limited Commaon directorship (35,1,1) -
] Momina and Duraéd Foundation Common dimectorship (35.1.1) -
9 Digital Entertainment World (Private) Limiled Associate -
10 HUM Metwark Limited- Employess’ Providen! Fund Ratiremant Fund -
" Ms. Sultana Siddiqui Direcior 0.02%
12 Mr. Mazhar ul Hag Siddigui D¥recior -
13 Mr. Duraid Cureshi Director 24.30%
14 Mr. Shunaid Qureshi Director 5.38%
15 Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi Director -
16 Lt Gen (R} Asif Yasin Malik Diirecior -
17 Mr. Hasan Reza o Rahim Director -
18 Mr. Sohail Ansar Director ]
tl) Ms. Mabigha Masser Masood Director H
20 Mr. Muhammad Abbas Hussain Key managamant Personnel -
2 Mr. Mohskn Nasam Key manageman Personnel -
3591  These aniities are assocsaied comparses | undenakings of the Company under Companes Act, 2017,
352 Subsidiaries Incorporated outside Pakistan:
Hama Country of Incorporation
HUM TV, Inc. United States of Amarica
HUM Maotwork FZ LLC United Arab Emiralos
HUM Netwark UK Limited United Kingdom

353 Hone of the key management personnel had any amangemeants with the Company other than the employment contract.
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2020 2019
Mote Rupees
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financial assets as per statement of financial position
Financial assets at amortised cost
- Long term deposits 7 24,781,979 24,479,812
- Trade debis 10 1,716,753,677 1,776,702, 967
. Short term investments 1 - 261,406,493
- Trade deposits 13 3,799,681 3,585,681
E Other receivables 14 28,486,968 76,609,321
- Cash and bank balances 15 141,629,483 152,042 BE9
1,91 5#51.?@ 2,294 837,143
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Short lerm investments 11 241,505,092 576,635,081
Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Long term financing 19 837,839,369 978,644,795
Trade and olther payables 20 450,641,820 826,511,303
Accrued mark-up 2,860,434 5,490,094
Short term borrowings 21 189,067,264 299 853 260
Current portion of long term financing 19 196,311,600 371,910,267
Unclaimed dividend 5,948,490 5,948,490
Unpaid dividend 205,159 205,159

2,488 563 368

1,682,874,136
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks i.e. market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and

price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
aof financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management provides
policies for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk and credit nisk, use of financial derivatives, financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. It is the Company’s
policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes shall be undertaken.

COVID-19 has adversely impacted the Company as explained in detail in note 1.3 of these unconsolidated financial
statements. The Company's risk management function continues to monitor the developing situation and proactively manage
any risk arising thereof.

The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices
comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk, such as equity risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
the market interest rates. The Company's interest rate risk arises from long term financing and finance lease obligations,
short term borrowings and bank balances. The Company manages these risks through risk management strategies.

Sensitivity analysis:

The following figures demonstrate the sensilivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Company’s profit before taxation:

dt::::::: :n Effect on profit
before taxation
basis points
Rupees
June 30, 2020 +100 {11,149.882)
-100 — 11,149,862
June 30, 2019 +100 (8.390.634)

-100 8360634
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Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or financial liabilities will fluctuate due to a change in foreign
exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transaclions in foreign currencies. The Company's
exposure to foreign cumrency risk is as follows:

37.3 Currency risk

June 30, 2020 - June 30, 2019 e
AED US Dollar GBP AED Us Dollar GBP
Trade debts - 1,139,901 492,354 - 2,112,901 550,715
Other receivables - 160,808 - - 100,808 -
Trade and other payables (1,028,392) (406,532) - (1.029,740) (257,260) -
Rupees Rupees -
Closing exchange rales 45.5 167.8 205 42.5 158.9 198

Sensitivity analysis:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar and GBP exchange rate, with
all other variables held constant, of the Company's profit before taxation:

Chikad T Effect on Change in Effect on Chibeeis Effect on
AED rgte (%) profit before Us dollar profit before GEP raute (%) profit before
tax rate (%) tax tax

- Rupees - == Rupaas --- - Rupees -
June 30, 2020 +10 (4,679,182) +10 14,986,407 +10 10,093,257
=10 4,679,182 =10 (14,986.407) =10 (10,093,257)
June 30, 2019 +10 (4,378,343) +10 31,087 975 +10 10,904 157
=10 4,378,343 -10 {31,087 875) -10 (10,904 157}

37.4 Equity price risk

The Company’s investments are susceplible to market price risk ansing from uncertainties about future values of investment
securities. The Company manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on individual and total
investments. Reports on the investments portfolio are submitted to the Company’s senior management on a regular basis.

As of the statement of financial posilion date, the exposure lo investments at fair value through profit or loss was Rs.
241,505,092 (30 June 2019: Rs. 397,637 457).

37.5 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. Concentration of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are
engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concenirations of credit risk indicate
the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

The risk management function is regularly conducting detailed analysis on sectors / industries to identify the degree by which
the Company's customers and their businesses have been impacted amid COVID-19. Keeping in view short-term and long-term
outlook of each sector, management has taken inlo consideration the factors while calculating expected credit losses against
trade debts and other receivables.

Management of credit risk

The Company's policy is 1o enter into financial contracts in accordance with the guidelines set by the Board of Directors and
olher internal guidelines.

Credit risk is managed and controlled by the management of the Company in the following manner:

- Credi rating and [ or credil worthiness of the counterparty is taken into account along with the financial background so as to
minimize the risk of default.

- The risk of counterparty exposure due to falled agreements causing a loss to the Company is mitigated by a periodic review of
their credit ratings, financial statements, credit worthiness and market information on a regular basis.

- Cash is held with reputable banks only.
As of the unconsolidated statement of financial position date, the Company is exposed to credit risk on the following assets;

2020 2019
Rupees

- Long term deposits 24,781,979 24 479812
- Trade debts 1,716,753,677 1,776,702 967
- Short term investments 189,067,264 838,041,574
- Trade deposits 3,799,681 3,595,681
- Other receivables 28,486,968 76,608,321
- Bank balances 141,152,703 151,136,046

,104,042, — 2,870,565401
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Quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets can be assessad by reference to external credit ratings or to historical information about
counterparty defaull rates:

2020 2019
Note Rupees
Trade debts
Customers with no defaults in the past one year 1,716,753,677 1,776,702 967
Customers with some defaults in past one year 47,026,912 47,026,912
10 1,763,780,589 1,823,729 879
Bank balances
A+ 15 141,146,955 151,136,046
Al 5,748 -
141,152,703 ___ 151,136.046
Short term investments
Mutual funds AN ++ - 81,721,902
Alf) - 302,965,055
- 384 686,957
Quoted shares Al+ - 6,795,600
Al - 6,154,900
- 12,950,500
Term deposit receipt Al - 106,684,931
Al+ - 101,496,082
L - 53,225,480
- 261,406,493
Term finance certificate Al - 80,000,000
Ad- 198,901,230 -
A- 42,603,862 -
Sukuks A, - 98,997 624
1" 241,505,092 838.041.574
Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company
applies prudent risk management policies by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and by keeping committed credit
lines.

Due to COVID-19 outbreak the Company's customers and their businesses have been adversely impacted. The management
is continuously monitoring the liquidity position and is taking necessary precautionary measures where needed.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities as at the following reporting dates:

2020 On demand LSS Ui 5 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years Total
months
Rupees
Long term lease liabilites - 4,879,289 25,841,107 170,774,112 201,494,508
Long term financing - 60,558,183 237,647,543 949,485,375 1,247,691,101
Trade and other payables 56,515,726 330,410,145 62,442,248 - 449,368,119
Short lerm borrowing - 189,067,264 - - 189,067,264
Accrued mark-up 2,860,434 - - - 2,860,434

59,376,160 584,914,881 325,930,898 1,120,259, 487 2,090,481,426

Less than 3

2019
On demand S, 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years Total
Rupees
Long term lease liabilities 3,920,957 12,904,288 12,305,768 29,131,023
Long term financing - 134,638 297 394,720,972 1,161,015.277 1,690,374,546
Trade and other payables BT, 246,204 281,923,261 457,341 837 - 826,511,302
Short term borrowing - 299 853,260 - - 299,853,260
Accrued mark-up 5,480,094 = - - 5,490,084
892 736,298 720,335,775 864,967 107 1,173,321,045 2 851,360,225
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37.6.1 Changes in liabilities from financing activities

1-Jul-19 Cash Flows New leases Others 30-Jun-20
(Rupees)
Long term financing 1,350,555,062 (316,404,093) - = 1,034,150,969
Long term lease liabilities 185,475,941 (47,492 441) 4,701,600 22,515,209 133,275,010
1-Jul-18 Cash Flows New leases Others 30-Jun-19
(Rupees)
Long term financing 1,105,869,000 244,686,062 - - 1,350,555,062
Long term lease liabilities 31,640,170 (23,443 988) 15,665,850 2,834,642 26,696,674

37.6.2 Fair value of financial instruments
The camrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the unconsolidated financial stalements appropriate their
fair values.

37.7  Capital risk
The Company finances ils operalions through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view of
maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. The primary objective of the Company's
capital management is o ensure that it maintains healthy capilal ralios in order to support its business sustain fulure
development of the business and maximize shareholders value. The Company menitors capital using a debt equity ratio as
follows:

2020 2019
Note Rupees

Long term lease liabilities 18 103,701,273 11,263,903
Long term financing 19 837,839,369 878,644,785
Trade and other payable 20 492,872,413 847,005,655
Accrued markup 2,860,434 5,490,094
Short term borrowing 21 189,067,264 299,853,260
Current portion of long term lease liabilities 18 29,573,737 15,432,771
Current portion of long term financing 19 196,311,600 371,910,267
Total debt 1,852,226,090 2,529 600,745
Cash and bank balances 15 (141,629,483 {152,042, 869)
Net debt 1,710,596,607 2,377,557 876
Share capital 17 945,000,000 845,000,000
Unappropriated profit 2,104,074,108 2.212,120,835
Total equity 3,049,074,108 3,157,120,835
Capital 4,759,670,715 5534.678.711
Gearing ratio 35.94% 42.968%

ars Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid lo transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

markel participants at the measurement date.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate fair values.

The following table shows assets recognised at fair value, analysed between those whose fair value is based on;

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 thal are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability thal are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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Assets measured at fair value
2020 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Rupees)

Short term investments 241,505,092 - - __ 241,505,092 __ 576,635,081

During the period, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out
of level 3 fair value measurement.

37.8  Financial instruments which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the statement of
financial position date.

a8 OPERATING SEGMENTS

For management purposes, the Company has determined following reportable operating segments on the basis of areas of
operations |.e. entertainment and news.

Entertainment segment is engaged in advertisement, entertainment and media marketing.

News segments is engaged in broadcasting of news programs.

Entertainment News Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenue
MNet revenue from external

customar 3,480,085 360 3,843.606,721 199,382,728 135,492,417 3,679,468, 088 3.979.008 138
Result
Segment profit / (loss) 1.074,284 452 763,310,423 {569,869,788) (TBE.737,144) 504,414 664 (23.426,721)
Taxalion 22 BR1,574 (81,157 ,538)
Unallocated income /

(expenses)
Administrative expenses (475,129,826) (488,793,978)
Other Expenses (97,605,189)
Other ncome 173,651,157 210,738,932
Finance cost (241,450,871) (143,243, 790)
Loss for the period {113,238, 491) 535.883.093
Other information
Amaortization (9,281,408) (8.600,396) (5,162,256) (4.728,086) (14,443 664) {13,328.482)
Depreciation {5?.343,0?3] . {65,564.147)  (185,388,078) ) (168,395,722) _ {214,131,15%1 {233.959.365!_!.
Segment assels 360,646,848 297982 756 1,053,331,155 1,242,004,621 1.413,978,003 1,538,987.377
Unallocated Assets - - - - 3,507,104,972 4,152,887 .852

360,646,848 297 982,756 1.053,331,155 1,242 004,621 4,921,082.975 5,692,875 229

Capital expenditure 72,735,426 o7 B27 819 10,297 .6 116,163,532 83,033,078 213,891,351
Segment liabilities 669,553,359 850,456,148 1,202,455 508 1,685,298,246 1,872,008,867 2 535,754,304

381 Revenue from two major customers of the Company during the period consitituted 69% (June 30, 2019: 62% - three
Customers) of the total revenue.

39 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees and average number of employees at period end and during the period respectively are as

follows:
2020 2019
Rupees =--eeee-
Total number of employees 77 il
Average number of employees during the period 789 883
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 16 July 2020, the Company has disposed off the land located in karachi classified as held for sale at the consideration of
Rs. 493,340,000

GENERAL

For better presentation, cerain prior year figures have been reclassified consequent to certain changes in current period
presentation.

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements have been authorised for issue on June 14, 2021 by the Board of Direclors of the Company.

A "

cis S

5 =

DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Hum Network Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Hum Network Limited (the Holding
Company), and its subsidiary companies (the Group) which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2020 and the consolidated staterment of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 30 June 2020, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following is the key audit matter:
Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Net realizable value of television program costs

As of the year end, the balance of television
program costs amounted to Rs. 466,123,750 which
represents unamortized cost of completed
television programs and television programs in
production.

As per the accounting policy of the Group, television

rogram costs and acquired television program

icenses and ri%hls are charged to expense based
on the ratio of the revenues earned till date to total
revenues to be earned from the program including
future estimated revenues, less cost expensed in
prior years on an individual program basis.

Allocation of television program costs over several
accounting periods based on estimates of revenue
involve significant judgement of the management
which may have a significant impact on the
cansoclidated financial statements. For this reason,
we have identified this area as key audit matter.

Refer notes 3.6, 8 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our audit procedures amongst others, comprised
reviewing the appropriateness of the accounting
policy of the Group in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting standards. Further,
we obtained understanding of the revenue
estimation and amortization process of the Group.

In this regard, we selected a sample of television

programs and considered the factors used by the

management for revenue estimation and

amortization of television program cost including;

* historic experience of revenue earned by
similar programs;

+ ratings of the program from available
evidences;

+ rates used by the Group and its fluctuation
based on the trend analysis; and

+ we also considered subsequent events which
may have an impact on unamortized cost.

We also evaluated whether adequate disclosures
have been made in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting standards.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the consolidated financial statements
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimate and related disclosure made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosure in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
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are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit finding, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Omer Chughtai.

Sd/-
Ey Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi
Date: June 16, 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MNote Rupees
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,399,715,699  1,530,839,523
Intangible assets 5 110,838,386 127,507,933
Long term investments 6 73,387,086 77,195,824
Long term deposits 7 27,032,386 41,449 670
Television program costs 8 360,737,951 227,228 617
Deferred tax asset a 161,689,721 75,817,744
2,133401,229 2,080,039,311
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 44,130,860 61,876,831
Current portion of television program costs a 105,385,799 213,385,799
Trade debts 10 2,089,810,853|| 1,888,525,902
Short term investments 11 241,505,092 838,041,574
Advances 12 106,122,200 154,148,617
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 13 42,495,903 20,483,767
Other receivables 14 110,529,571 204,777,946
Taxation — nat 180,574,832 175,847,060
Cash and bank balances 15 268,697,823 361,610,061
3,189,252,933 3,918,697 557
Mon-current asset held for sale 16 16,507,087 -
TOTAL ASSETS 5,339,161,249 5,008 735,068
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised capital
1,500,000,000 (2019: 1,500,000,000) Ordinary shares of Re.1/- each 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000
lzsued, subscribed and paid-up capital 17 945,000,000 845,000,000
Revenue Reserves 2,096,403,506 2,276,458,987
Attributable to owners of the Holding Company 3,041,403,506 3,221,458,987
MNaorn-controlling interast 1,064,284 55,144,321
3,042 467,790 3,276,603,308
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term lease liabilities 18 104,833,723 11,263,903
Long term financing 18 837,839,369 978,644,795
Staff retirement beneafits 28,453,198 -
971,126,290 989,908,698
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 20 657,637,341 1,006,160,499
Advance from customers 238,044,221 27,142,240
Accrued mark-up 3,210,149 5572176
Short term borrowings 21 189,067,264 299,853,260
Unclaimed dividend 5,948,490 5,948,490
Unpaid dividend 205,159 205,159
Current portion of long term lease liabilities 18 35,142,945 15,432,771
Current portion of long term financing 18 196,311,600 371,910,267
1,325,567,169 1,732,224 862
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 22

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

5,339,161,249 5,998,736 868

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statemeants.

A V.
T -
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIGQWI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Revenue

Cost of production

Transmission cost

Gross profit
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other expenses

Other income
Operating loss

Finance costs

Share of net profit of associate
Loss before taxation

Taxation
Loss after taxation

Attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Company
MNon-controlling interests

Loss per share — basic and diluted (Rupee)

Note

23

24

25

26

28

2020 2019
Rupees
4,645,325,787 4,786,716,290
(3,188,456,727) (3,722,553,077)
(440,082,741) (460,431,388)
(3,628,539,468) (4,182,984 465)
1,016,786,319 603,731,825
(356,436,868) (453,623,052)
(698,912,624) (714,402,151)
(263,202,008) (19,915,940)
276,510,077 203,520,514
(25,255,102) (380,688,804)
(244,973,245) (144,476,637)
(270,228,347) (525,165,441)
7.228,162 3,837,024
(263,000,185) (521,328,417)
15,831,667 (128,351,818)
(247,168,518) (649,680,235)
(193,088,481) (644,824, 556)
(54,080,037) (4,855,679)

0.20

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

o
DURAID QURESHI
Chief Executive

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

_\“_E

MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI
Chairman

(247,168,518) (649,680,235)

0.68

MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN

Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
Rupegs —-ceeeemeee

Loss after taxation (247,168,518) (649.680,235)
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to statemeant of

profit or loss
Remeasurement gains on defined benefits plan - net of tax 5,191,764
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or loss

Effect of translation of net investment in foreign subsidiary companies 7,841,236 101,806,308
Total comprehensive loss for the year (234,135,518) (547,873,927)
Attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Company (180,055,481) (543,018,248)
MNon-controlling interests (54,080,037) (4,855,679)

(234,135,518) (547,873,927)

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

A V..
W L Ihf- -";‘:‘
- —
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Revenue Reserves

Issued, Forelgn
subscribed exchange Mon-
and paid-up translation Unappropria controlling
capital reserve ted profit Sub-total interest Total

Balance as at June 30, 2018 845,000,000 50.033,078 2769444157 2819477235 - 3,764, 477,235
Shares issued lo non-controlling-interast - - - - 60,000,000 60,000,000
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests for
the year . . . - (4,855,679) (4,855 679)

= = - = 55,144,321 55,144 321
Loss for the year - Il (644824 556)) (644 824,556) - (644,824 556)
Other comprahensive income - 101,806,308 - 101,808,208 - 101,806,308
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for tha year - 101,806,308 (644,824 556) (543.018,248) - (543,018,248)
Balance as at June 30, 2019 945,000,000 151,839,386 2,124,619,601 2,276,458 987 55,144,321 3,276,603,308
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests for
the year w 2 & . {54,080,037)|| (54,080,037)

. = = . (54,080,037)  (54,080,037)
Loss for the year i - (193,088,481)| (193,088,481) - (193,088,481)
Other comprahensive income - 7,841,236 5,191,764 13,033,000 - 13,033,000
Total comprehensive income | (loss) for the year - 7,841,236 (1B7.B96,717) (180,055,481) - (180,055,481)
Balance as at June 30, 2020 845,000,000 159,680,622 1,936,722,884 2,096,403,506 1,064,284 3,042,467.790

The annexed notes from 1 1o 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

A

e

-

DURAID QURESHI
Chief Executive

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

MAZHAR-UL-HAQ siDDIQUI

Chairman

MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN

Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
MNote —eemeeeeee RUpEES
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations a3 205,153,018 164,000,251
Taxes paid (74,833,979) (128,993,023)
Finance coslts paid (247,335,272) (141,335,989)
Profit received on deposit accounts 12,443,154 22,404 104
Long term deposits 14,417,284 (2,231,163)
Television program costs (133,509,334) 28,941,545
Net cash used in operating activities (223,665,129) (57,214,275)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure (44,455,693) (203,583,836)
Additions to intangible assels (1,008,000) (34,781,273)
Short term investments - net 593,856,977 (239,016,684)
Long term investments - (73,358,800)
Dividend received - 6,191,500
Proceeds from disposal of operaling fixed assets 45,841,494 5,279 827
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 594,234,778 (539,269,266)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term financing - net (316,404,093) 244 686,062
Issuance of shares to non-controlling interest - 60,000,000
Lease rentals paid (36,291,798} (4,943,496)
MNet cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (352,695,891) 299,742 568
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 17,873,758 (296,740,975)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 61,756,801 358,497 776
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 79,630,559 61,756 801
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 268,697,823 361,610,061
Short-term running finance (189,067,264) (299,853,260)

79,630,559 61,756,801

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consalidated financial statements.

e oo
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SiDDIQUI
Chief Executive Chairman

MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

1 THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 HUM Netwark Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance). The shares of the Holding Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

1.2 The Holding Company’s principal business is to launch transnational satellite channels and aims at presenting a wide variety
of cultural heritage. Its core areas of operation are preduction, advertiserment, entertainment and media marketing. It covers a
wide variety of programmes with respect to information, entertainment, news, education, health, food, music and society.

The ‘Group’ consists of
Holding Company
HUM Network Limited

Subsidiary Companies

2020 2019
Percentage of holding
HUM TV, Inc. 100% 100%
HUM MNetwork UK Limited 100% 100%
Sky Line Publications (Private) Limited 100% 100%
HUM Network FZ LLC 100% 100%
HUMM Co. (Private) Limited 100% 100%
HUM Mart (Private) Limited T0% T0%

1.3 Mature of operations of subsidiaries

HUM TV, Inc., HUM Network UK LTD and HUM Network FZ LLC have been established with the purpose of providing
entertainment programmes to the South Asian community by increasing presence in the United Stales of America (USA),
Canada, UK and UAE respectively. HUM Network UK LTD has 100% equity in HUM News Limited, which is engaged in
business of transmission of news for UK audience. The subsidiary companies will also serve as a platform for the Holding
Company to explore avenues for greater distribution of the Holding Company brands in USA, Canada, UK and UAE and will
establish relations with advertisers, as well as develop US-based media materials, such as dramas, documentaries and other
entertainment shows and events.

Skyling Publication (Private) Limited (SPL) is engaged in the publications of books and magazines. SPL has 100% equity in
MNewsline Publication (Private) Limited (NPL), which is engaged in publishing "Newsline” a monthly English magazine.
Pursuant to the scheme of arrangement duly approved by the Board of Directors of NPL (Transferor Company) and SPL
(Transferee Company), as required under section 284 (2) of the Companies Act, 2017 for the amalgamation of Transferor
Company, with and into the Transferee Company, NPL stand merged into the SPL with effect from 30th June 2019.
The said merger was acknowledged by Company Registration Office, Karachi on 13th January 2020.

HUMM Co. (Private) Limited has been established with the purpose of developing and producing contents, shows and
programs. A scheme of merger, by way of amalgamation, of M.D Productions (Private) Limited, a related party with and into
Humm Co. (Privale) Limited was approved by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company on September 22, 2016. During
the year, the petition for the scheme of arrangement has been withdrawn by the Holding Company on April 23, 2019 due to
incrdinate delay in the matter proceeding with the High Court.

HUM Mart (Private) Limited engaged in the business of online shopping for grocery, houselod items and consumer goods.
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1.4 Impact of COVID-19 on the consolidated financial statements

The COVID-18 pandemic caused significant and unprecedented curtailment in economic and social activities during the
period from March 2020 in line with the directives of the Government. This situation posed a range of business and financial
challenges to the businesses globally and across various seclors of the economy in Pakistan,

Despite the challenging operating environment, the Group has been able to continue its operations by implementing strict
measures at its offices to combat and reduce the spread of virus as the health and well-being of the staff is of paramount
importance to Group.

The Group expects that like other sectors of the economy, the media and entertainment industry also 1o be under pressure,
However, the business and financial strategies, and the operational decision are designed to move the Group from strength to
strength, and to ensure operations in a sustainable way during these economic crisis. The management has assessed the
accounting implications of these developments on these consolidated financial statements, including but not limited to
expected credit losses and modification of financial liability under IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments’, the impairment of tangible
assets under 1AS 36, 'Impairment of non-financial assets’, tha nel realisable value of television program costs, provisions and
contingent liabliities under IAS 37.

The Group camied out an assessment including financial and non-financial consideration such as debl covenant compliance,

liguidity and funding concerns, disruption of supply chain, logistics, fluctuating demand, workforce management and
employes health issues.

According to management's assessment, there are no material implications of COVID-192 that require specific disclosure in
the consolidated financial statements,

1.5 Geographical location and address of business units

Registered office Piot Mo. 10/M11, Hassan Ali Street, Off. Ll. Chundrigar Road, Karachi,
Pakistan.

Head office — Karachi B.R.R Tower, Hassan Ali Street, Off. |.1. Chundrigar Road

City offices — Karachi Alfalah Courl, 1.1 Chundrigar Road

City office — Islamabad 2A, 1&T center, sector G-6/1

City office — Lahore House # 58, R-24, Masson Road

City office — Peshawar Plot Mo. 7-A, 29 The Mall, Peshawar Cantonment

City office — Quetta House # 3, Phase I, Shahbaz town

City office — Multan Ghous-e-Azam Road, Bismillah Colony

HUM Network UK Limited 38-P Alum rock road, Birmingham, England.

2 Hemlet Mews, London
HUM MNews Limited Evergreen Houes Morth Third Floor, Office Suite 311, Grafton Place,

Euston London, United Kingdom.

HUM Network FZ LLC Office G-01 Boutique Studio City, Dubai, UAE.

Skyline Publication (Private) Limited Plot Mo. 10/11, Hassan Ali Street, Off. 1.1, Chundrigar Road, Karachi,

Hum Mart (Private) Limited Plot #E_R-?. Shed # A-2, Survey 413, Sector 7 A, Korangi Industrial Area,
Karachi.

HUM TV, Inc. 6201 Bonhomme Road, 180N, Houston Texas.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
21 Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of;
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- Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chatered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP)
as are nolified under the Act; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the
Act have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost convention, except otherwise
specifically stated.

23 New and amended standards

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with those of the
previous financial year except that the Group has adopted the following amendments of IFRS which became effective for the

current year:

IFRS 9 - Prepayment Fealures with Negative Compensation (Amendments)
IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 16 - Leases

IFRS 16 - COVID 19 Related Rent Concessions (Amendments)

IAS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments)

IAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments)
IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over income lax treatments

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB (2015-2017 cycle)

IFRS 3 - Business Combinations - Previously held Interests in a joint operation

IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements - Previously held Interests in a joint operation

IAS 12 - Income Taxes - Income tax conseguences of payments on financial instruments classified as equity
IAS 23 - Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and improvemenlts to accounting standards did not have any material
effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements except for IFRS 16. The impact of adoption of IFRS 16 are described
below:

IFRS 16 - Leases

IFRS 16 ‘Leases' supersedes IAS 17 'Leases’, 'IFRIC 4' Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, 'SIC-15
Operaling Leases Incentives and 'SIC-27" Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. Under IFRS 186,
distinction between operating and finance leases has been removed and all lease contracts, with limited exceptions, will be
recognised in statement of financial position by way of right-of-use assets along with their corresponding lease liabilities.

Lease obligations of the Group comprises of lease arrangements giving it the right-of-use over properties utilized as office
building and other land on rentals.

The Group adopted IFRS 16 with effect from July 01, 2019 using the modified retrospective method. Under this method, the
standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognised at the date of initial
application with no restatement of comparative information. The Group elected lo use the transition practical expedient
allowing the Group to use a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics. The Group also elected to
use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or
less and do not contain a purchase option (short-term leases).

IFRS 16 allows two options for transition under the modified retrospective method as follows:

- recognize the lease liability at the date of initial application for operating leases at the present value of remaining lease
payments and a right-of-use asset equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to those leases, or;

- recognize the lease liability at the date of initial application for operating leases at the present value of remaining lease
payments and a right-of-use asset at its carmying value as if the new standard had always been applied.
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In applying the standard, the Group has recognised lease liability at the date of initial application as present valug of
remaining lease payments and a right-of-use assel equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of prepaid or accrued
lease payments previously recognised. The present value has been determined using a single discount rate for portfolio of
leases exhibiting similar characteristics based on practical expedient provided in the standard.

Lease term is the non-cancelable period for which the Group has right to use the underlying asset in line with the lease
contract together with the periods covered by an option to extend which the Group is reasonably certain to exercise and
option to terminate which the Group Is not reasonably certain to exercise.

The lease liabilities as al July 01, 2018 can be reconciled to the operating lease commilments as at June 30, 2019 as follows:

The impact of adoption of IFRS 16 as at July 01, 2019 is as follows:

Operating lease commitments as at June 30, 2018 287,819176
Impact of discounting (111,023,685)
Total lease liability as at July 01, 2019 176,795,491
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at July 01, 2019 14.11%

The impact of the amendment of IFRS 16 "COVID 19 Related Rent Concessions” did not have any material impact on the
Group.

Assets

Property, plant & equipment - right-of-use asset 178,759,090
Prepayments {1,963,599)
Total Assels 176,795,491
Liabilities

Lease liabilities 176,795,491
Deferred taxation 569,444

24 Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation:

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning
Standards and amendments on or after)
IFRS 3 - Definition of a Business (Amendments) 01 January 2020
IFRS 3 - Reference to conceptual framework (Amendmenis) 01 January 2022
IFRS T, Interest rate benchmark reforms (Amendments) 01 January 2020
IFRE9 &
I1AS 39
IFRS 10 & - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate Not yet finalized
1AS 28 ar Joint Venture (Amendment)
1AS1/1458 - Definition of Material (Amendments) 01 January 2020
1AS 1 - Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments) 01 January 2022
IAS 16 - Proceeds before intended use (Amendments) 01 January 2022
IAS 37 - Onerous contracts - cost of fulfilling a contract (Amendments) 01 January 2022

“The IASB has issued an exposure draft proposing to defer the effective date of the Amendments to IAS 1 to 01 January
2023,

The above standards and interpretations are not expected to have any material impact on the Group's financial statements in
the period of initial application.

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB (2015-2017 cycle)

Effective date
{annual periods
beginning
Standard or Interpretation on or after)
IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments — Fees in the "10 percent’ test for derecognition 01 January 2022
of financial liabilities
1AS 41 - Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements 01 January 2022
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The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual Framework) in March
2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020 for preparers of financial statements who
develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framewark. The revised Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and
none of the concepts override those in any standard or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptual
Framewaork is to assist 1ASB in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no
applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards.

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the Securities Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

I1ASB effective date
{annual periods beginning on or
Standard or Interpretation after)
IFRS 1 First time adoption of IFRSs 01 January 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Conlracts 01 January 2023

25 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, requires the management to make judgment, estimates and assumptions thal affect the application of policies and
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Estimates, assumptions and judgments are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and judgments which are
significant to the consolidated financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (note 4 & 5)

The Group reviews approprialeness of the rate of depreciation / amortisation, useful life and residual value used in the
calculation of depreciation / amortisation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of assets is made
for possible impairment on an annual basis. In making these estimates, the Group uses the technical resources available with
the Group. Any change in the estimales in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, with corresponding effects on the depreciation / amortisation charge and impairment.

Television program costs (note 8)

Television program costs represent unamortised cost of completed television programs and television programs in
praduction. In order to determine the amount (o be charged lo consolidaled statement of profit or loss, the management
astimates fulure revenues from each program. Estimates of future revenues can change significantly due lo a variety of
factors, including advertising rales and the level of market acceptance of the production in different geographical locations.
Accordingly, revenue estimates are reviewed periodically and amortisation is adjusted, if necessary. Such adjustmenis could
have a material effect on resulis of operations in future periods.

Income taxes (note 9)
In making the estimate for income tax payable by the Group, the Group takes into account the applicable tax laws and the
decision by appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses and credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which such losses and credits can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future laxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.

Impairment of financial assets (note 3.9)

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade debts and other receivables. The provision rates are based on
days past due for Group's various customer that have similar loss patterns
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The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaulls in the manufacturing seclor, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporling date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-locking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The
Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer's
actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's financial assets exposed to credit risk is disclosed
in note 37.5.

Contingencies (note 22)

The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the cutcome of the future
avents cannot be predicted with certainty. The Group, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of
contingent assets and liabilities which may differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain future events.

Leases- Estimating the incremental borrowing rate (note 18)

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
{'IBR') to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay lo borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment.

Leases- Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options (note 18)

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has lease contracts thal include extension and termination oplion. The Group applies judgemant in evaluating
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all
relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or lermination. After the
commencement dale, the Group reassesses lhe lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of consolidation

Subsidiary is a entity over which the Group has control, Control is achieved when the group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. Generally, there is presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control.

The Group re-assess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more elements of contral,

Subsidiary is consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
when such conlrol ceases. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed off during the year are included in
profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The financial statements of the Subsidiary Company are prepared for the same reporting period as the Holding Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The accounting policies of the Subsidiary Company have been changed to conform with
accounting policies of the Holding Company, where required.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition dale; any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acguisition date, irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling interest. The excess of cost
of acquisition is recorded as goodwill, however, if the cost of acquisition is less than fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

All intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends
within the Group are eliminated in full.
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Non-controlling interest (NCI) is that part of the net resulls of operations and of net assets of subsidiary attributable interest
which are not owned by the Group. The Group measures NCI on proportionate basis of the nel assels of subsidiary company.,

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the
Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, carrying
amount of any NCI, cumulative translation differences recognised in other comprehensive income, and recognises fair value
of consideration received, any investment retained, surplus or deficit in profit and loss, and reclassifies the Holding Company
share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income to profit or loss account or retained eamings, as
appropriate.

32 Investment in associate

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally represented by a
shareholding of 20% or more but less than 50% of the voting rights. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policies and decision of investees, Invesimenls in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

The Group's share of ils associates’ post acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or loss and its share in
associates' post acquisition other comprehensive income is recognised in the Group's other comprehensive income,
Cumulative post acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying value of the investments. Dividends received from
associates reduce the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate including any other long term unsecured receivable, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

When FVOCI investment is converted into asscciated company, the balance in the surplus on revaluation of related asset is
transferred to un-appropriated profit. Gain on transaction between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in associates.

The carrying amount of the investment s tested for impairment, by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less cosis to sell) with its carmying amount and loss, if any, is recognised in the profit or loss.

3.3 Property, plant and equipment
3.3.1  Operating fixed assets
These are stated at cosl less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Depreciation is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss using straight line method so as to write off the historical
cost of the assels over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is
available to use and no depreciation is charged for the month in which asset was disposed of.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals
and improvements, if any, are capitalized when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the Group.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the nel
disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset) is included in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the
assel is derecognised.

The assets' residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are revised, and adjusted if appropriate, al each
consolidated statement of financial position date.

3.3.2 Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises a right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured al cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assels includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of lease term or useful life,
except for the leases in which ownership of the underlying assets transfer to the lessee by the end of the lease term or cost of
right of use assets reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchase option, the Group depreciate those right of use asset over
the useful life of the underlying assel.
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a7

Capital work-in-progress

These are staled at cost less accumulated impairment losses and consists of expenditures incurred and advances made in
respect of specific assets during the construction period. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are
available for use.

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the cash paid and the fair value of other assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly atinbutable to the acquisition. The acquired identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities are measured at their fair values at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the nel fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is recognized as goodwill.

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured al cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generaling unit to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognized.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life is reviewed at least al each financial year end. The amortisation expense an intangible assels with finite lives
is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible
assetl,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Television program costs

Television program coslts represent unamortized cost of completed television programs and television programs in
production. These costs include direct production costs, cost of inventory consumed, and production overheads and are
slated at the lower of cost, less accumulated amortisation and net realizable value (NRV). NRV is estimated by the
management on the basis of fulure revenue generation capacity of the program. Acquired television program licenses and
rights are recorded when the license period begins and the program is available for use,

Television program costs and acquired television program licenses and rights are charged to expense based on the ratio of
the revenues eamed till date to total revenues to be eamed from the program including future estimated revenues less cost
expensed in prior years on an individual program basis.

Non current assets held for sale

Mon current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are stated al the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less cost to sell,

The: criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and the asset or disposal
group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Aclions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is
unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be
committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale expected to be completed within one year from the date of the
classification.

Property, plant and equipment are not depreciated once classified as held for sale.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presenled separately as current items in the consoclidated statement of
financial position.
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38 Inventories
These are valued on weighted average cost basis and are stated at the lower of cosl and NRV.

Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on management's best estimate and is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

39 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Under IFRS 9 Financial assets are classified, al iniial recognition, as subsequently measured at following:

(a) at amortised cost
(b) at fair value through profit or loss(FVTPL); and
(c) at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables are measured at the transaclion price determined under IFRS 15,

In order for a financial asset lo be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to
cash flows thal are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding. This assessmenl is
referred 1o as the SPPI test and s performed at an instrument level. The Group’s business model for managing financial
assels refers to how it manages its financial assetls in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial asseats, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset,

(a) At amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset s held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order o collect
contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(b) At fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, imespective of the business model. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meels the requirements o be measured at amoriised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that is initially measured at the
transaction price) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition.

(c) At fair value through other comprehensive income
A debt instruments is measured at fair value through QCI if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business modeal with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect lo classify irrevocably its equity investmeants as equity instruments designated at
FVOCI when they meet the definition of equity under |1AS 32 Financial Instruments:; Preseniation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
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Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into following categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments).
. Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon

derecognition (equity instrumenls)
- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR) method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at FVPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments lo be classified at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated al FVPL on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significanlly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the unconsolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

This category also includes derivative instruments and listed equily investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at FVOCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognised as other income in profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

These assels are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses
or reversals are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assels measured al amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCIl. Upon derecognition, the
cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is recycled to profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses (equity instruments)

These assets are subsequently measurad at fair value. Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI|. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are
not subject to impairment assessment.

As at the date of consclidated statement of financial position, Group is not having any equity instrument designated at fair
value through OCI.

Derecognition

A financial assel (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assels) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred subslantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, bul has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an assel or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the assel, the Group continues to recognise the transferred assel to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured al the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows thal the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the confractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk

since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irmespective of the

timing of the default {a lifetime ECL).

For trade debts, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
astablished a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-loocking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financlal asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

i) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivalives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction cosis.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as al fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are salisfied. The Group
has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, borrowings and payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the conscolidated statlement of profit or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Exchange gain or losses arising in respect of borrowings in foreign
currency are added to the carrying amaount of the borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.10 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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3.14

3.15

Advance from customers (Contract Liability)

A contract liability is the obligation of the Group to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is
due (whichever is earlier). Conltract liability are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the coniract.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication
of impairment, If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment
loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to disposal and value in use.
Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets for which the estimate of future cash flow
have not been adjusted. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables excluding financial assets

These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. Subseguent to initial recognition
assessment is made al each consolidated statement of financial position date to determine whether there is an indication that
assels may be impaired. If such indication exists, the estimated recoverable amount of that asset is determined and any
impairment loss is recognised for the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying value.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assels and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:

« Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period

Or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting pericd

All other assets are classified as non-currant.

A liability is current when:

« |t is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

= |t is held primarily for the purpose of trading

* |t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period

Or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the oplion of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments
do not affect its classification.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Taxation

Current
Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income in accordance with the applicable laws.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on all major temporary differences arising at the
consolidated statement of financial position date between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assels are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the axtent that it is probable that the fulure taxable profits will be available against which
the assets may be ulilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each consolidated statement of financial position date and reduced
o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
assel to be recognized.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is seftled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
consolidated statement of financial position date,

316 Cash and cash equivalents

These are carried at cost. For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of
cash in hand, bank balances and short term running finance.

317  Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, nel of tax, from the proceeds.

318 Leases

The Group assesses at conlract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

3.18.1 Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assels representing the
right to use the underlying assels,

i) Lease liabilities

Al the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
paymenis to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reascnably cerlain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the termination
option is reasanably certain to be exercised. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs. In calculating the present value of lease payments at the lease commencement date, the Group uses the
interest rate implicit in the lease. In case where the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the Group
uses iis incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accration of interest and reduced for the lease paymenis made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

i) Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options

The Group determines the lease term as the non-canceliable term of the lease, logether with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably cerlain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evalualing whether it is reasonably certain whether or nol to exercise the option to renew or lerminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not lo exercise the option (o renew or o lerminate (e.q., construction of
significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation of the leased asset).

iii) Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The |BR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment.

iv) Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption fo its short-term leases of office premises (i.e., those leases

that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.25

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional / contractual right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the consolidated statement of financial position date.

Unclaimed and unpaid dividend

Dividend declared by the Group, in the preceding three years, which remains unclaimed or unpaid as on the consolidated
statement of financial position date is recognized as unpaid dividend. Dividend declared and payable prior to the preceding
three years from the consolidated statement of financial position date are recognized as unclaimed dividend,

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past evenls, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable eslimate can be made of the

amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each consolidated statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimale.

Revenue recognition

Advertisement revenue is recognised when the related advertisement or commercial appears before the public i.e., aired.
Production revenue: Production revenue is recognised when production work appears before public.

Digital revenue: Digital revenue Is recognised on the basis of number of impressions on the advertisement aired on website.

Subscription income arises from the monthly billing to subscribers for services provided by the Group. Revenue is recognised
in the month the service is rendered.

Film Distribution Revenues: Revenue from film distribution is recognized at a point in time upon receipt of related sales
reports from cinemas.

Sale of goods are recognized when goods are delivered to customers.,

Credit limits in contract with customers ranges from 2 to 90 days.

Other income

Sale of magazine and DVD's is recognized on receipt basis.

Profit on bank deposits is accounted for on effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognized when it is declared and right to receive is established.

Interest / markup income is recognized on accrual basis.

Other revenues are accounted for on an accrual basis,

Expenses

Expenses are recorded when incurred based on the accrual basis of accounting. Distribution costs and administrative
expenses include direct and indirect costs not specifically part of cost of production. Allocations between cost of production,

distribution and administrative expenses, when required, are made on a consistent basis.

Staff retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan
The Holding Company operates a funded and approved provident fund scheme for all its permanent employees. Equal

monthly contributions are made, both by the Holding Company and the employees, to the fund at the rale of 8.33% of the
basic salary.
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Defined benefit plan

The Holding Company operated an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees up till June 30, 2012, Effective
July 1, 2012 the Holding Company discontinued the gratuity scheme for all the permanent employees except for the Chief
Executive Officer (CEQ). However, during the year 30 June 2013 the Holding Company had transferred the entire liability to a
recognized gratuity fund scheme. The Holding Company's obligation under the scheme is determined through actuarial
valuations carried out under the "Projected Unit Credit Method”. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out at 30 June 2020
and based on the actuarial valuation, the Holding Company had recognised the liability for retirement benefits and the
corresponding expenses. Actuarial gains and losses that arise are recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the year in which they arise. Past service coslts are recognised immediately in consolidated statement of profit or
loss irrespective of the fact that the benefits are vested or non-vested. Current service costs and any past service costs
together with the effect of the unwinding of the discount on plan liabilities are charged to consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

3.26 Foreign currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistani Rupees using the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees using the exchange
rate at the consolidated statement of financial position date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translations at the year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are taken to consolidated statement of profit or loss currantly.

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiary companies are translated to Pak rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the
consolidated staternent of financial position date. The Income and expenses of foreign subsidiary companies are translated at
average rate of exchange for the year. Translation gains and losses arising on the translation of net investment in foreign
subsidiary companies are taken to equity under "Foreign Exchange Translation Reserve” and on disposal are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.27 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of assets and incurred during the period in
connection with the activities necessary to prepare the assel for its intended use are capilalized as a part of the cost of
related asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
3.28 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation o reserves are recognized in the consolidated financial statements in the period in which these
are approved.

3.29 Contingencies

Contingencies are disclosed when the Group has a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the enlity or a present obligation that arises from pasl events bul is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability,

3.30 Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss afttributable to ordinary shareholders of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period.

3.31  Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Group's functional and presentation
currency,

3.32 Segment Reporting
Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating segment is a component of the
Group that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenue and incur expenses. An operating segment's

operaling results are reviewed regularly by the senior management of the Group to make decisions aboul resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is avalflable.
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June 34, June 30,
2020 2019
Hote Rupees
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 4.1 1,246 984, 186 1,471,807 589
Right of use assels 45 136,797 636 -
Capital work-in-progress 45 15,933,877 59,031,834
1,399,715,660 1.530,838,523
Oparating fixed assats
Cost Accumsdated depreciation Dok valun Boptrciasen
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=i 10 [ron 18y
Matuciay 125,671 158 T N7 IS RTT T A1 BT BLEFLAT0 4445 aT ]
Aadmmas ATRGT
EL00P 244 {5291 )
s vmsal oguGmen 5 B8 SR 1066803 60,40 T3 29000 4 86T 48 ST oY 41,314,181 =
LE T [LEXT. Py
Ly s TEAR IR . 75,684 289 2981 08 AT48380 BT 380 248,787 o W
Cfice squipFran| AT S Lobg A0~ 12T N T AN T iR T B SLAFRD L)
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N Includes assel under common ownership under Ciminishing Musharaka armangemeant.

= Additions of Rs. B5.580,151 (Juna 30, 201%: Rs. 1897.709.288), as shown above, include an amount of Rs. 58,434 083 (June 30, 2019 Rs. 78.286,438)
transferned from capital work in progress durng the period.

=* Includes transfers from leased o owned assets. (Refer note 4 5)

i

i

Reclassified 1o non-currant assets held for sale. (Refor note 16)

Translened o right of use assets on adoplion of IFRS-16 “Leases” as fully explaingd in note 2.3 to these consofidated financial stalements.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



Annual Report 2020

4.2 Particular of Immovable Asset in the name of the Group are as follows:
Location  Addresses Total Area (sq.yards)
Karachi Piot No. 10711 hassan ali streat, off 11, Chundrigar road. 2,070
Karachi Piot no. 125, national highway, phase 1
Pakistan Defence Officers Housing Authority. 1,451
Islamabad  Plol Mo.24, 1&T centre sector G-6/1. 30,610
Islamabad  B-T km, kashmir highway, adjacenl to Sector H-17 303
2020 2019
MNote RUPEES ——eemmaen
43 Depreciation for the period on operating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:
Cost of production 24 175,501,285 183,895 66T
Distribution cosis 25 1,171,383 2,867,754
Agdminisiralive axpanses 26 45,091,471 56,184 470
221,764,139 242,957,881
4.4 The details of operating fixed assels disposed [ written off, during the period are as follows:
Accumulated  Net book Sale Loss | Modes of
Cost depreciation value proceeds {Gain) Diposals Particulars of Buyer
Audio visual equipment 2,660,880 1931910 728.970 450,458 238,511 MNegotiation Akbar Engineering
925,000 366,146 558.854 794,000 {235,148) Insurance claim Adamjes Insurance
i
SHice Syuipment 14565855  B011275 6554680 2,684,826 3,860,854 Negotiation Akbar Engineering
Vahicl Duraid Qureshi {Chief
s 23861756  11,508.304 12263451 16,884,843 (4621.392) As per Company Policy Executive)
Sultana Siddiqul, 8
20,667 940 14,467,558 6200382 6,200,382 - As per Company Policy related party
8,300,000 5,810,000 2,420,000 1,800,000 590,000 Megotiation Mr. Muhammad Ali Asif
Mr. Athar Vigar Azim, an
7,777,500 5444250 2333250 4198182 (1.864.942) As per Company Policy employasa
Ms. Maimona Siddigui,
6.260,.250 4,382,175  187BOTS 2,488,880 (610.805) As per Company Policy an amployes
Mr. Hassan Jawad, an
5,810,600 4,067,013 1,743,587 2,050,832 (307.245)  As par Company Policy employee
Mr. Momaan un Nabi, an
2,608,210 1,825,747 TB2.463 1,131,861 (348.498)  As per Company Policy employes
Mr. Omer Masir, an
1918900  1,343230 575670 763100  (187.430) 'S Per Company Policy employee
Kk o G Boli Mr. Manan Zafar, an
1,693,000  1,185100 507,900 507,900 - PSRRI T amployes
Items having book value 21,655,781 16,736,305 4010476  5.846,119 (926,643) Negatiation Various
of less than Rs. 500,000
June 30, 2020 118,705,771 77,160,013 41 758 45841494 (4,304,73
Juna 30, 2019 9,969,840 7216.067 2773773 5.270.827 (2506.054)
2020 2019
MNote snssececs  RUPEOE ssceences
4,5 Right of use assots
As at July 01, 2018
Casl (Impact of initial application of IFRS 16) 23 178,759,090 -
Transfer from operating fixed assels - book value 4.1 45,581,850 -
Net book value 224,340,940
Year ended June 30, 2020
Opening net book value 224,340,940
Additions 4,701,600 -
Change due to modification during the year 41 (31,925,289) 8
Transfer to operating fixed assets- book value {14,910,383) -
Less: Dapreciation charge for the period (45,409,222)
Closing net book value 136,797,636 .
As at June 30, 2020
Cosl 184,957,720
Accumulated depreciation {48,160,084) =
Net book valua 136,797,636 -
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4.5.1 The right-of-use assets are depreciated on straight line basis over the remaining lease term.

4,52 Depreciation for the period on right of use assets has been allocated as follows:

4.6

4.6.1

Cost of production
Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Note

24
25
26

Breakup of depreciation of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

Land and building

Vehicles

Capital work-in-progress

Leasehold Land

Movement in capital work-in-progress during the period:

Balance at beginning of the year
Additions during the peiod
Transfers during the period
Balance at end of the period

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

Computer softwares

License fee
Trade mark

June 30, 2020

Goodwill

Computer softwares

License fee
Trade mark

June 30, 2019

2020 2019
Rupees
26,358,006 .
2,120,139 -
16,931,077 -
5,400,222 -
2020 2018
Rupegs -—--——em
31,111,065 .
14,298,157 -
45,409,222 -
15033877 50,031,634
59,031,934 39,849,659
16,336,036 97 468,713
{59,434,003) (78,286.438)

Cost Accumulated amortization Book value
As at Additions As at As at For the As at as at
July 01, June 30, July 01, period June 30, June 30,
2019 2020 2019 2020 2020
13,862 252 - 13,862,252 11,803,791 - 11,803,791 2,058,461
78,905,667 . 78,905 66T7 28,221,781 11,544,919 39,766,700 39,138,967
75,563,208 - 75,563,208 13,083,081 475,544 13,558,625 62,004 583
33,233,084 1008000 34241084 20947625 5657084 26,604,709 7,636,375
201,564,211 1,008,000 202,572,211 74,056,278 17,677,547 91,733,825 110,838,386
Cost Accumulated amortization Book value
As at Additions As at As at For the As at as at
Jduly 01, June 30, July 01, year June 30, June 30,
2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
13,411,606 450,646 13,862 252 11,803,791 11,803,791 2,058 461
66,222 575 12,683,092 7B,005887 20,798,823 7422958 28.221.781 50,683,886
59,032,673 16,530,535 75,563,208 10,938,203 2,144 878 13,083,081 62,480,127
28,116,084 5117000 33,233,084 12,691,065 8,256,560 20947625 12,285,459
166,782,938 34,781,273 201,564,211 44428091 17,824,396 74,056,278 127,507,933
11,803,791

15,933,877 59,031,934

Amortisation
rate
%
per annum

20-33
6,87
20

Amortisation
rate
%
PEr annum

20-33
6.67
20
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2020 2019
: Note /
51 Amortisation for the period has been allocated as follows: Holding Rupees
Cost of production 24 12,157,206 9,722,368
Adminisirative expenses 26 5,520,341 8,102,028

17,677,547 17,824 396

6 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Unguoted investment in an associate — stated as per equity
method

6.1

6.2

Digital Entertainment World (Private) Limited (DEW)

Opening balance 77,195824 -
Investment made during the year - 73,358,800
Share of profit — net of tax 7,228,162 3,837,024
Provision for impairment (11,036,900) -
Closing balance 73,387 086 77,195,824

The summarised financial information of the associated company in which there is a significant influence, based on the un-
audiled financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

MNon-current assets

2020

2019

Rupees -
semeemeeee=UUn-Audited

6,987,780 5,913,569

Current assels 32,566,337 15,046,807
Total liabilities 12,934,378 6,806,048
Revenues 84,715,345 88,331,573
Gross profit 23,181,189 12,818,219
Profit after tax 12,465,411 7,956,996
Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income 12,465,411 7,956,996

Subsequent to the year end, the Group in its meeting held on 08 August 2020 decided to surrender its investment in DEW.
Accordingly, the Group recognises provision for impairment to reduce the carrying value of its investment in DEW to its
recoverable amount in these consolidated financial statemants.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Security deposits
- Lease 1,353,257 688,550
- Rent 8,921,458 9,041,458
- Trade 13,612,459 28,339,110
- Others 3,145,212 3,379,552
27,032,386 41,449 670
TELEVISION PROGRAM COSTS
Unreleased / released less amortisation 427,380,500 386,400,500
In production 38,743,250 54,213,916
466,123,750 440,614 416
Less: Current partion (105,385,799) 213,385,799
360,737,951 22;%23.61?
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10

1014

10.2

10.3

DEFERRED TAX ASSET

Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:
Unused tax credils on subscription income

Unrealised loss on short term investments

Unabsorbed tax losses

Provisions

Long term lease liabilities - nat

Accelarated tax depreciation and amortisation

Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:
Accelarated tax depreciation
TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Considered good
Considered doubtiul

Less: Provision for doubtful debts

Particulars of receivable from foreign jurisdictions:

Jurisdiction
United Arab Emirates
United States of America

2020 2019
Note Rupees -
90,526,694 56,028,518
1,388,007 1,004,068
11,579,987 14,853,654
50,746,755 4,000,881
731,532 -
6,716,746 -
161,689,721 75,977,121
- (159,377)
161,689,721 75,817,744
10.4 2,089,810,853 1,888,525,902
89,539,634 87,832,093
2,179,350,487 1,976,357 ,995
10.2 (89,539,634) {(87,832,093)

2,089,810,853 1,888 525,902

94,599,792 80,144,846
24,082,237 24,356,787
118,682,029 104,501,633

These receivables are on contract basis and there are no defaulting parties as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019.

Provision for doubtful debts

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Provision written off

Balance as at the end of the year

The aging of trade debts as at June 30 is as follows:

MNeither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired

- 01to 30 days

- 31 to 60 days

- Over 60 days

2020 2019
Rupees
87,832,093 158,653,060
25,823,089 5421,163
(24,115,548 (76,242,130
9,530, 57'9'3'2'69%'
2020 2019
Rupees
1,310,822,787 1,416,584 850
436,947,080 296,343,770
263,416,582 106,919,361
78,624,404 68,677,921

2,089,810,853 1,888 525902

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2020 2019
Rupees

Note

11 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss

United Bank Limited
16,000 TFCs having face value of Rs. 5,000 each - 80,000,000

Meezan Bank Lid. Tier |l Modaraba Sukuks - 98,997 624

Bank of Punjab
2,033 TFCs having face value of Rs.99,860 each 111 198,901,230 -

U Microfinance Bank Limited
8,400 TFCs having face value of Rs.4,994 each 11.4 42,603,862 -

Quoted Shares

Habib Bank Limited

60,000 shares having market value of - 6,795,600
Rs. 113.26 each

Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Ltd.

60,000 shares having market value of - 4,169,400
Rs. 69.49 each
Inter Steel Lid.
50,000 shares having market value of - 1,985,500

Rs. 39.71 each
Mutual Fund

Askari High Yield Scheme

2,958,712 units having net asset value (NAV) of Rs.102.3976 - 302,965,055
BMA Empress Cash Fund
8,045,078 shares having market value of Rs.10.158 each - 81,721,902

At amortised cost

Term Deposit Receipts 11.4 - 250,000,000
Accrued Profit Thereon - 11,406,493
- 261,406,493

241,505,092 838,041,574

11,1 These carry interest ranging from 8.68% to 16.98% (2019: 9.25% lo 12.2%).

2020 2019
Rupees
12 ADVANCES - unsecured, considered good
Interest free advances lo:
- Producers 52,272,091 102,819,178
- Suppliers 39,398,193 45,639,766
- Employees 9,738,189 5,032,134
- Executives 4,713,727 657,539
106,122,200 154,148,617
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14

14.1

15

15.1

16

17

171

2020 2018
Note Rupees --—-----n-
TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS
Deposits
- Rent 664,500 664,500
- Trade 17,694,716 1,997,207
- Others 1,137,974 2,523,081
19,497,190 5,184,788
Prepayments
- Insurance 15,972,890 10,152 B15
- Rent 1,734 426 1,931,687
- Other 5,291,397 3,214,477
22,998,713 15,298,979
42,495,903 20483 767
OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good
Sales tax receivable 141 108,626,731 95,587,378
Income/ mark-up accrued 69,589 84,561,933
Others 1,833,251 24,628,635

110,529,571 204,777,946

As per rule 3(5) of Sindh Sales Tax Special Procedure (withholding) Rule, 2014, registered persons as recipient of
advertisement services shall withheld whole of sales lax applicable on the person providing advertisement services,
Accordingly, the Holding company is unable to adjust its inpul tax deducted on purchases of taxable goods and services as
100% of the output tax on the Holding Company’s taxable services are being wilthheld by the recipient of these services.
However, Holding Company is in correspondence with the relevant authorities through its legal advisor to resolve the matter.

2020 2019
Rupees
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 2,018,652 1,433,071
Cash at banks
- in current accounts 140,421,348 246 585,651
- in deposit accounts 15.1 126,257,823 113,591,339

266,679,171 360,176,890
268,697,823 361,610,081

These carry profit at the rates ranging from 6.5% to 11.25% (30 June 2019; 8% to 10.25%) per annum.

NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE

During the year, the management of the Group intended to sell land owned by the Holding Company in karachi having fair
value of Rs. 472,958,100 based on the independent valuation.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2020 2019 2020 2019
(Number of shares) Rupees
Ordinary shares of Re. 1/- each
500,000,000 500,000,000 Fully paid in cash 500,000,000 500,000,000
445,000,000 445,000,000 Issued as fully paid bonus shares 445,000,000 445,000,000
945,000,000 945,000,000 945,000,000 945,000,000

As atl June 30, 2020, insfitutions and others held 604,969,034 and 340,030,966 shares, respeclively (June 30, 2019:
527,163,899 and 417,836,101). Voling rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voling are in proportion to the
shareholding.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2020 2019
Note Rupees
18 LONG TERM LEASE LIABILITIES
Opening balance 26,696,674 31,640,170
Impact of initial application of IFRS 16 23 176,795,491 -
Balance as at 1 July 203,492,165 31,640,170
Additions during the period 4.5 4,701,600 15,665,850
Change due to modification during the year (31,925,299) -
Mark up on lease liabilities 29 24,730,643 2834642
Less: Lease rentals paid (61,022,441) (23,443,988)
Closing balance 181 139,976,668 . 25.69&61
Current portion of long-term lease liabilities 35,142,945 15,432,771
Long-term lease liabilities 104,833,723 11,263,903
18.1  Includes lease finance facility entered into by the Holding Company with commercial banks for vehicles amounting to Rs
115,000,000 (June 2019: Rs. 115,000,000) out of which Rs. 101,173,870 (June 2019: Rs. 88,303,326) remains unutilized
at period end. Lease rentals are payable in monthly installments latest by September 2022,
2020 2019
19 LONG TERM FINANCING - secured Note Rupees
Islamic banks
Diminshing Musharaka - | 191 409,771,846 550,655,062
Diminshing Musharaka - Il 19.2 312,195,127 400,000,000
721,966,973 950,555,062
Less: current maturity {169,835,542) 257,640 427
552,131,431 692,914 635
Convetional bank
Term Finance Loan 19.2 312,183,996 400,000,000
Less: current maturity (26,476,058) 114,269,840
285,707,938 285,730,160
EST.BH,SE!I 9?8,544,?95
19.1 Represent Diminishing Musharaka facility carrying profit at the rate of 8 months KIBOR plus 1% (June 2019: 6 months
KIBOR plus 1%) per annum. The financing is repayable by 24 June 2023 in 48 equal monthly instalments commencing
after a grace period of 12 months from the date of first disbursement i.e. from June 2018, The loan is secured by way of
registered mortgage over the building on leasehold land.
19.2 Represent Diminishing Musharaka and Term Finance Loan carrying profit at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 1% (June
2019: 6 months KIBOR plus 1%) per annum. The financing is repayable in 48 equal monthly instaiments commencing after
a grace period of 18 months from the date of first disbursement i.e. December 2017. During the year, the Company has
availed the principal deferment facility for LTFF offered by the SBP through BPRD circular no. 13 of 2020 to ease adverse
effects of the COVID-19 and to provide relief to the businesses. Hence, the financing is repayable by December 2023.
Financing is secured by way of Equitable Mortgage over registered office, first pari passu constructive mortgage charge
over land and first hypothecation charge aver plant, machinery & equipment.
2020 2019
Note Rupees
20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 201 415,305,683 683,156,587
Accrued liabilities 103,445,339 193,961,595
Payable against investment in an associate 59,704,281 55,636,517
Withholding tax payable 42,230,593 20,494 352
Security deposit payable - 11,017,173
Payable to provident fund 20.2 1,273,701 1,198,590
Book overdraft - 528,815
Others 35,677,744 40,166,870
657,637,341 1,006,160,499
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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20.1 Include Rs. 95,940,684 (30 June 2019: 312,232,779) payable to M.D Production (Private) Limited, a related party.

20.2 Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Act and the rules
formulated for this purpose.
2020 2019
Note Rupees
21 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - secured
Short-term running finance— conventional banks 21.1 189,067,264 299,853,260

211 Represent facilities obtained from various conventional banks amounting to Rs. 425,000,000 (June 2019: Rs, 475,000,000)
out of which Rs. 235,932,736 (June 2019: Rs. 175,146,740) remains unutilized at period end. These facilities carrying
markup ranging from 1 month to 3 month KIBOR + 0.75% to 1%. (June 2019: 3 month KIBOR + 0.75% to 1%). These
facilities are secured by way of pari passu charge and first hypothecation charge on all current assets of the Holding
Company.

21.2 The Holding Company has local bill discounting facilities amounting te Rs. 175,000,000 (June 2019: Rs. 125,000,000} which
remain unutilized at the period end. These facilities carrying mark-up rates ranging from 3 months KIBOR + 0.9% to 1%
{June 2019: 3 months KIBOR + 0.9% to 1%). These facilities secured by way of par passu charge and first hypothecation
charge on all current assets of the Holding Company.

21.3 The Holding Company has facility against letters of credit aggregating to Rs. 50,000,000 (June 2019: Rs. 50,000,000} which
remain unutilized at the pericd end. These facilities secured by way of lien over import documents.

22 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
221 Contingencies

For the tax year 2013, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) passed an order under section 122(1) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 wherein certain disallowances / addbacks were made 1o the taxable income of the Holding
Company. The Holding Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) against the aforesaid
order who decided the case against the Holdin Company. The Holding Company has challenged the aforesaid order of the
CIR (A) before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, which is pending adjudication. Further, the ACIR passed an appeal
effect order creating a tax demand of Rs.182,961,339/-. However, the Holding Company has obtained a stay from recovery
of the above tax demand from the Sindh High Court (the Court). The management, based on the legal and tax advice, is
confident that the ultimate outcome will be in favor of the Holding Company and accordingly, no provision has been made in
this respect in these consolidated financial statements.

The tax authorities passed an order under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the lax year 2014
whereby a lax demand of Rs. 168,166,692 was created. The Holding Company has filled appeal before the Commissioner
Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIR (A)) in respect of the aforesaid order, which is pending adjudication.

Furthermore, the Holding Company has obtained stay from recovery of tax in respect of the above tax demand from the
Sindh High Court (the Court), till the decision of appeal. The management, based on the legal and tax advice, is confident
that the ultimate outcome will be in favor of the Holding Company and accordingly, no provision has been made in this
raspect in these consolidated financial statements.

2211 For tax related malters, refer note 30 to these consolidated financialstatements.
22.2 Commitments

22.21 Purchase of television programs commitments with M.D Production (Private) Limited - a related party as at June 30, 2020
amounted to Rs. 155,579,500 (June 30 2019: Rs. 393,586,400). Commitment for purchase of television programs with ather
than related parties as at June 30, 2020 amounted to Rs. 84,222 500 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 68,207,000).

2020 2019
Note Rupees
23 REVENUE - net
Advertisement revenue 3,504,290,142 3,790,542,705
Production revenue 51,495,210 87,819,118
Digital revenue 110,414,145 21,039,618
Subscription income 636,811,833 561,003,781
Film distribution revenue 40,630,585 174,702,013
Sale of goods 298,509,962 144,855,047
Sale of megazines 3173910 6,654,008

2317232  4,645325,787 4,786,716,290
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2020 2019
Note Rupees ——-eeeee
231 Revenue is net off the following items:
Sales tax 440,971,671 493,256,073
Discount to customers 248,715,703 273,395,164
A y 766,651,237
23.2 Represants revenue from the following gecgraphical regions:
Asia 3,919,305,019 4,034,835,236
United Kingdom 346,283,540 358,847,352
America 379,737,228 393,033,702
4,645,325,787 _ 4,786,716,290
24 COST OF PRODUCTION
Cost of oulsourced programs 1,501,992,926 1,834,092,596
Cost of in-house programs 238,684,117 419,551,943
Cost of inventory consumed 312,023,498 152 847,117
Salaries and benefits 241 700,813,954 854,358,582
Depreciation 438452 201,859,291 183,895,667
Traveling and conveyance 60,459,154 9,722 368
Utilities 19,316,327 53,469,774
Rent, rates and taxes 1,839,183 20,007 980
Insurance 22,950,391 27,675,194
Repair and maintenance 47,279,514 25,537,582
Fee and subscription 60,023,093 21,206 631
Communication 16,378,835 48,087,109
Securitv charoes 1.356.144 17.124.590
Amortisation 5.1 12,157,206 1,858,292
Consultancy 6,013,999 6,112,527
Printing and stationery 10,818,429 11,983,659
3,213,966,061 3,687 632,621
In production television programs — opening 54,213,916 91,472.116
In production television programs - closing {38,743,250) (54,213,916)
3,229,436,727 3,724 890,821
Released / unreleased programs - opening 386,400,500 384,062,756

Released / unreleased programs - closing (427,380,500) (386,400,500)
3,188,456,727 3,722,553,077

241 Include Rs. 26,580,044 (2019: Rs. 34,826,310/-) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

2020 2019
Note Rupees -—---ee
25 DISTRIBUTION COSTS
Advertisement and promaotion 184,273,278 168,866,611
Salaries and benefits 251 141,599,692 178,604,568
Traveling and conveyance 10,159,593 28,051,962
Rent, rates and taxes 8,808 714,773
Utilities B67,803 1,047,213
Depreciation 438452 3,291,522 2,867,754
Communication 1,493,880 1,628,775
Insurance 2,716,465 3,073,488
Repair and maintenance 2,186,613 2032173
Fees and subscription 1,984,746 1,581,788
Commission expense 7,567,055 62,250,884
Security charges - 852,953
Printing and stationery 287,413 2,050,130
356, 868 453,623,052
251 Include Rs. 4,987,023 (2019: Rs. 6,656, 202/-) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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26.1
26.2

2020 2019
Note Rupees --—------

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salanes and benefits 261 410,517,254 372,853,452
Technical advisory fee 26.2 41,400,000 41,400,000
Depreciation 438452 62,022,548 56,194,470
Amortisation 5.1 5,520,341 8,102,028
Repair and maintenance 30,093,265 52,121,436
Communication 6,374,162 15,616,476
Traveling and conveyance 30,336,726 37,203,066
Fee and subscription 8,350,074 12,843,112
Utilities 29,502,304 21,454 974
Legal and professional charges 20,066,963 13,145,725
Printing, stationery and periodicals 7,278,659 8,259.170
Rent, rates and taxes 20,179,390 48,996 467
Insurance 5,303,920 5,604,662
Auditors” remuneration 26.3 9,531,001 8,572,506
Security charges 10,528,238 11,034,607
Donation 264 1,817,779 -

698,912,624 714,402,151

Include Rs. 4,956,932 (2019 Rs. 4,109.628/-) in respec! of staff relirement benefits,

Represents amount paid / payable to director of the Holding Company for technical advisory services rendered in terms of the
technical advisory agreement duly approved by the Board of Directors.

2020 2019
Rupees

Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 5,515,843 4,712,824
Fee for consolidated financial statements 550,000 650,000
Fee for half yearly review 325,000 325,000
Tax and other assurance services 2,276,560 3,347 402
Out of pocket expenses B63,598 537,280

8,531,001 9,572,508
Interest of the Directors or their spouses in the donations made during the yvear is as follows:
Mame of donee and address Mames of interested
Momina and Duraid Foundation (Plot No. 10/11 Mr. Duraid Qureshi - Trustea
hassan ali street, off I.1. Chundrigar road, Ms. Sultana Siddigui - Trustee
Karachi. 1,480,649 -
OTHER EXPENSE
Provision for doubtful trade debts 25,823,089 5,421,163
Provision for impairment of invesiment in an associate 11,036,900 -
Impairment loss on goodwill - 11,803,791
Stock written off 3,581,225 2,690,986
Expenses for award show arangement 209,014,896 -
Others 13,745,896 -
OTHER INCOME
Income / {loss) from financial assets
Profit on bank accounts 12,443,154 22,404,104
Exchange gain 14,096,340 90,547,883
Dividend income 150,000 6,191,500
Interest / markup income 63,157,955 27,295,102
Unrealised loss on revaluation of investments (4,188,063) (6.693,787)
Gain on redemption / sale of investments 1,508,558 5470,121

87,167,944 145,214,933
Incoma from non financial assets

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 4,304,736 2,506,054
Liabilities no longer payable written back 177,185 437,653
Sale of content, DVDs and festival revenue 74,317,800 55,267,435
Income from award show arrangement 97,733,251 -
Others 12,809,161 84,439
189,342,133 58,305,581
276,510,077 203,520,514
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2020 2019

Note Rupees -
29 FINANCE COSTS
Mark-up on long term financing 164,676,755 131,896,854
Mark-up on short term borrowings 53,548,307 4,397 691
Interest on lease liabilities 24,730,643 2,834,642
Bank charges 2,017,540 5,347 450
244,973,245 144 476,637
30 TAXATION = EEEEEEE e
Currant 66,068,723 38,809,552
Deferred (88,310,777) 89,408,484
Prior 6,410,387 133,782

301 {15.831,667) _ 128,351,818

30.1  The Holding Company has filed its return of income up lo tax year 2019, The return so filed is deemed lo be an assessment
order issued by the Taxation Authorities on the date the complete return is filed, The Holding Company is mainly subject to
Minimum Tax Regime under Section 153((3) (e)) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, therefore, relationship between income
tax expense and accounting profit has nat been presented.

30.2 The Holding Company filed a Constitutional Petition (CP) before the Court on September 27, 2018 challenging the tax under
section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Court accepted the CP and granted a stay against the above section, In
case the Court's decision is not in favor of the Holding Company, the Holding Company will gither be required to declare the
dividend to the extent of 40% of after tax profits or it will be liable to pay additional tax at the rate of 7.5% of the accounting
profit before tax of the Holding Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2018. The management, based on the legal
and tax advice, s confident that the ultimate outcome will be in favor of the Holding Company and accordingly, no provision
has been made in this respect in these consolidated financial statements,

Subsequent o the year end, the Sindh High Court (the Court), through its order dated 30 April 2021, declared the insertion
of section 5A of the Ordinance as ulira vires 1o the Constitution of Islamic Republic of Pakistan, 1973 and therefore struck
down the provisions of the aforesaid section. Accordingly, in light of the above judgement of the Court, the provisions of
saction 54 of the Ordinance are no longer applicable on the Holding Company, until such matter is decided otherwise by
the Honorable Supreme Court. 2020 2019

Rupees

H LOSS PER SHARE - basic and diluted

Loss attribulable to the owners of the Holding Company [19.‘121]3!15#31] iﬁ-uiaszS&E!
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the period 945,000,000 945,000,000
Loss per share (Rupee) tu.zn; q‘.D.BllﬂL

32 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As mantioned in note 3.23 to the financial statements, the Holding Company operates recognized gratuity fund scheme for
Chief Executive Officer. Contributions are made o the scheme on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The latest
actuarial valuation was carried out as at June 30, 2020.

2020 2019
Rupees

(Assat) / Liability in respect of gratuity schema (551,439) 921,153
Reconciliation of amount (receivable from)

| payable to defined benefit plan
Present value of defined benefit obligation 63,526,561 58,455,579
Fair value of plan asseis (64,078,000 (57,534, 426)

i i gi " I EE

Movement in the present value of defined

benefit obligation:
Opening balance 58,455,579 58,407,286
Current service cost 4,316,455 4,534 263
Interest cost 8,066,870 5,840,729

Actuarial gain 7,312,343 (11,426,693)
Closing balance A55,

Movement in the fair value of plan assets:

Opening balance 57,534,426 53,836,332
Return on plan assets 6,543,574 3,608,094
Closing balance 64,078,000 R 4
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2020 2019
Rupees

Movement in net liability
Opening balance 921,153 5,570,954
Charge for the year 5,839,751 6,776,808
Actuarial income (7,312,343 {11,426,699)
Closing balance {551,439 821,153
Charge for the year
Current service cost 4,316,455 4,534,263
Interest cost - net 8,066,870 5,840,729
Return on plan assels (6.543,574) (3.698,094)

5,839,751 6,776,898
Actuarial remeasurements
Actuarial gain on defined benefil obligations (7,312,343) (11,426,6599)
Actuarial assumptions:
Valuation discount rate per annum B8.35% 13.80%
Salary increase rale per annum B.35% 13.80%
Mormal retirement age of employees 60 years 60 years
As of 30 June 2020, only one employee have been covered under the above scheme.
Charge for the next financial year as per the actuarial valuation report amounts to Rs. 4.226 million.
The weighted average duration of the obligation is 8.96 years.
Comparisons for past years:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 63,526,561 58,455,579 59,407 286
Fair value of plan assets (64,078,000 (57.534,426)  (53,836,332)
Deficit 551,439 921,153 5,570,954
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (7.312,343)  (11,426,699) -
Experience adjustment on plan assels - - -

2020 2019

weees (RUpEES) —eem

Composition of plan assets
Mutual Fund - 73,407 829
Cash at bank BT.433,448 2,371,652

Consaolidated statement of financial position date sensitivity analysis (+ 100 bps) on present valua of defined benefit obligation:

2020

Discount rate
+ 100 bps =100 bps + 100 bps
e RUp 2 ES)

Present value of defined benefit obligation (5,399.376) 5,989,622 5,120,842

Salary increase
=100 bps

(5.613,826)

2019

Discount rate

+ 100 bps =100 bps + 100 bps

Present value of defined benefit obligation 15,125,532) 5,704,642 5.844 881

Salary increase
=100 bps
S 11112121 B

(5,329,876)

Significant risks

Final salary risk

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the Holding Company has assumed. Since

the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would also increase proportionately.

Asset volatility

The fund assets are almost entirely invested in banks saving accounts which is subject to the risk of change in interest rate by

the bank. This give rise to significant reinvestment risk.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Discount rate fluctuation

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields. A decrease in corporate
bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the current plans’
bond holdings.

Life expectancy [ Withdrawal rate

The Gratuity is paid off at the maximum of age 60. The life expectancy is in almost minimal range and is quite predictable in the
ages when the employee is in the accredited employment of the Group for the purpose of the Graluity. Thus, the risk of life
expectancy is almost negligible. However, had a post retirement benefit been given by the Group like monthly pension, post
retirement medical etc., this would have been a significant risk which would have been quite difficult to value even by using
advance mortality improvement models.

The withdrawal risk is dependent upon the: benefil structure; age and retention profile of the staff; the valuation methodology;
and long-term valuation assumptions. In this case, it is not a significant risk.

Inflation risk

The salary inflation is the major risk that the gratuity fund lability carries. In a general economic sense and in a longer view,
there is a case that if bond yields increase, the change in salary inflation generally offsets the gains from the decrease in
discounted gratuity liability. But viewed with the fact that assel values will also decrease, the salary inflation does, as an overall
affect, increases the net liability of the Holding Company.

Model risk
The defined benefit gratuity liability is usually actuarially valued each year. Further, the assets in the gratuity fund are also
marked to market. This two-ltier valuation gives rise to the model risk.

Investment risk
The risk of the investment underparforming and not being sufficient to meet the liabilities. This risk is mitigated by closely

monitoring the performance of investment.

Risk of insufficiency of assets

This Is managed by making regular contribution to the Fund as advised by the actuary.

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Loss before taxation

2020

(263,000,185)

Rupees

2019

(521,328,417)

Adjustments for :
Depreciation 267,173,361 242 957 891
Amortisation 17,677,547 17,824,396
Impairment loss on goodwill - 11,803,791
Provision for impairment of investment in an associate 11,036,900 -
Provision for employee retirement benefits 34,292 949 -
Finance costs 244,973,245 144,476,637
Exchange difference on translation of foreign subsidiaries 7.841,236 101,806,308
Exchange gain {14,096,340) (93,131,944)
Profit on deposit accounts (12,443,154) (22.,404,104)
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assels (4,304,736) (2,506,054)
Share of net profit of associate (7,228,162) (3,837,024)
Gain on redemption / sale of investments (1,508,558) (5.470,121)
Dividend income - (6,191,500)
Unrealised loss on revaluation of investments 4,188,063 6,693,787
Provision for doubtful debts 25,823,089 (70,820,968)
573,425,440 321,201,095
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Inventories 17,745,971 (32,182,748)
Current portion of television program costs 108,000,000 5.978,911
Trade debts {213,011,700) 64,472 821
Advances 48,026,417 58,371,208
Trade deposits and short term prepayments (22,012,136) 28,947,747
Other receivables 93,600,388 (88,190,196)
32,348,940 38,397,743
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables (137,621,177) 325,729,830
205,153,018 164,000,251
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34 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
The apgregabe amounts chanped in the consolidated financial stalements for remunaration, Including all benefits to tha Chief Execulives, Direciors and Execulives are as
Follows:
_ 020 2019
Chief Executive Non-Executive Chiaf Expcutive Non-Executive
Expcutive Director Director Executives Exmeutive Directar Director Expcutives
Managenial remuneratior 9,470,000 - 2.000.000 253,774,383 00,131,433 2,000,000 06,619,145
Bonus - - - - - - -
Ratiremen benalits - . - 12,642,819 - 17,650,444
House rent 14,022,561 - - 73317842 14,022 581 e 621,650
Liilites 3116129 - . 16,292,852 3,116,129 - 21,538,145
Technical advisory lee - 41,400,000 - - - 41,400,000 - -
Fual and conveyance 1,363,515 834,389 499.832 9,021,361 1,498,835 BB, 326 532,607 11,667,125
117, 15 7 4 z
34,1 The Chiel Executives, Direclors and certain Execullves ane aiso provided with free use of Group mainlained cars in accordancs with the Group's policy and reimbursermanl af
expanses relaied o business travel,
342 The aggregate amowni charged in the financial statemants for meeting fes to 4 non-axecutive dieciors amounted 1o Rs. 675 0000 (2019: Ra. 625,000/
343 Managers remuneration of chief axecutive includes Rs. Mil (2015 Rs. 15.960,000) in respect of relocation allowance.
35 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Ruotated parties of the Group comprise associated undartaking, retiremenl bonefis fund and key management personnal, Dataits of transacBons with redaled parties during
the year, other than those which have been disclosed elsswhers in these consolidated inancial stalsments ane as follows:
2020 2018
Ralationship Mature of transactions memeees RABPRDS e
Associates Purchazas of telavision program rights 1,142,064,102 1,347 848,277
Expanses paid on behall of the associate 18,238,705 =
Cummission income BBOT, 145 .
Paymant made during the pesiod 1,337,379,266 1,280,801 383
Payment received on behall of associate 12,073,309 -
Cihars Contribution io fha provident fund 36,523,950 45,562,140
All ransactions with relaled partes are ontensd into al sgreed larms duly approved by the Board of Direclors of the Group, The outstanding recoivable and payable balances
of the relaled parties are disclosad n thalr respactive noles bo these consolidated financlal statements.
351 Following are the retated parties with whom the Company had entered into iransactions or have arrangement / agreement in place:
S.No. Company Name Basis of association Aggregate % of
shareholding
1 M.D Productions (Private) Limibed Common directorship {35.1.1) -
2 Momina & Duraid Fims (Privato) Limidad Common directorship (35.1.1) -
3 Maomina and Duraid Foundation Commaon directorship {35.1.1) -
4 Diaital Ententanment Warld (Private) Limited Associate -
5 HUM Network Limited- Emalovees” Provident Fund Retiremant Fund -
& Ms. Sultana Siddigul Director 0.02%
T Mr. Mazhar ul Hag Siddiqui Direcclor -
a M, Duraid Qureshi Diresctor 24.30%
g Mr, Shunald Cureshi Director 5.38%
10 Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi Direcior -
1" Lt Gen (R} Asd Yasin Malik Director -
12 Mr, Hasan Reza ur Rahim Director -
13 Mr, Schai Ansar Director -
14 Ms. Nabigha Nasser Masood Direcior .
15 Mr, Muhammad Abbas Hussain Key management Personnel -
16 M. Mohsin Nasem Key management Personnel -
35.1.1 Thess antities ane associated companies / undariakings of the Company under Companias Act, 2017,
352 MNone of the key management personnel had any arangemenis with the Company other than the employment contraci.
2020 019
MNote ————— RUpoes
38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
381  Financial assels as per statement of financial position
Financial assets al amortised cost
= Long term deposits 7 27,032,388 41,440,670
- Trade debis 10 2,089 810,853 1.888,5256,902
= Short term investments " - 261,406,482
- Trade degosils 13 19,487,180 5,184,788
- Other recelvables 14 1,902,840 204,7TT D46
- (Cash and bank balances 15 268,657 823 361,610,081
—2.406941,092 7762954850
Financial assets at fair value throuah profit or loss
* Shor ferm investmants n M 576 635,081
382  Financial liabilities as per statoment of financial position
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
= Long term financing 19 837,839,369 O7H,B44,TES
= Trade and other payablas ol 615,408,748 985, BEE, 147
- Accrued mark-up 3210148 B&T217E
- Short tarm borrowings 2 188,067 264 299,853,260
- Current poriion of long term financing 19 196,311,600 a71.910,267
- Unclaimed dividend 5,948,490 5,948,490
= Unpaid dividend 205,159 205,159
—LRA7 08,778, 2647000784
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7 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks i.e. markel risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks lo minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group's senicr management oversees the management of these risks. The Group's senior management provides policies
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and
credit risk, use of financial derivatives, financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. It is the Group's policy that no
trading in dernvatives for speculative purposes shall be undertaken. The Board of Directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

371 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value of fulure cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Markel prices
comprise three types of risk: interast rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk, such as equity risk.

37.2  Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
the marketl interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises from finance lease obligations, short term borrowings and bank
balances. The Group manages these risks through risk management strategies.

Sensitivity analysis:
The following figures demonstrate the sensilivity 1o a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held

constant, of the Group’s profit before taxation:
Increase [

Effect on profit
decrease in
badis points before taxation
Rupees

+100 (11,216,898)

June 30, 2020 -100 11,216,898
+100 13.390.5341

June 30, 2019 =100 8,390,634

373 Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or financial liabilities will fluctuate due to a change in foreign
exchange rates, It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. The Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

2020 2019

US Dollar GBP AED US Dollar GBP AED
Trade debls 902,944 993,174 2,829,086 205,566 1,070,389 3,317,211
Deposits and prepayments 1,250 - 77,218 93,997 109,588 390,396
Trade and other payables (406,532) (342,059) (121,643) {165,712) (178,177) (594,557)
The following significant exchange rates have been applied at the reporting dates:

Rupees Rupees

Closing exchange rates 167.6 205 45.49998736 158.9 198 42.4

Sensitivity analysis:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar and GBP exchange rate, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before taxation:

Change in Effect on Effect on
”rsat:'}u:]’ Pmﬁ'mh:m Gcahpmr?; I{I:.f.} "mﬁ'::m ACE?HHF; 1::;} ;:u-q-:r.:rfi,:hi ::f::e tax
-- Rupees -- - Rupees — - Rupees --
30 June 2020 10 8,340,808 10 13,347,858 10 14,035,204
=10 (8,340,808) =10 (13,347.858) -10 (14,035,204}
30 June 2019 10 1 335!515 10 10, 01BEDOE 10 31,130,600

-10 1,338 515) -10 (10,018,005) -10 {31,130,600)
374  Equity price risk

The Group's investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of investment
sacurities. The Group manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on individual and total
investments. Reports on the investments portfolio are submitted to the Group's senior management on a regular basis.

As of the statement of financial position date, the exposure to investments at fair value through profit or loss was Rs.
387 637 457 (2019: Rs. 397 B37 457).
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. Concentration of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are
engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate
the relative sensitivity of the Group's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

The Group is mainly exposed to credit risk on trade debts and bank balances. The Group seeks to minimize the credit risk
exposure through having exposures only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities where applicable.

Management of credit risk

The Group's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the guidelines set by the Board of Directors and other
internal guidelines.

Credit risk is managed and controlled by the management of the Group in the following manner:

- Credit rating and / or credit worthiness of the counterparty is taken into account along with the financial background so as to
minimize the risk of default.

- The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed agreemeants causing a loss to the Group is mitigated by a periodic review of
their credit ratings, financial statements, credit worthiness and market information on a regular basis.

- Cash is held with reputable banks only.

As of the consolidated statement of financial position date, the Group is exposed to credit risk on the following assets:

2020 2019

Rupees --—-e-
- Long term deposits 27,032,386 41,449 670
- Trade debis 2,089,810,853 1,888,525,902
- Short term investments 241,505,092 B38,041,574
- Trade deposits 19,497,190 5,184,788
- Other receivables 1,902,840 109,190,568
- Bank balances 266,679,171 360,176,990

2,646,427,532 3.242,569.492
Quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings or to historical information about
counterparty defaull rates:

2020 2019
Note Rupees
Trade debts

Customers with no defaults in the pasl one year 2,089,810,853 1,888,525,902
Customers with some defaulls in past one year 89,539,634 87.832,093
10 2,179,350 487 1,976.357,995

Bank balances
Al+ 15 141,146,955 151,136,046
A+ 125,532,216 209,040,944
ZEE!ET‘!!‘I 71 360,176,990
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Short term investments

Mutual funds AMd++
Alf)
Quaoted shares Al+
Al
Term deposit receipt Al
Al+
B
Term finance cerificate Al+
Ad-
BA-
Sukuks Ady

1
37.6  Liquidity risk

81,721,902
302,965,055

384,686,957

6,795,600
6,154,900

12,950,500

106,684,931
101,496,082
53,225,480

198,901,230
42,603,862

261,406,493
80,000,000

98,997 624

241,505,092

838,041,574

Liquidity risk is the risk thatl the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group applies
prudent risk management policies by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and by keeping committed credit lines.
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the following reporting dates:

Less than 3

2020 On demand onihe 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years Total
Rupees
Long term lease labilities - 6,554,703 30,867,350 170,774,112 208,196,165
Lang term financing - 60,558,183 237,647,543 949 485,375 1,247,691,101
Trade and other payables 84,985,899 274,735,110 492,456,259 - B52,177,268
Short term borrowing - 189,067,264 - - 189,067,264
Accrued mark-up 3,210,149 - - - 3,210,149
88,196,048 530,915,260 _ 760,971,152 1,120,259 487 2,500,341,947
2019 On demand Lessthand 5 42months  1toSyears Total
months
Rupees
Long term financing - 92,960,903 278,949,364 078,644,795 1,350,555,062
Lease liabilities - 5,085,442 10,347,329 11,263,203 26,696,674
Trade and other payables 100,952,575 326,350,809 584 976,189 - 1012279573
Short term borrowing B - 208,853,260 - 298,853,260
Accrued mark-up 5,480,082 - - - 5,490,002
106,442 667 424 397,154 _1.174.126,142 989,008,608 2.694,874,661
37.6.1 Changes in liabilities from financing activities
1-Jul-19 Cash Flows New leases Others 30-Jun-20
Rupees
Long term financing 1,350,555,062 (316,404 ,093) = B 1,034,150,969
Long term lease liabilities 203 4592 165 (61,022 447] 4707800 (7,194 656) 139,976,668
1-Jul-18 Cash Flows New leases Others 30-Jun-19
Rupees
Long term financing 1,105,869.000 244 686 062 = s 1,350,555 062
Long term lease liabilities 31,640,770 443, —_15,665,850 2,834,642 26,696,674

37.6.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated financial statements appropriate their fair

values,
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Capital risk

The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view of maintaining
an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. The primary objective of the Group's capital
management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order o support its business sustain fulure developmenl of
the business and maximize shareholders value. The Group monitors capital using a debt equity ratio as follows:

2020 2019

Note Rupees -----eees
Long term lease liabilities 18 104,833,723 11,263,903
Long term financing 19 837,839,369 978,644,795
Trade and other payable 20 657,637,341 1,006,160,499
Accrued markup 3,210,149 5,572,176
Short term borrowing 21 189,067,264 299,853,260
Current portion of long lerm lease liabilities 18 35,142,945 15,432,771
Current portion of long term financing 19 196,311,600 371,910,267
Total debit 2,024,042,391 2,688,837.671
Cash and bank balances 15 (268,697,823) (361,610,061)
MNet debt 1,755,344,568 2,327,227 610
Share capital 17 945,000,000 945,000,000
Unappropriated profit 2,096,403,506 2,276,458 987
Total equity 3,041,403,506 3,221,458,987
Capital 4!796!1’43!&'74 5,548 686,597
Gearing ratio 36.59% 41.94%

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the consclidated financial statements approximate fair
values.

The following table shows assets recognised al fair value, analysed between those whose fair value is based on:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market dala (unobservable inputs).

Assets measured at fair value
2020 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
{Rupees)

Short term investmenis 241,505,092 241,505,092 576,635,081

During the period, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out
of leve! 3 fair value measurement.

Financial instruments which are tradable in an open markel are revalued al the market prices prevailing on the consolidated
statement of financial position date.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

For management purposes, the Group has delermined following reportable operating segments on the basis of areas of
operations l.e. entertainment and news.

Entertainment segment is engaged in advertisemeant, entertainment and media marketing.

News segment is engaged in broadecasting of news programs.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Entortalnmant Nows Others Total
2020 2019 2020 2018 2020 2019 2020 2018
(Rupoes)

Rovonue
Ml nirvanue froem adadnal

customer 4135778130 4,501,324 156 111 140,437,087 301,436,350 144,655 047 4,545,335 787 4 786,716,260
Resalt
Segment prafit | (loss) 1,359,061,348 1,051,345423 (587,485,691} (BBO,321,144) (114,226,204} (40,915,506) 660,340,451 150,108,773
Taxation 22,653,401 (123,793 &06) (2,990,741} (2,032 388) (3,830,9a3) (2 525 536) 15,831,657 (128,351, 818)
Unallocated income |

|exparmes) |
Asmirisirative sxpenses (698.912,624) (714, 402.151)
Oriher income 276,510,077 203,520,514
Othar Expanses (263,202,006} (19,915,940}
Share of Profit Irom Associate 7,228,162 3,837,024
Finance cost (244.973,245) {144, 476,837)
Loss for the pericd (247.168.518] {649,660, 235
Cihar information
Amortization (12,333,436) (12 914 455) (5,162,256) (#4,728,085) (181,855) (181,855) (17,677,547} (17,824,396)
Dapreciation 160,531,245} (673585371 (185.388.070] 1683957221 (20,854,036] (7.203.532) [267.173.361) (242.957.891)
Segment assels 440,468,113 29T 082,756  1,053,331,155 1,242,004, 621 105855418 09,306, 504 1,608,654,686 1,639,264,311
Unallocated Assets . - - - 3,730,506.563 4,361,344, 271

440,468,113 ZHT.962.756 _1,053,331.155 1.242 004 521 105,855,418 5,339.161.249 £,000,6348,642

Segment liabitties 1,101,063.509 GOT.B50.E2T _1,133.453,007 1,685,788 244 62,176,853 38875480 _ 2.306.663.450 2,722,133,560

38 Revenue from three major customers of the Group are around 51% during the year ended June 30, 2020 (June 30, 2019: 51%).
33 NUMEBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees and average number of employees at period end and during the period respectively are as follows:

2020 2019
Rupees
Total number of employees 781 903
Average number of employees during the period 799 a7y

40 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 16 July 2020, the Group has disposed off the plot of land located in karachi classified as held for sale at the consideration of Rs.
493,340,000

41 GENERAL

41.1 For better presentation, certain prior year figures have been reclassified consequent to certain changes in current period presentation.
41.2 Figures have been rounded off 1o the nearest Rupes

42 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements have been authorised for issue on June 14, 2021 by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company.

]
%ﬁé/ u\'":—‘-
- e

DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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FORM OF PROXY

The Company Secretary,
HUM NETWORK LIMITED
16™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Karachi

I, Slo. , holder of CNIC No. ————————————— Resident of

—————, being member of HUM NETWORK LIMITED, holding ——————— ordinary shares as per Registered Folio / CDS
Account No, ——————— herchy appoint Mr./Ms. . resident of or
failing himy/ her Mr./Ms. of

(full address) who isfare also memben(s) of the Company, as my / our proxy 1o attend, act and vote for me/ us and on my / our behalf

at Annual General Meeting (AGM) of  the Company to be held on Friday, 16™ day of July, 2021 at 4:00 pm at Ground Floor,

BRR Tower, Hassan All Street, O L1 Chundrigar Road, Karachi and / or any Adjournment thereofl

For attending meeting by proxy through electronic means L.e. video-link facility, please register following particulars of proxy:

Email 1D: Cell Number:
As witness my [ our hand / seal this day ol 2021.
Signed by in the presence of;
Witness:
| Wame:
Signature
Avddress:

i

MNote:

w4

CHIC or Passport No.;

Nime:

Signuture

Address:

CNIC or Passport No.;

The proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company, HUM Network Limited, Plot No.
10711, Hassan Ali Street, O LL Chundrigar Road, Karnchi,

All members ure entitled to attend and vote at the meeting.

A member eligible to attend and vote at the Meeting may appoint another member as his'her proxy to attend. and vote instead of him/'her.

An instrament of proxy applicable for the meeting is being provided wirh the notice sent 1o members. Further copies of the instrument of
proxy may be oblained from the registered office of the Company during normal office hours

An mstrument of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any), under which it 15 signed or a notarily certified copy of such
power or authority must, to be valid, be deposited at the registered office not less than 48 howrs before the time of the meeting.

IF 0 member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by o member with the company, all such
instruments of proxy shall be rendered mvalid

Members are requested (o notify any changes in their addresses immediately,

CDC aecount holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as lnid down in circular |, doted January 26, 2000 issued hy
the Securities & Exchange Commigsion of Pakistan.

For €D Account Holders/'Corporate Entities:
In addition 1o abave, the following requirements hove Lo be met:

1)
i)
i)
i

The proxy form shall be witnessed by two { 2) persons whose sames, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

Adtested copies of CNIC or passport of the bencficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

The proxy shall produce his onginal CNIC or onginal passport at the time of mecting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submittenless it has
been prowided earlier) alongwith proxy form w the Company.
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